
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	 PUBLIC AGENDA 
Thursday, June 20, 2019 

Time: 8:30 a.m. 
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport 

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 

AGENDA 

I. 	Call to Order 

II. 	Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: May 16, 2019* 

III. 	Non-Public Session* (Lamson) 

IV. 	Vote of Confidentiality* (Levesque) 

V. 	Public Comment 

VI. 	Finance 
A. 	Reports 

1. Operating Results for Nine Month Period Ending April 30, 2019 * 
2. Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to February 29, 2020 * 

B. 	Approvals 
1. 	FY 2020 Operating Budget and FY 2021 — FY 2023 Forecast * (Torr) 

VII. Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way 
A. 	Reports 

1. Enterprise Rent-A-Car of Boston LLC * 
2. Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC * - Right of Entry for Terminal Space 
3. New Hampshire Air National Guard — Exercise Extension of Right of Entry for Mobile 

Air Traffic Control Tower to March 2, 2024 * 
4. Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines — Exercise Extension of Right of Entry 

through October 31, 2019* 

B. 	Approvals 
1. Experimental Aircraft Association "EAA 225" — Right of Entry at Skyhaven Airport 

(DAW) through June 30, 2019 with a request of the Board to extend through December 
31, 2019 * (Allard) 

2. U.S. Coast Guard — Right of Entry at 14 Aviation Avenue through June 30, 2020 * 
(Lamson) 

VIII. Signs 
A. 	Approvals 

1. 	119 International, LLC * (Lamson) 

1 



IX. 	Leases 
A. 	Approvals 

1. B & H Airpower, L.L.C. for Hangar 5 at Skyhaven Airport (DAW) * (Levesque) 
2. Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC — Car Rental Concession Lease and Operating Agreement for 

terminal space * (Torr) 

X. 	Contracts/Agreements 
A. 	Reports 

1. Purchase of Replacement Computers from Dell * 
2. Purchase of Used Greens Roller * 
3. Builder's Risk Insurance / Terminal Expansion Project * 

XI. 	Executive Director's Reports/Approvals 
A. 	Reports 

1. Golf Course Operations 

2. Airport Operations 
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 
c) Noise Line Report * 

B. 	Approvals 
1. 	Personnel Policies * (Allard) 

a) Merit and COLA Adjustments 
b) Maximum Annual Leave Accrual in Twelve (12) Month Period 
c) Maximum Annual Leave Accrual Carry Forward 
d) Holiday Leave 
e) Declination of Health Benefits 

2. 	Engagement of PDA Deputy Executive Director/PSM Airport Director *** (Allard) 

3. 	Bills for Legal Services * (Levesque) 
a) 	Sheehan, Phinney, Bass & Green, P.A. in the amount of $29,870.50 

XII. 	Division of Ports and Harbors 
A. 	Reports 

1. 	Port Advisory Council Minutes of April 10, 2019 * 
2. 	Les Eastman-Charter ROE, Hampton * 
3. 	Commercial Mooring Transfers * 

a) Rye Harbor 	Permit No. 950 	Business 	Date of Approval 
Transferor: 	Andrew Widden 	Commercial 	6/4/19 
Transferee: 	Adam Baker 

b) Seabrook Harbor Permit No. 6933 	Business 	Date of Approval 
Transferor: 	Norman Pike 	 Commercial 	6/4/19 
Transferee: 	Alexander Gonzalez 

4. 	Portsmouth Fish Pier Sea Wall 

XIII. New Business 

2 



XIV. 	Upcoming Meetings 

Residential Housing Committee July 18, 2019 @ 9:00 a.m. 
Golf Committee August 12, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Finance Committee August 12, 2019 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors August 15, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

XV. Directors' Comments 

XVI. Adjournment 

XVII. Press Questions 

Related Materials Attached 
Related Materials Previously Sent 
Related Materials will be provided under separate cover 
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting 
Confidential Materials 

P \BOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda June 20 docx 



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

Thursday, May 16, 2019 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
MINUTES 

Presiding: 	Kevin H. Smith, Chairman 
Present: 	Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; John P. 

Bohenko; Margaret F. Lamson; Neil Levesque and Franklin G. Torr 
Attending: David R. Mullen, Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Executive Director; 

Lynn M. Hinchee, PDA Deputy Executive Director and General Counsel; PDA 
staff members; members of the public. 

I. 	Call to Order 

Chairman Smith called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. in the Board conference room on 
the Pease International Tradeport at 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire. 

IL 	Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: April 18, 2019 

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby accepts the minutes of the April 18, 2019 Board 
meeting. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

III. Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

IV. Old Business 
A. 	Reports 

1. Ad Hoc Advisory Committees changes per request of Chairman 
Smith 
Golf Committee - Neil Levesque will be removed and Frank Torr 
appointed; Port Committee appointment of Neil Levesque 

Chairman Smith updated some appointments to the Committees as follows: the removal 
of Neil Levesque and the appointment of Frank Torr to the Golf Committee; and the appointment 
of Neil Levesque to the Port Committee. 

2. 254 Corporate Drive — Right of First Refusal 

Executive Director Mullen (Mullen) reported that Summit Land Development, LLC has 
been provide with a six (6) month Right of First Refusal (RFR) for property located at 254 
Corporate Drive; the RFR shall terminate on September 20, 2019. 

1 



3. 	100 New Hampshire Avenue — Right of First Refusal 

Mullen reported that Two International Group, LLC has been provided with a six (6) 
month Right of First Refusal (RFR) for property located at 100 New Hampshire Avenue 
(formerly known as 80 Rochester Avenue); the RFR shall terminate on September 15, 2019. 

Director Lamson indicated that the reports were self-explanatory and thanked Mullen 
very much. 

V. 	Finance 
A. 	Reports 

1. 	Operating Results for Nine Month Period Ending March 31, 2019 

Finance Director Iry Canner (Canner) spoke to the operating results for the nine month 
period ending March 31, 2019. Canner indicated that we are still positive; the variances are that 
revenues are up by about 7% and operating costs are up by about 3%. The increase in revenues 
are driven by the fuel fees as well as a dockage fees at DPH. The change in operating costs in 
March is due to the recording of the liability of the settlement with CLF. 

Director Lamson inquired into the number of employees at the present time being 118. 

Canner indicated that it was 118 as of May l', but as of today we are at 130 employees 
(which includes seasonal employees). PDA still maintains 60 benefited positions, with three 
open positions listed on the organization chart. Personnel service costs on labor side are slightly 
over budget. Organizational chart shows the 60 permanent positions filled (49 here at PDA and 
11 at Division of Ports and Harbor) with three open positions indicated in red. 

This year PDA has not had to go into debt other than the current repayment to the City of 
Portsmouth which is anticipated to be extinguished by end of December/beginning of January. It 
is also anticipated during that time period PDA will have to utilize the Revolving Line of Credit 
(RLOC) due to the increase in capital expenditures. The primary expenditures that require the 
use of the RLOC are the terminal; functional replacement of the bridge; runway design work; 
and pay-for-parking. 

Director Bohenko inquired into the Cash Balance Sheet and asked for clarification on 
amounts and dates associated with the same. 

Director Lamson inquired about the restricted cash. 

Canner indicated that restricted cash is related to the Foreign Trade Zone, Revolving 
Loan Fund and the Harbor Dredging. The variance in numbers is the repayments of the 
Revolving Loan Funds and the increase in some of the revenues associated with the Harbor 
Dredging Fund; those funds need to be kept separate and cannot be comingled. 

2 



Canner spoke to the two new revenue streams that have contributed to the 2019 revenue; 
the airport's pay-for-parking and the fuel flowage fees. Enplanements are at 49,000 through end 
of April. Canner indicated that we are about 75% of where we were last year in passenger count 
which is almost at 100,000, nearly double that from last year. 

Skyhaven revenue is on budget for the current 9 months. 

Canner spoke to the Board regarding the Golf Course; the numbers indicated are through 
March and do not reflect where the Golf Course is now. This year PDA is ahead by 40% in 
rounds of golf played. The variances in revenues are up by about 5% which offset some small 
increases in operating costs. Currently, ahead 20% of where the simulators were at this time last 
year and regarding Grill 28, sales are up slightly from last year by about 2.5%. 

Canner spoke to the Board about the Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) regarding the 
increase in revenue which is related to the wharfage and dockage fees and fuel sales. 

Director Torr requested for the next Board meeting a financial updated concerning the 
Housing Study Committee. Canner indicated that information could be provided as we have a 
work order that captures the costs. 

Director Lamson stated that the parking at the airport has done very well and thinks it is 
very good to elaborate on that. 

Mullen indicated the expansion of parking to Lot C and setting up another gate as there 
were several times that capacity was exceeded during April vacation. 

2. 	Nine Month Cash Flow Projections to January 31, 2020 

Taking a look at the chart there is a transition in the upcoming January projections which 
will require the use of the RLOC. This is due to capital expenditures both non grant and grant 
related projects. There is $9.3 million in capital expenditures during this timeframe; 92% of that 
amount revolves around the terminal; impact to cash flow drawing down balances by 85%. 

Director Allard asked what the out-of-pocket expenses for the terminal project are. 

Canner indicated that there is $1.8 million in federal funding with net being $21 million 
for the project. Following that is the $20 million runway project of which 5% would be PDA's 
responsibility. 

Canner indicated that there are over forty-five (45) projects listed in capital expenditures 
projects through the end of January. 

DPH chart shows unrestricted funds which is consistent with how this DPH operates 
(given that its major source of revenue streams come in January, February March with mooring 
permits). Overall the DPH carries a positive balance. 

3 



3. Revolving Loan Fund — April Loan Closings 

Three loans closed in April and going forward new loans will be reported. One closing is 
scheduled for next month and two large loans are scheduled for the fall (custom built fishing 
boats). 

Director Levesque inquired as to how much is in the RLF; Canner indicated $1.2 million 
with $1 million in outstanding loans. 

VI. 	Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and 
Execution of License Agreements and Rights of Entry," Executive Director Mullen reported on the 
following Rights of Entry ("ROE"): 

A. 	Reports 
1. Right of Entry — Siemens Gamesa Renewable Energy, Inc. - North 

Apron 

Mullen reported that Siemens Gamesa Renewal Energy, Inc. has been granted a ROE for 
the period of May 7, 2019 through July 31, 2019 for the purpose of storing wind energy generating 
equipment on the Premises (North Apron). PDA is working collaboratively with the Port to provide 
Siemens lay down space on the North Apron for towers related to a windmill project heading to 
Antrim. Last indication received was the space would utilized be through June 19 th . 

2. Right of Entry — International Association of Privacy Professionals —
14 Aviation Avenue 

Mullen reported that International Association of Privacy Professionals (IAPP) has been 
granted an ROE for June 19, 2019 through June 20, 2019 for the purpose of parking 25+/-
vehicles, and for July 10, 2019 for the purpose of parking 150+/- vehicles in connection with a 
company meeting on 14 Aviation Avenue. Mullen stated that IAPP is a tenant located at 75 
Rochester Avenue who hold an annual event and convert its parking lot into a game area for staff 
members/family; so we provide them alternative parking at 14 Aviation Avenue for the event. 

Director Levesque asked if the Siemens ROE was the reason that the cash flow increased 
at the Tradeport. Mullen indicated no, as the Siemens' fee is $4,300/mo. 

Chairman Smith asked if Director Levesque wanted to know what caused the increase and 
an affirmative response was received. Canner indicated that the increase was due to significant 
wharfage monies. 

4 



VII. Leases 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements," Executive Director Mr. Mullen reported on the following sublease: 

A. Reports 
1. 	200 International Limited Partnership — 200 International Drive 

(Suite 290) 

Mullen reported that 200 International Limited Partnership entered into a sublease with 
New England Controls, Inc. (d/b/a: NECI) for 4,982 square feet within the leased premises at 200 
International Drive from July 1, 2019 until June 16, 2023. The premises will be used for general 
office use; Director Lamson approved the sublease. 

B. Approvals 
1. 	GEB, Inc. - Assignment of Lease to Rochester Electronics 

Director Loughlin moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby: 

a. approves of the sale of the facility and the assignment of the Lease by GEB, 
Inc., to Rochester Electronics, LLC for the premises located at 20 Durham 
Street; and 

b. authorizes the Executive Director and General Counsel to negotiate and 
execute without limitation, such agreements and documents as shall be 
necessary or appropriate, in their opinion, to facilitate the sale of the facility 
and the assignment of the ground lease; 

all in accordance with the memorandum of David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated May 
8, 2019. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

VIII. Contracts/Agreements 
A. 	Environmental Contract Reports 

1. 	Ransom Report 

Mullen reported that last month Pease Development Authority (PDA) authorized Ransom 
Consulting, Inc. to proceed with two (2) task assignments associated with the CLF settlement 
and PDA's pending ms4 permit application. 

1. The first task assignment, in the amount of $41,545, directed Ransom to establish 
a baseline inventory of impervious surface areas and update the information 
yearly until January of 2024; and 

2. The second task assignment, in the amount of $5,318, directed Ransom to conduct 

5 



baseline storm water sampling for the pending application. 

All work will be in conformance with the terms of Ransom's on-call agreement. 

B. 	Approvals 
1. 	Janitorial Services Pease Development Authority Properties 

Director Levesque moved and Director Loughlin seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a three (3) year 
agreement with two (2) additional one (1) year options exercisable on the sole discretion of 
the Executive Director with Compass Facility Services, for the purpose of janitorial services 
to Pease Development Authority facilities (Division of Ports and Harbors Market Street 
Facility, Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Pease Golf Course and the PDA 
Corporate Offices) in a projected bid amount of $203,432.00 per year; all in accordance with 
the memorandum of Paul Brean, dated May 8, 2019. 

Discussion: 

Director Bohenko asked how we found the level of cleaning service (i.e.; A+, C). 

Airport Director Paul Brean (Brean) indicated that there was an extensive RFQ; five 
companies responded and from those companies it was narrowed down to two candidates (went 
through a thorough checklist). The company that is being recommended, Compass Facilities, is 
vast and has a large footprint. Currently PDA struggles with the service it has now and financially 
Compass is actually 40% to 65% cheaper in its services and uses an asset data management type 
of system which utilizes resources at a variety of locations. 

Director Bohenko stated it would be something to look at long term to bring janitorial 
service back in-house when we update the terminal. Indicated that they (City of Portsmouth) tried 
outsourcing a couple of times. The maintenance company needs to make a profit; cleaning is a 
human function and the City has not had much success at it (outsourcing). 

Brean indicated that there will be a quality control added as a maintenance manager. 

Mullen indicated to date, in-house has not worked out. This is sort of a demand driven 
requirement. PDA looked at cost savings as we had coverage, but when compared to the services 
with Compass it was about a 40% savings. 

Director Bohenko stated he wondered where they (Compass) is making up the 40% 
savings. 

General Counsel Lynn Hinchee (Hinchee) indicated that one of the issues that has occurred 
with in-house is the ability to handle the increased activity which means adding staff and benefits. 

Director Lamson spoke to the need of keeping the terminal clean among chaos. 

6 



Mullen indicated that it would be monitored closely. 

Director Allard asked what are the services, what buildings are they handling. 

Brean indicated the following locations: (PDA Corporate Offices; Division of Ports and 
Harbors — Market Street Terminal; Dept. of Defense Air Traffic Control Tower), the Terminal will 
be added. Compass will provide daily service to the golf course and the clubhouse, including the 
restaurant. 

Mullen indicated that the restaurant and golf course is daily, some of the other locations 
will be once or twice a week. 

Director Allard inquired how often the other buildings are cleaned. 

Mullen responded, twice a week. 

Brean did indicate further that the terminal would be based on the flight schedule. 

Director Loughlin stated that we had this discussion four (4) or five (5) years ago about 
benefits, costs and quality and that Lynn is probably right about going back and forth. 

Brean indicated that there is a labor component; we value the benefited positions. We can 
struggle to get quality class operators, so if we want to create a fulltime position it would be 
preferred to have a heavy equipment operator to support the airfield. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

2. 	PSM Runway Reconstruction 

Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that in conjunction with the 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) Runway Reconstruction Project, the 
Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves and authorizes the 
Executive Director to: 

(1) accept a grant offer for the runway reconstruction at Portsmouth 
International Airport at Pease including up to $16,083,196; 

(2) accept up to $892,771.04 in matching funds from NHDOT Division of 
Aeronautics; 

(3) expend up to $892,771.04 in PDA matching funds; 

(4) authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Pike Industries 
for the PSM Runway Reconstruction project in an amount up to 
$22,598,687.36; 

7 



(5) authorize the Executive Director to enter into contracts with Hoyle, Tanner & 
Associates for the construction phase engineering services in an amount up to 
$1,274,100, and $43,000 for additional taxiway design; 

(6) authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with ADB Safegate 
for ALCMS equipment in the amount of $14,436.78; 

(7) authorize the Executive Director to execute a MCCA based upon cost sharing 
substantially similar to that described in this memorandum; 

(8) accept a grant offer for an FAA Reimburseable Agreement associated with the 
runway reconstruction at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease 
including $129,987 in AIP funding from FAA; 

(9) accept $7,221 in matching funds from NHDOT Bureau of Aeronautics; 

(10) expend $7,222 in PDA matching funds; and 

(11) authorize the Executive Director to enter into an FAA Reimburseable 
Agreement in the amount of $144,430. 

In the event that FAA offers a multi-year grant which would make funds for one or 
both of the additive alternates available with future year funds, the Executive Director is 
authorized to: 

1. Award the work of one or both of the add alternates to Pike Industries and 
HTA as necessary to hold prices and maintain the current schedule; and 

2. Make payment to Hoyle, Tanner and Associates in the amount of $43,000 for 
taxiway reconstruction design. 

The grant funding at the specified sharing would be realized at the time of the future grant 
awards; 

all in accordance with the memoranda from Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager dated 
May 8, 2019 and May 15, 2019. 

Discussion: 

Director Allard asked when does this start, and when does this end? 

Engineering Manager Maria Stowell (Stowell) asked to speak and explain the Motion and 
Replacement Motion. The two memos provide the Board with information that PDA asked of the 
FAA for funding and for approval to award contracts; also, if the FAA decided to provide a lower 
amount of funding then only award contracts based on that lower funding. Up to now, PDA has 
been successful in receiving discretionary money from the FAA and they have awarded the full 
amount that we have asked for. This year because of the bidding climate and prices coming in so 
high and further conversation with the FAA, FAA is doubtful they will be able to give us all of 
the money. We bid this contract on a base bid and additive alternates so we could break it up to 
the base bid and two add alternates. The FAA has indicated that it is doubtful we will get the 
money this year for the add alternates. So, the FAA is working with us to let us award the entire 

8 



contract (base bid and two add alternates) because we received good bid prices; we were one of a 
few airports in New England who received competitive bid prices. If we could award this now 
we could take advantage of the bids we got now. The approval that was sought last week was that 
if the FAA gave less than the full amount requested then we would only award contracts for that 
amount of money. However, the FAA has indicated that they could give us a multi-year grant 
(this year they would only give us money for the base bid but in the next year or two we would 
have entitlement money coming to put towards the add alternates because it is entitlement 
money). If it is discretionary money you can't spend it before the FAA gives it to you, but 
entitlement money we can award it now and be reimbursed later on. New memo is asking that 
instead of awarding contract based on what the FAA is giving us now, to allow us to award 
contract to HTA and Pike on the whole contract and one or two add alternates. Still looking at 
which if the two add alternates to award. Looking for Board to give approval to award the 
contracts knowing that this year's grant will not cover the whole thing but knowing in the next 
year or two PDA will receive grants covering the amounts for the whole project (base bid and two 
add alternates). 

Director Allard reiterated his first question of beginning date, ending date, completion of 
the project, what are the parameters. 

Stowell indicated we still don't know when we will receive the FAA funding (might 
receive the grant next month or so). After grant is received it will be necessary to go to Governor 
and Council for approval; don't anticipate signing the construction contract until roughly October. 
The first phase of the project will start in the fall, main paving of runway will begin in 2020 and 
hope to get most of paving done in 2020. One of the add alternatives may go into 2021; by the 
end of 2021 we will be done. 

Director Allard asked how the main runway will be paved with the activity that we have 
now. 

Stowell indicated that there are 8 or 9 phases to the project. The runway will be broken up 
into thirds for the project. When working on the middle we need to have a complete shutdown 
which will encompass two (2) weeks. Not sure if this will be two (2) consecutive weeks or one 
week with a break in between to land some aircrafts. There will be necessary night closures 
associated with the North and South apron segments of the project. 

Director Allard asked how this would affect the Air National Guard and the two airlines at 
the airfield now. 

Stowell indicated that there has been a lot of discussions and coordination between all. 

Brean indicated that the airlines and Guard schedulers have been informed. Without the 
two (2) week closure, would need to have nightly closure from 9 p.m. to 8 a.m. for the entire 
summer. After survey with airlines and Guard, it was decided that two (2) week closure was less 
burdensome. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

9 



IX. 	Executive Director's Reports/Approvals 
A. 	Reports 

1. Golf Course Operations 
a) 	Advertising 

Golf Course General Manager Scott DeVito indicated that the course has been open since 
March 31' and has had the best April ever. Limitations because of weather as to what is open, 
but as of last week all twenty-seven (27) holes are open. There are two hundred twenty-three 
(223) season pass holders out of the general capacity of two hundred fifty (250). Previous 
discussions with the Golf Committee has led to capping of the four (4) week pass to eighty-five 
(85); that capacity has been met. A waiting list has been established for four (4) week passes. In 
tournament mode with a couple of big events this weekend. 

Director Lamson congratulated Scott for the work done at the Golf Course. 

Mullen spoke to the advertising expenses associated with the Golf Course which are: 
CTM Media Group, Inc. for the period of May 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019 for 
distribution of brochures to locations in the specified market sectors in the amount of $2,200; and 
WOSQ — FM Portsmouth (iHeartMedia) with one hundred ninety-five (195) 30-second scheduled 
spots for $3,420 in cash and $1,000 in trade. 

2. Airport Operations 
a) 	Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 

Airport Director Paul Brean reported that it was the busiest April in history, moving 
14,000 people through the terminal. This is primarily due to Allegiant committing to daily 
service over April school vacation and increased capacity on the newer aircraft. The month of 
April there was 1.2 million gallons of fuel flowage which is a direct reflection of the increased 
activity as well as the capital investment of Port City ground handling equipment. Port City 
purchased several fuel trucks in support of the military operations as a result of a "spin up with 
geo-politics". Revenue for fuel flowage fee is up about 2%. Revenue parking is strong, went into 
a small overflow lot during the overlap of Massachusetts and New Hampshire April vacations. 
Under budget for the parking implementation project which was budgeted at $250,000. 
Therefore, utilizing $30,000 of that budgeted money to upgrade Lot C to get it ready for revenue 
parking which will provide an additional two hundred sixteen (216) spaces which should be 
sufficient until next spring. With the revenue received it will help the terminal project long-term. 

Brean commended Chairman Smith as the NH Congressional delegation was able to 
secure $2 million in supplemental grant for the terminal project. PDA had previously received 
$1.8 million in entitlement and this is an additional $2 million. There were many grant 
applications received from various airports nationwide for supplemental projects; the primary 
focus is rehabilitating pavement. PDA is glad it was received for the terminal project and will 
definitely help the cause as PDA is are self-funding the project so every dollar counts. 

Planesense continues to grow and received a third Pilatus PC24 jet in April which brings 

10 



its fleet total to 39 aircraft. 

Brean introduced Eric Fletcher, Director of Government Affairs, and Daniel Meier, 
Manager Airport Affairs of Allegiant Airlines who were providing a corporate update. Allegiant 
individuals and Brean will attend the "Hit the Decks" in downtown Portsmouth to kick off to 
summer with other members of the Chamber Collaborative. 

Daniel Meier indicated that he is the liaison between the airline and the airport. He has 
discussions with Paul and Dan Fortnam on routes to fly, data received for review/research and 
the interests of Allegiant when it comes to terminal expansions, ticket counters etc. 

Eric Fletcher stated he was available to answer any questions or to find out the answers if 
necessary. He further spoke of his role when dealing with local/state/federal government to 
answer questions and offer airline feedback. He has been involved with Allegiant since it 
reentered the market with PDA in 2013. With the current routes, have done approximately 
80,000 passengers since last year (when first arrived Allegiant did approximately 10,000 
passengers so the growth since has been consistent). Allegiant's core focus is to provide a 
service to vacationing travelers. However, over the last year have seen about a third (1/3) of 
passengers are coming to New Hampshire to vacation without being marketed, so there is a dual 
draw. PSM fares are lower ($91 average without options and fees) than surrounding airports. 
Allegiant has transitioned from MD8Os to Airbus 319s and 320s which are 25% more fuel 
efficient and more seats. 

Director Allard asked if Allegiant was planning on expanding to other locations. 

Meier indicated that Allegiant was planning on expanding but provided no locational 
information. 

Director Allard indicated that Allegiant is currently going up and down the east coast and 
wondered if there was a potential for routes to the west. 

Director Bohenko asked how Meier arrived from Las Vegas, Meier responded through 
Logan. 

Meier indicated that a lot has to do with the business model. Traditionally, Allegiant is 
an out and back flight. Other airlines overnight its crew and return next morning; Allegiant's 
flight crews and planes return to home base every night. With FAA restrictions on pilots' flight 
time on duty days it restricts the locations where flights are able to go and return each day. Due 
to the location of Portsmouth and travel to Las Vegas — geographically is too far to stay within its 
current business model. If there is a change in the business model, it may become a reality. 

Director Allard asked about the impact Frontier has on Allegiant. 

Fletcher responded that it is early at this point as Frontier just started in December of last 
year. 

11 



Meier indicated they have not seen an impact at this time as the routes are slightly 
different and Allegiant has a better market presence. 

Mullen stated that previously there had been discussions on going to Cancun or locations 
of that sort and asked if there were any additional thoughts on that expansion. 

Meier indicated that they have filed paperwork with DOT from anywhere in US to 
anywhere in Mexico. At this time routes and dates are being explored and a lot will go into the 
considerations (where the planes coming from — going to, routing, hours of travel, getting crews 
back to base same day, etc.) 

Fletcher indicated that there are no plans at this time but they are looking at the options. 
It is anticipated that with the research received from Meier's team, additional information will be 
forthcoming by the end of the year. 

Dan Fortnam stated that the answer may be to set Portsmouth up as a base. 

Fletcher indicated that a crew base is always a goal; Allegiant's goal is to grow market to 
20 flights per week for consideration of crew base. 

b) 	Noise Line Report 

There were a total of four noise inquiries in April, 2019. Three of the inquiries were 
for fixed wing aircraft and one inquiry was for a rotor-wing aircraft. It was determined that 
one of the fixed wing inquiries was concerning a single engine aircraft flying who had 
permission to fly in the class D airspace for a photo shoot. The last two fixed wing inquiries 
were concerning the noise from a group of F-16's deploying overseas. The fourth caller was 
inquiring about a red helicopter flying over downtown Portsmouth. 

Chairman Smith indicated that if it weren't for the well-developed grant application 
provided by Paul and staff, PSM wouldn't have received the funding of the grant. 

3. 	Residential Housing Committee Report of April 18, 2019 meeting 

Chairman Smith spoke to the recent Residential Housing Committee meeting of April 18, 
2019. The Committee met with various developers to speak to ability and the interest of housing 
on Pease. Chairman Smith described their (developers) comments as tepid. 

Hinchee indicated that the developers are always interested, but a project such as this 
would have to meet their financial models and concerns; they also had concerns on the 
environmental conditions. 

Mullen indicated that the speakers spoke to the lack of a retail component necessary to 
support housing / apartments which would be a detriment to this location. 

12 



B. 	Approvals 
1. 	Airline Data Inc. Database and Software Lease Agreement 

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development Authority 
Board of Directors hereby approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a 
lease with Airline Data Inc. of Dallas, Texas for proprietary information to be used for air 
service development at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM"). The lease will 
be for a three (3) year commitment commencing as of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. 
The fee associated with this lease will be $15,600 for the first year and $7,800 per year for 
the second and third years; all in accordance with the memorandum of Paul Brean, dated 
May 2, 2019 attached hereto. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver 
of the RFP requirement based on the following reasons: 

1. Airline Data Inc.'s Airport Catchment Analytics Data is the only database 
that contains pre-adjusted ready to use point of origin sales passenger and 
revenue data by U.S. airports. This dataset contains data from every U.S. 
airline and is compiled from a variety of airline ticketing sources that ensures 
full inclusion of ultra-low cost passengers from virtually every potential 
booking channel. 

2. Due to the varied seasonal schedules of airlines serving PSM, access to timely 
data is critical to determine and implement seasonal service changes. Airline 
Data Inc.'s Hub Data Set is a web based application that provides real time 
data that is always accessible to the subscriber allowing the airport and 
airline to converge quickly and make fast educated decisions. 

3. Airline Data Inc.'s Airport Catchment Analytics Data is the only data suite 
in existence that accurately quantifies such data in a credible pre-adjusted, 
ready to use format. PSM would be unable to internally adjust a 
conventional database due to the small Air Service Development Team at 
PSM. 

Note: This motion required 5 affirmative votes. Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by 
roll call vote; motion carried.  

2. 	Bills for Legal Services 

Director Torr moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development Authority 
Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of 
$28,165.00 for the following legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority: 

13 



Sheehan Phinnev Bass + Green  
Through March 31, 2019 	 $ 116.00 
Through March 31, 2019 	 $ 6,351.00 
Through March 31, 2019 	 $ 1,276.00 
Through March 31, 2019 	 $20,219.00 
TOTAL: 	 $28,165.00 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

X. 	Division of Ports and Harbors 

Geno J. Marconi, Division Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) was unable 
to attend the meeting. Chief Harbormaster Tracy Shattuck (Shattuck) attended in Director 
Marconi's absence and reported on Division activities, and the approvals sought before the Board 
represent the current business at the Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH"). 

A. 	Reports 
1. 	Port Advisory Council 

Shattuck reported that the Port Advisory Council met on April 4, 2019 and the minutes of 
the March 6, 2019 are self-explanatory. 

2. 	FTZ Annual Report 
a) Millipore Corporation 
b) Textiles Coated International 

Shattuck reported that the FTZ report was due on the 10 th  of this month, it was submitted 
on time and DPH submitted the report as the grantee. The necessary proprietary information was 
submitted by the businesses on time; DPH doesn't have additional information. 

3. 	Commercial Mooring for Hire Permit Application — Diane Szmyd — 
Mooring Permit #6292 - Sagamore Creek 

Shattuck reported that a request was made by property owner Diane Szmyd who advised 
that the property is rental property and that the new tenant wished to have use of the mooring as 
part of the rental. Therefore, Ms. Szmyd was guided through the process of submitting the 
Commercial Mooring for Hire paperwork and Shattuck recommended approval of this 
application as it meets all criteria. 

4. 	Piscataqua Maritime Commission - Right of Entry and Waiver of 
Fees for the "Sail Portsmouth 2019 Event, Tall Ships America Eagle", 
Market St. Terminal 

14 



Shattuck reported that a Right of Entry has been provided for the Tall Ship events in the 
past and the ROE commences the day before the start of event and day after the event concludes. 
The Tall Ship event is a juggling act for DPH but it has been done it in the past and DPH will 
resurrect previous plans. 

5. Riverside Marine Construction d/b/a Riverside & Pickering Marine 
Contractors Right of Entry — Buoy Project — Market Street Terminal 

Shattuck reported that this Right of Entry is in association with a Buoy Project being 
performed by UNH and Appledore Marine Engineering, Inc. for the use of 1/2 (one-half) acre of 
laydown area and Barge Dock for the "Buoy Project". This project is being performed as a means 
to measure the rise and fall of the ocean waves as a means to see how much electricity may be 
generated from waves. The ROE will be for the period of April 1, 2019 to September 30, 2019 
and the month fee for use of the area will be $2,625.00, and any applicable terminal fees. 

6. Bait Cooler Right of Entry, Portsmouth Fish Pier 

Shattuck reported that PDA provided a ROE to Bait Cooler for the use of purpose of cold 
storage of fresh and frozen lobster bait in the existing cooler at Portsmouth Fish Pier. The ROE 
will commence on June 1, 2019 through May 31, 2020, with 1 (one) 1 (one) year option, June 1, 
2020 through May 31, 2021; the fee for this term will be $9,100.00. 

B. 	Approvals 
1. Right of Entry - Juliet Marine — Amendment to Extend Lease 

Director Lamson moved and Director Loughlin seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and consents to issuing a Right of Entry 
("ROE") to Juliet Marine Systems, Inc. ("Juliet") for the use of the facilities at the Market 
Street Terminal for the purpose of storage and loading of vessel; all in accordance with the 
memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated May 7, 2019. Discussion: None. 
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

2. Right of Entry, Swell Oyster Co., Hampton Harbor Marine Facility 

Director Ton moved and Director Loughlin seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete 
negotiations and execute a Right of Entry with Swell Oyster Company to use the building 
for storage of gear, sorting and retail sales of oysters in support of its oyster business in 
association with Swell Oyster Company's Right of Entry upon the final sale of the building 
through June 30, 2020, two (2) one (1) year options to extend the agreement in the sole 
discretion of the Executive Director; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated May 8, 2019. 

Discussion: Director Lamson asked if the oyster company was out of Hampton. 
Shattuck indicated that it is an aquaculture program out of Hampton. 

15 



Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

3. 	Right of Entry - Smitty's State Pier Lobster Pound, Hampton Harbor 
Marine Facility - Cooler 

Director Bohenko moved and Director Loughlin seconded the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete 
negotiations and execute a Right of Entry with Smitty's State Pier Lobster Pound to locate 
a 12'6" x 12' deck to hold a 8' x 10' foot cooler for the storage of seafood for the period of 
June 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the Right of Entry shall run concurrently with 
Smitty's State Pier Lobster Pound's existing Right of Entry; all in accordance with the 
terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, 
dated May 8, 2019. 

Discussion: Director Allard asked about this ROE being for a thirteen (13) month period. 
Hinchee indicated that she was advised by Deputy General Counsel Anthony Blenkinsop that it 
is to bring it in concurrence with another Right of Entry. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.  

XI. Special Events 

A. 	Report of 5k Road Race for Girls on the Run New Hampshire 

Mullen reported that Girls on the Run will be holding a 5k road race on June 1s t  and this 
year Medtronics will allow them to utilize their facility to stage the event. 

XII. New Business 

No new business. 

XIII. Upcoming Meetings 

Residential Housing Committee May 23, 2019 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Golf Committee June 17, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Finance Committee June 17, 2019 @ 8:30 a.m. 
Board of Directors June 20, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Residential Housing Committee June 27, 2019 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

XIV. Directors' Comments 

16 



avid R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

XV. Adjournment 

Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board meeting. 
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried. Meeting 
adjourned at 9:15 a.m. 

XVI. Press Questions 

There were no questions from the press who attended the meeting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

P:\BOARD  MINUTES\2019\5-16-19.docx 

17 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE: Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91-A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that "If a 

member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session, 

violates this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the 

objection, the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue 

to participate in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A:8, IV or V. Upon such request, the 

public body shall record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in 

nonpublic session, the objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall 

include only the members name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a 

reference to the provision of RSA 91-A:3, II, that was the basis for the discussion." 

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non-

public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing 

the following: 

1. Personnel matters (Hiring/Firing/Compensation), 

2. Security Matters; and 

3. Sale or lease of property. 

Note: 	 Roll Call Vote 

N \RESOLVES \ 2019 \ Non-Public (Personnel, Security & Sale Lease of Property) 06-20.docx 

0000  TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.org  



Ow-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 u 	Is•; 0 2, •E: 0 1 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, Paragraph III, the Pease 

Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the 

divulgence of information discussed at the non-public session with the 

exception of item Xl. (B)(2) of its June 20, 2019 meeting related to: 

1. Personnel matters (Dismissal, promotion or compensation of 

public employee), 

2. Security matters; and 

3. Sale or Lease of Property 

would, if disclosed publically, a) affect adversely the reputation of any 

person other than a member of the public body itself; b) render the 

proposed actions ineffective; c) compromise the emergency functions 

pertaining to security; 

and agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held confidential until, in 

the opinion of a majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid 

circumstances no longer apply. 

Note: This motion requires 5 Affirmative Votes 

N ',RESOLVES \ 201 9 \ Confi den ttaIttv 06 -20.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

1n/‘,;, W p 	S CI C? V 0 r g 





II 

C1..„„  

Al 

LLI 

a 	 a 	 ■ 

p 
O 
0 

41 
i 

• !,t1 

••••-• 

:•-•! 

. ,,,, 	r'.. 

Q..; 	"."...) 	',0 

01 
•.`11 

.•.,) 
•7-1 

-2, i1 
,--01 

.•••••1 

:241 

03 

1- 
co 
...... ..., 

•"1 -  

cri 
,,--1 

r-i.  

H 

N.. 
cr, 

c.--, 

r--I 

,sy , 

Li 4., 

7-1 

41 
CD 

.1- 

"y) 

7'1 
'43 

C' 

. 

:71 

4.7) 

•:••••:i 

CD 

-4 

CO 
CD 

ic' 

10-) 

)  1,'") 

C7'3 

) 

	

:.- • " I ,...; 	',.0 	 0 	,-D 	'3', 	 r•-• 	 '0 	1(3 
'-.0  
,;:. 

	

,,,.... 	',1 	 I'd 	 -,--1 

U.1 

IJ 

,r‘Ri 

Z 
LIU Ce 

Cl" 

f.") .  

'43 

7%4 

3-; 

ti 

12.3 

.;5 

'21  

.12 

C.1 
!!..: 

V/ 

ILI

‘•  

2.1 



1.1") 

',0 
r^, 

CO-  

c!,) 

06.  

!..)). 	'', 41 
.',0 	;7',..i 
, ,.-I 	!:-.•<• ,..,: 	',-,+1 

;-.. 	;.:.1 
-.C.::: 	'-) 
-.....:) 	..a. 
:1; 	'1;, 

r<1 

03 
l'i 4"--, 

i---/ 

C) 

' T1 

.,,, - 	•-■ 

	

4q.:. 	' -'4 
'',.': 	11-' 

	

6,1 	'''' 3  

	

.--; 	!;:il 
' ,4 1,2 

	

)4. ■ 	;'-. 

	

'4:, 	'.'). 

C•1 

4-`.1 
I/1 
'..)-") 

).O.) 

11, 

d) ) 

:•:;) 

CO 

C.;) 
1.1.1 <?4,1 

Li')  
.1---1  

-r-I 

0r)  

)).4)!<■ 

r 

•:•••-1 

/.1:4 

QJ 
QD 
(.7.1 

):41 

4.1) 
f„)) 

0 (.3 

...-. 

-,..!1 	,L1 
;4-9 	:-') 
<2; 	';'i 

1.0 
(N 

01 

do 

:0 
';', 1 
C,  'I 

4,1 
OD 

10 

CO 
CO 

CO 
1- 

00 
N 

N 

Li) 
GO 

4-.4 

r-4 

(,) 

<41" 

CO 
,...(') 

1r) 

C,31 
N 
)11 

,O, 

C, 11 
:et 
rri, 

. 71 

a 

r_ 

:3 



C)  
0 

• 

i i 

••• 

c s; 

`.4j 

7  ..1 
7_1, j 	a"... .----, 	I-7 'ir.. :C 	C.) .>- 	Li) 
i7i) 	4'..I 

Cril Cril 

Lc) 

iJ J 

ri1) i) 

11J 

	

(1).:C 	ili 
( r) 

Cf) 
±.; 

17.,  !Li 
(.2 	ELI 

(ID c'n 

	

'L3t 	 U1 LLI 	 riF  1LI rF 

( ...0 	'[..:) 	;7,1 
1 

( ...0 	'[..:) 	;7,1 
1 

 C 
0 

;.) 	 C 
0 

(,) ‘',11  
c?"1 

(,) ‘',11  
c?"1 

0-; 
';:‘D,J 	 if") 	CD 	!..11-C 

0-; 
';:‘D,J 	 if") 	CD 	!..11-C 

I-- 1 

	

'75 	Lcit 
r.; 

I-- 1 

	

'75 	Lcit 
r.; 

if) if) 

if)) if)) 

Ls') 



6 ,n 

	

8 :3, 	!- -.3 0 
:. 	2. - 	.c.= :,,3 .̀,' .'2 	-..' 'f.'2  ....-....,,L. c' ,:ti ' '" 	" ' .. ,- .1 , ]5 L 

1 	',-.1 ..E7  
, 	-i ,..: 0 	,-,J. ., " 
-51-: 	,..I 

C. 



71'; 	ft.1 

:3 

'LD q) 
➢ 

) 

(1) 

CD 
CD 

I 	• (V) ,r 
1'211 

CO 	l 

f.3.) 

513 

..1; ;! 	22 , 21 ,,... 
:73 

!Li 
r;:17 	1.1 

f33) 
Lu 

;;', 

g1.7, 

0 

f ., 

•I 

-it 	K. 
 it 

—I 

i''', 	LC; 	CA 

,•-■ 

-...1 	Of  
) 	. '4... 	,.-.) 	U..1 	.:'.) 	j 	„1 

IA_r•-•- ', 	 7. 	 'ID 	1; 

L.L.1 

1, ! 	f'n 	C.31 	 . 

1.-:, 	 .:.) 
 

74 J 
,....) 	 ',7, 	i-Li 

11 	
;2'...:71 

;;;:. 	 Of 

.,  

'"i 

.....:1 	CD 
	1 	;.1  

; 	IC)  (',;) 

f.2 

--.1!:! 
,-2.-..; 	.,...... 	,---1 	,.:::-.) 	,-..--..) 	1,--, 	'g..il 	';;;■ 1 
',— t!. ■ '',I,..i 	,.--,-: 	-.1 

,. 
7.4 ' ;', 

Cc; 

, 	 . 
fd; 

;.• 

 

r.1.1 17; 

 

, 	 . 

Of 

. . ; 



7,-;! !— 
CC!

r-I 	71. 

;7" 2) 
4.1 

1.11 	0 
CY■ 

• 	I- 

31.1 

14.4 

0 

1:1•A 

f.-.2.) 	a. 	Li_ 

a. cc.) 

	

0 	:72) 

	

-, 	 f...C1 

, 

0 

17: 

LU 

CO 

 

1-1 

 

 

 

   



f•-• 	(.7 
LI) 	CO ;71 !zr-1 

0 	 :rd.; 	LIJ 	.I- 
-..-, 	i- 	

,--,, ,T., 
.7. 	 --I 7.,, 	':-,) 

_A 
'.1- 	II: 	!"-: 

co 	.:C ili!I
0 

Lu 	.,c 	:...1: 
"T.) 	:L. 	IF 

'*1 

-_--- 	a<  

Cfi 	(f) 2. 
,..,. 	,..., 

0 	(2! 0 
ca 0 
.:r, 	c.r.. 
C. a 

U:i 5 
2, u_ 
!:-. 	,.,- 
L f2,=, 
,,,t) 	':,,,.-..! 
6.1 	:2..I, 
GI: ii. 

■ :::: 

7.,,,,  
(i;j2, 
u_t 

.: 
y.,) 1 

!A..; 
Cr) 

91 Li) 

‘•;1 
CI) 

CI) 	rq 
Lc) 

(.71 	(,) 	 .041 
‘11 
!c) 

I,.;)  
,Ji 

 

.-,-- 	- 	a' 
:-77; 	'..t - ( D 0 	7-,  

I.L.: 	 -Ii 7' 7---= N 	,.-1 

;,..' 	
1....... 	-, ,, 	 1.%) 

,..g 	
0 	(„9 ';!=.1  -% 

?-2: I 	\ H7.5 \;';' 	f.,.. ...), CZ; :15: i':', 
:1' .A 	;:',- 	

r, — 0.1 	,"..::: 
-..r. 	z).1 '',J) 	'-- 	, . 	..,.,, 	0 ;„",) ,..4 H- ,„3 	•— ,.. 

. 	7.,. C-2,  ' - -. 	-4 

7.7-• 	
& ' - 2. I7? 

:i-j 	
-'' 

-"'" 	
7, :-■ 	

(,...) 	:7‘ 	,..., 	a: :---- 
,...,..., 4-.., ,....) 	:1,, 	\--,1  

. 	 h- 	..: M !,,,J '2_1 	4, - '  --- 	-- 	? 	i-.'' 	!-- 	fj) > fjf, 'I'zI: CIf ,L1 	;„L! 	1JJ !LI < II:', 7 	,:::: 

,..,..-;,i 	,..-.;) 	,f.,-).1 „..,. 	 to! 	,;',.s :,.r., 1  .,.--qi 	,..,-; ,,-;. 	,i 	 ?..! 
,,, 	 :-,i 

%,:..i 	,,,, 

"t! 
3:).! ;1•:; 

f'D 

. 	 , 

.74 



Z 

z z 

C

11.1 

ad 

ce,D 

',Li 	.7'44  

52 

c'd 

;LI 

) 

!.;1 

!!..1 

C's 

LC) 

C) 

C") 

(,) 

{Cc) 

ri 

Cr) 

01 

C') Cc") 

.71 

, C) 

Cc) 

0'1 
Q 
1.-C) 

N. 
1, 1 

CY-) 

0-') 

,C 

1. 

CD 

CC 
J" 
13 

Pc") 

Ccl 
CC 

CC 

C•1 

CO 
Cr) 
S 

CO 

c 

Cc) 

-4-  

Cl 
Cy) 

C',1 

ill 
cn 

Cr,  

(NI 
0-) 

CD 
CO 

I,C) 

CD 
) 

01 

IN 

1 -  
CC 

L:-) 

Cy-) 

c"- I 

CO 

 
-1-  

,.C.) 

C,/ 

CD 
i',. 

Li) 
CY) 

CO 

TT' 

CN 
,Wt 

1-4 

1`... 

rl 

CC 
Cr) 

•• • 

.r) 

C") 

'1-  

'1) 

in 
C`.1 

C) 
"-I 

1' 
C-, ) 

c•.1 

) 
LC) 

CO 
C'') 

cn 

CPI 
■, 11 

,31.kral 
LO1 

) 	
CD CD 



01 

4,.., 
4.3 `.1 i t'41 

.1-1 t.,) 
o '',) :e4 1-1) -,-.j.  
Wr Z . 

...„j ,,.1, 	CO 
.4'4; 
.,:r1 

.,.1., 
A 

;1: 

I:14  
': , t3  '17" 

41,4 

LC) 

 

L11 	 CO 
1' • 	0 

p-, 11 
Ps) 

Lf) 
(N 

CPI 4.23 	14; 	C.D 
4•71 - 	 (.0 

4, 1 	 ,-1 	 4,/ • 

P.. ? s 

::.■: '.0 
-0: 
:+0  

0... 

..,r; 
P 1 ) 

',.1-i 
,21 

:.!..■ ..'!; 
, ..."-*.): 

?..". (.;  
C o 

• 'Pt 
CD 

'7) 
• t!LP.) 	1- 	(...! 

'r  :[..1 	.::-, —. : -E:.. „....., 	 ...---I 	1 ..i 
, i_ I . 	77  

.:1- 	..---... 	7, 	:7,  

.!' 	
'... ‘,:: 

(-, 1 -, 5:1 ,---7 _.; .i'..) -.7..,, , Li 

III 	CD 
• 4.1) 	CN 	CO 

...... J 
4  D 

', ,) 
i J : 

' ,..) 
'.:Z:. 
,.....1- , 

' '.) 
..:1., 

• •.• 

1.1.1 

0 

, 

17,FP' 

!JP; 

• -■ 

,-, .__, 	-.-, e..;) 	— 	 ,..... 	,.,-, 

.:::, 

,... 

.7D 	■-.1] 	?. _ 
.̀.:-: 	.7,-  

._. 

-51 

:-.... --` 
- j 
,1", 

'11) 

''''-- 	ci:(...7: 	:;:::;' 

!--- 
: 1 , 

P..): 	

k -) 	(1) 
,.., 23 	I 

...i'_ 

'":,... 

..-:..1-).: 	0 	-L,::". 	..:'.. 

--; 



! U 
!JA 	 I ,1 
,..7 	 --., 
■.,. 	 '41: 
11: 

1..., 	 .--t ...I ---r.: 1-,..1 ::,..- 
, ....)1  !,,,..i 	 77,  
„...d 	 14.1 	

j, 
7.3 

Y
,.41 	 ;..?..... 	 (..'L 	?CI!. 
I.1
.1 . -..,- i.:I... Cr: L.!.. f .1 ..,, 

,— . 	.1 
iii ri) 
,---, 	1-.; 

U.; 
i.17., 

„, 	..-?.- 	LU 
L.) 	

VI a j ... 	0 	 ,,,,, :-,:.4 	!--, 	_•I  
1,... 	(.1) 	 l'4.,), 	i 

L.L1 	a. 	. 	r- 
,,, 	C.:1 	LU 

.CI. 	Z 	...-3z; "^" 	LLI 
a:. 	 ",...A-' !..0 

LU 	."-. 	r7 :.-i 	p.i 	t._. 	Ali 	l'i^: .... 	 ---' 
471 	,,-.J 	:.7 

u ) 	fa. 
 

1.^ 
WI  
'..1.4 	F". 	..... 	.-- 

,..4 
1 	C.... ...) 	

.4 	-f"'"" 

. e.. 	..F 

(.5 	...,.. - tz 

	

CD' 	 '11) 

	

LLI 	Di 	 :1=5 	ID 

	

4 '2.7 	 V) a. 
vi 

	

® 1,,,t4 	Ili 	!-,..il 14 	> 	.> 	 V.) 	rs." 	,-- 

	

< 	 1'. 
-r, 	C..) 	 'f--":-3 	< -..,,,, 	0... 	 4:4 	 u 

	

G
;..-7...: 	..-, 	-, 

	

,..., 	a 	0 144 

	

11..i 	:„.. 

	

,a,.. 	o., 	c) 	rj 	ry > 

	

3--7 	 it,i 	J 	;1.- 	ri 

	

.....1 	---, 

	

..,. 	.,.... 	:.;,.. 	0 	0 
;-,.. 	,....., 

'.:e. 	,....., 	,e 	--.4 	CZ. :.:4 	,S.: 	17: 	4 ,.. 	:..) 	(---, 	(-, ;,...) 'll.) 	!A 	 U 	i':-.-1. 

.41  

 

C.%) f I N 

:=1 

 

;NI 
V-1 

:D COI 001 

" 



Jg-,1 

(I) 
(1) 
LU 

0 

z 

C 

z 
0 

0 

0 

c4 

Z 
E 

z 
(A 

0 0 
‘`.1 	C•.1 

7 9 0  CO (0 

2 2 72, C.()  

!7..". 
141 
,74 

!..e 

n 

e?, 

_;"..%- 
:5; 
ic 

(.7) 

, r 

0 

f 

• 

• 

--r 

u,„1 

FY. 

17-r; 

U.1 
(21 

'1/1 

7.) 

;.L.1 
.57  

5-  

;77 

' 	00 

37  



%w •-- 
: a .- t I -1 

LL 25, 
) ."4" 	(D :7' 
...;:k  

:44 

04 	:c 
'''' 	

i-- < 
tr) 7.-i: 

t'J 
'h-.4 

..:':Z' tt 
''.4  4! 	 X.: 
-, 3 lict 	';--- 
3,1». Zf 	ti.. 7.-D 
,'):,̀) ,... ' 	CD CD 

-..., 

.•!,1 	'-',, 	
,C V) 
I-I I-- 

am o\   
.4)  ,,-;  

,..i., 
k1,1 .4 
.::', 	..----'3 ,,, 
qi 

7.4 

if) LI-1 

''.4r. -,,-- 	r---, ,,v i...i 

' 17, 
i--, 	

" 
t,... -,,, , .....-, .4 ,z.i „:„.) ...... 5,,o 

. '4! 'J ;:::: 
NM ,rca 

t t..1 	.., 	?... '''''. 

	

«, 	
'''':), :, Li 	:L'D -,.% 

-', 	m,.. :...1 j.:: :.' 	,r,.., 

	

,:t.. U4 P° 	
....1 	;. .) ,,, 

.f.:1 	'71.., 	.).3 •)),1,, .',;', !;.. ',.,)' Yr-i. 
:,..4 , 4.,  -.... 	, - .„.; 	

,7: :.....-i 
A,i, ,..4 

L.0 

LC( 

p , 
Co 

,-, 	 —, 	 N 
Ch 	Ch 	ch 	 81 	u.--) 	-,  , 	 4i). 

st 	 Cr; 	iO 	 a 
.11 	 7,  

..-?, 

Ar. 
0 
a. 
LW 
3: 
I-
CJ 

(..0 	:0 	 I ; 	c,j 	,......... 	 i-. 
1 	 (.0 T-I 	,....f 	 cn 	cof ,--4 	—1 	 c,..i 	,---1 	.:,,,i 	 UJ 

1- 1 T.I 1 j 
0.:: 
< 
27. 
(-) 
(,") 
1/40 
.91.  

114 

(3) 	Q 
iN 	1 ,1 

CD 	CD 	CD 	 CD 
(N 

id- 

0 A-
LL) _I 7S 

b 



-; 
CD 

(.41 U CD 
CID 

 

r.. 	CD 	 CO 
(,) 

C, 1 	(Z11 

Gl 	CO 
CO 	

, 
Lri 

'.L) 
nl 

ri 

LJ 
•O" 

 

 

ah 

  

CO 

  

‘7■" 	I 
Lc) CO 	 C') 	 CO 	GI 
(7, 1 

rn 	 jY 
N. 	 (2) 

LIJ 
(It 

1. 4) 

H .7„: 	Li 

".%.1 7P: 	, 	...,...-J 	:I) (f) .".1. 

-... 	 ,..-.4 

:i5
!-1 
	

: 

-1. 1  F 	
3 	. 	,-, 

5J 	.7 

 ..,, 

ij 	11:'j ',.i 	
7.,:.) „ 	, 	''', 

;;-..;/ 	''.,] 	) 	

Ill 

,L-- .5. 
i! ;id 	'---t- :t ! 

!,,;;-! ?.,, 	;,..!.) !' 	'1 	! 

	 -LI 
0 P-, i./ 

':-:.' 	' *''. -:-.1, 
:4. 

CD 	Ln 	T- ■ 	 V) 

7,7 	 OD 

!f) LU 

(,) 

.;!.% 	!tf."  

s„) 

1 	 in  CO 

	

UJ U..! 	CO 

l 
 i 	 _ 	— :, 	CO 

 

.70 	CO 	OD 

  

4 

21 

V. ! 
C.0 

r, 	LC) 
Cq 	If) 

  

 

✓ 

tli 

  



„„ 
a 
CD 	--' , , 1-- 	U 	 ;:i3 	

.1•.) 
ln 	'?) 	''') 0 	: ,1:: L.:- -Li 	,i 

 
N. 

, (,) •-,-.Z (.9 
y ri) LJ.J al. 

, Ir. :"-- F±D, 

c,-; 
NI 1,, 

If) 	•;1-1 

1 en 	;,,, 	.---. 1- 	-.,-, 	01 
N if.) 

Ln 

Cs! 	Li 
',A) 

 

CO

i 	i',. ,--, 	h. 	 In 
'41 	CO 	en 0 	Cyl 

CI 
11;) 

 

7-7: 

r73 

 

 

% / 	
1-1 

-4 

LLi ar.  

[Li 

Cc) 	0-1 
N 
C)) 

if) 	c-1:  
0) 

r,  

1.51-  

-47 • 

• 

•;,,, 

ir 

(7.1 

LC_ 

- 	

- 

To 
H 



ro 	■ .7D 	OD 
CD ,X) 

<31 

151 

'01 
00 

C) 	C) 
CD 

3 93 

Cn 
LIA 

LU 

o 03 
UJ 

, 

0 -J 
-J 

KJ') 

r-i 

172. 

, 

C) 

' 



CO 
(C) 	eA co 	kr) 

-J 

0 
F- 

4r) 

.61 

CD 1
0 Ill 

CA 
Ul 	VN 

1.4 

LU 
(.1) 

a 

  

N 	 a) CO col 00 	m CO 
U3 Tt 

.., 
F- UJ tU 

, co 
u1 0 0 
>- m 

CO Ul 01 ,1 
CD mD 01 
CD 	cs1 

ol 
) 	a- 

 W  ..,._ 

O1 
a Ul 
2: 	O...1 	U) 

01 0_1 	W 	11.1 	cr:. 
> 	u... 	Lt.1 

Ili - UJ U- ra 
ce (...) al 	. -.3 	:I- 

0 !LI 4^ 	UJ 
MJ UJ CO 

Ll rY  LU 

SI
M

U
LA

T
O

R
 

CT1 
LO 

{JO 
LU 

CO 	 CO 
(.0 	,4 

so 	(0 

tr) 
CO 

CO 
cr 

co 

CO 	 CD 	CA 
LU 

X 

z 
0 

z 
LU 

I 
j :yea 

.LU 

0 

g 1E24  
11 

el 
0 

Z 
1"4  
‘r.* 

ULI U4  
X a 
vu 0 
144'1  
CC 

(i) 

(j) 

0 

0 

41- 

1g 

	

CO CD NA 	rq 
t-4 V {NI 	,11 	a 	CO {a 

ol 

V tO1 
0 LC) 	T.{ 	 01 	

::
I 1 

2! 	(-) 	 N 
UJ '24  - 	 -..1 
Ce ,,,5 ]?, 
ce. -,.. „ 
p - ',t  

CEO 

:0 5P CD 

'..11.--:',SU-1  

cn ,J) 	C2' '13 ' 'z o,Ti  c 1  P "::. oo  
iii 
v2 . w 	iii LU C" 6 

1 :7 4.(2  CZ 90 1  1,1 = _4 
1, -1, 
a Z 	1:  i1 T. 9-1:  5)  a-°4  T 2  CO-'( 	0 0 	0 6., ! .... 	,.,... „ 	0 ,,E., 

,k 

'0 	!Al 

",r 	cr, 

N. 	CO 	CO 	,T 

,4 	() 	'10 	CD 	c,0 

C0 	'CT.)! 

Ul 

rq 	{4-1 

CO 	CD 	It 

Lrj 	cq 

r,1 

cr) 

co 

CD 

CD 1 

•101 

Cr: 

Oe 



%) 
, -.1 
,D 
cl 
::.... 

,3") 
1 

CI1 
01 
,--i 

LO' 
 al 

CD 
N. 

tY.) 
C-..) 
C./ 

Ln 
,,i -  

r-I 
NJ 

• ,j- 
CO 
CO 

:-I 
N.1 
C's1 

..0 
,..c.) 
N. 

CO 
N 
s-1 

- -1  

,,i- 

 CO 

C11 
.: 
, t-  
..LS 
LO 
,...1 

CO 
LC/ 
NI 

--- 
CO 
-I 

N. 

9 
CS 
Ch 

CO 
1,, 

01 
CO 

CI) 
01 
, .0 
1-6-. 

 ,..1 

co 
01 
Ln 
CS 
+-1 
.--1 

1.0 
fn 

0.-  
C.) 

■-i 

.•-I 

( v) 

.-I 

NI 
CD 
cy1 
Li's' 
01 

i".1 
CO 
r..1 

CD 
s-1 

00 
(N 
0'...) 
t D 
00 

t"..1 
01 
CD,  

■.(1 

,-.1 

LO 	1-. 	(1.1 
LO 	In 	s-1 
re) 	1.C) 	NI 
N. 	

. 

0') 	
GS 

s-I 	s-1 	< s1 

rl 

CO 
CD 
OD.  

N.. 	Cr) 
,-1 ..„ 	r„ 	"-t 	71- 	r. 

Imo. .c..1 ,„... 	,I.,,f 	14 r 	,1  co  

N. 
1, 
 CC 
 

(vi.  co 
CO CD 

CO 

CD CO 
. -I 	s''. 1 
0-1 	c.-4 

,o 	 0-, 
CD 	.7.1- 	CS) 	Ln 
C) 	co 	 c•-) 

.--4 
,--i 

* * 

CO 

-I 

,Y; ry 
co 	C4 	11 	IL) 

1.(;) 	
c.0 

fij 	Cr-)  U-1 	uj 

;-= "64 0 	 a 

1  

!WA:4 

in 
:.,-) 
i'..! 

1, 1 
cy, 
Cis 

..-1 

.-- .1 

IS) 
c• -) 
s-i 

rq 
i 

0 1 
f.r, 
01 

c..) 
...0 
c-I 

,o 
fr.-.) 
.1-  

co 
cr, 
r-I 

cal 1-  rO in C'1 IV 
 - I C,  I C'.1 N-1 

C:1 

(109 .- , ■,,) r„::,-, I-I r‘l (r, -7I--  1 --- 
00 CO 1, 01 • -; Ill CO 01 co 
CO 1-  -.1' r•I cn ,..r"; cr■ Lo (31 

t.ri cx5 
-.., 

, - ..1 
rN 

CC) 
C I 

lic 
r-i 

Qr.) 
r, i 

!..!) 
T

, 

H. 0 
a. 

	C) 

1.1.1 1.1 
LO  

"..,) 
ryi j.) 

LC) 

10. 

       

       

    

• 

 

   

izt 

   



0.11 
C) tj LU r. 

1-0 ,r) 

	

CD '41 0 U1 1 	
U-I 

CD 	CV  Ln 	r1 	id) 	1-  (-1 	 r) 	'0) 	IC) 
141 

;7, 1 
;:$11 

Lf1 
1-11 
Cs/ 	01 

117 	("%1 
O G1 ‘, 1 

LU 

Ln ol 
0.) 	1.7) 

ri 

I.11 	rD 	, 
al 	(11 

;..,1 
til 	 7. LU 	 ;5 C; 11.1 

___:, 	UJ 	Cl... 	 0 
Cra' 	ID 	 17,;: 	CI 
,-; 	... 	(.5 
Ul il.1 	 .--, 

1 74 	a 	[.: 	u_ CJ) ..7) 

,,44 a' 	ril. 	a: 

J 

	.., -4 	
f 	‹ ;,-; !LI 	c4 	c: 	 C  - 

LL]  
0 ;II 	11 	2,.. 	o.... 	ey' 
Li 04. 

I-0 
171 

CD 	 Cl 

CO 	q - 

.11 	01 	 1.1-1 
CO 

C'D 

O 

..0 

(71 

CD 

0-; 	CD 
IT in 

N 



CY) 

'1- 	 Ln 

VI 

Cr) 
C) 
0 

nf. 	cf,DI 

qj 

':I; 

Cf) 

'.C) 4) '0! 

  

,..14 
..,1 

----, 
.--,. . -..), 	L.1 0 	1— 

U.; :—, 	!- - -4 	 .::!. --.: 	0 .._.1 
0 :-

2 ,..- ,,,i  
.1.:7: ,Tr, 

 

7g. 



; :- co  - 	,C _..., o 
Ili c.) 

3 .̀ 'l . !L..) '‘`I 
'"  

:,••• 	fi C  ', ) 

:•.1 	,.'1] CD r , 
•-...: 
t?' 

1--  rj) 
t!../ 	::C , 
,..., 	La' 6 

,-.J ri-; 
1.: 	a' :::; -Iv 	,r 0.) 
ZD 	...]  

- ,C •51-. 
:,,,,. 	CO 	 ' 
try,. ... 	. 

on 

CT. 
'AD 

C) 

II 

ui 
a 
3 

O 

ff  

u_ 

u-i 

11) 
0_1 
:D 

"..c) 

a 
Li 

fV 

LL: 
L. 

coi 

a.] 

=r. 

("1 Fi 

rl IJ 

'd] 
L.) 

Ll..1 (j) 	
C.1 

.:?..4 Z 	1 Li 
'.- 

-:› rr' 	•:: 4.  Y.14  

	

f ?-42,41 	i1.j.  -'77 	f.,,,3 ,,,,, ---:„7- 	,71 ,,,,?.. • . 
-,..... 	,--   

,., 	I:4 	u ,  fa.. 	r.',. ,...,.. 
'''''.2 	

LO ;''' 	L^I  
-j  

I./.1 :7 	--, %.;; :',:•-1: 	'1..1 f:21 	
i'''. 

	

0 ';'... ■ 	a. <7, 	Fc; '1. 	'...:-.) .'17. 	' .-7)--  
t] Ay 



17, 1 

,:, 

k' 

tj 

(!) 

0 

:4) 
11 
--1 

.,.1 

%f..) 

21 

M 

r,i 

1 

!-_,...1 

,-24 	CD 
Q ..1-..  

:.-1 	,17. 

2'  
,..,. 	

;.,-) 

.1-  

•..C) 

0 

CZ. 

2.f) 

2.) 

ff) 

0 

c, 

21 -  

C,) 

CO 

LL1 
-;) 

Ui 
LLI 0 

2_9 

N- 

• 
In 

I.LJ 

c. 
: 24 

ri 
r 

liJ 

'Cr' 
C't 

•"431 
d'll 

CA 

•f) 
11.1 

:73 

C) 

IL) 

""1 rrs 

Lt) 	cn 
L() 

fv) 

LI') 	2-.;) 
Lo 	(4) 
c71 	 •l 	1•1 
d 
,--1 	

,--I 

Ca  

Cf..) 
W 

C.) 
',11" 

(r) ti 

b 

1! i- 1 
Di 

,11 

U) 
Lu 

'--1 

la'..) 
1" 
d 

i- 

P -", 

(z:1 

-,: 
,..J 

:-.1. 
..74. 

, ,.,) 

,.'cLI.) 	,.::-:: - ; f.',.: 	iu 
.Z 	c)-  --, 

i7:) 0 	L ' 
i,..I.I., 	,.., ...21. 	ri; 
9: 	, 	7---:. 
,2, 	' 	• 	,-., 

;il: 	U)  

;4:  
:-.1 
!— 
,, 
•,,., 
, ,„„ 
-Y 

LI) 

C,01 
c‘i 

Lt) 

• • 
If) 
III0 

k1S.  

) 

Cr) i 2, - ) N. 
Lr) Co 21- 

(0 !..-.P) 
Li: .4 
Lr) 

LC) 

Cli 

LU 
i_l_l 	!If) 

'......1 L.-. 	 =IV,. 

::..-o "'-Sr LL.!..i'i 	-,"::: Cl% ''", 	:-.: --3"7„:: 	2-,- .,,,,i-,  
..'-.7:-. 
.. _,..i 

, - ,::,:: •-.1 

• - •-.!u 

!

▪ 

 . .j21 
...:.' 

  F. 	...7", i.11 	
:--- . i'.., 

-.._

1 
   

--.    

- r-  '--1  f • 	il  -'-' -:, P F". 
,,,l-i 7-7, 5: 2:: 	- rd 	'- ;•.:. 7-  ;if; ..." 	--. 	2.0 Li.) !•!:-1  :I:7; 
.;::.‹.;.. 0:::) i_.. 	,..:::,... 	.T..)-I ,:..72) 	i lti ) ,:::,.,... 00  j 

-..., 2./1 ,-2 -f:2: 	'-<- '...1.J 	I-1.; 	• -.-' _. 

P..) (-)- (7:"...) c...,ua' 	'.") ,-,...--:=, 	c..Y. 	
U..177 

T4-1. 

-74 



1.4.1
 

;"-
• 
	 III

 
0
 	 11.1
 
	 'C

) 
	

'
..-.1 	

14
 
	 0 I-U

 
	 ... - .1. 	 ,._, 	 Z

 
	 IJJ

 
	 .:,"

 

11.1
 ts)

 
7.4

 
	

....
4 7,1

 
2 , 4
 
	 En

 

. 4. '9
 

E.:.1
 

01 V
) 0. 

t_ 
>--

 z 
-I *.

 
< L

i 

ILI
 

SX
LL

I  :
.7

 

Z LE
 

(. 9
 .__I 	 ,....

 
,,...)

 
i--

 
- -. 7 - -  

IT !
 

.,..I
 ; , ..1 	 a
. 	 ..
••

 .4 w i— ■
 

,,- 

0 1
 a -  < 

0 _.1
 

1-4
 

.,5
 

,...
„ 

r4
 f....

1 
, 	 ff

, 

....
„ 

iT3
 ,...

. 

:-- 
z 

z. 
0 

n (.
..i tu

 

o 
a 

:!--
. 

	

..
.Y

.
D

 

	 4,  0 - LU
 

.. -- _..
, 

-.I
 .

-I 

	

IA, 	

tfl
 

IJJ
 

.4,
 tj
 

	

,'
'

f
i

.

5
 

	 Il
i ,

t '
7
. 

	 0
 
	 ILI

 
	 ir,

 

.9. 	 af
iLl

 
 OG

Il
i 

 7:
1

 

 12
 o z
 

 

W 111 
I-. r 
1 ci} 

La 111 1 IIJ ..--, 

< 	
'th' 

 
,._r) Ill 	 ?-.  < 

01 
t'N 

0 
01 

C‘I 

rI 

01 O cr 

01 

N 

4,11 

cOl 

(":11 	 CO 
(11' 

cc

• 	

c5.::;11 
(-

▪  

1 	 rl 

L1'..! 

r 
"... 

if) 

 Lf) 
If) h .4.1 

TY) 

1f) 
ILL L., 

1-7 .10 
[Li 

03 

41-  

0 
11-; 
Q -1 

(/) 	(;) 
I- 	11.1 
-,. 	--J 
in co 
-I < 
4 .1: "'.> I.a 

) 	(  
'9) 	Irl 	V) 	;:"'". 	 --) 	̀,..) 	u 

4. 	
.,.., 

gin 

...... 	 i- 

(s,000 ''n; 

4- 	0 

t.0 
rn 	 '42 1 

' 	I: 
(.1 

01 

;_;) 
Co' 

if) 	7--1 

CPI 
011 

(f) 

11.4 

uJ 

rri^

tLI  

L1')  IL/ 

ce ( z 
z 

z 0 

(j) 

Z 0 
LL 

z 

0 

U,d >s,  

12  0 

X 1..1  I-z uJ 
c4 

Li cc 
0 j  

tin 



!J) 

LUJ 

-1: 

L/) 

nj 

li 

LJ 

1'4 

15.71 

C) 

'22 '3 

c‘i 

—2 
w 

Lt_ 

) 

LU 0 

11.1 

11:: 

LI I 
LUJ 

• 

Z  

1441 

EL2 
1'14 

ti 

.7' 	 . 

t, 

••••-g. 

•■• 

.5..1 

,r1.• fr.:. 

'.,") •...7. 
..?.: 	-" . ,.• 

r- 1 •„5„.  
•- 

;-, 

Cr2.. 
Li."1 

1;1.; 

fel 

2, 	 .2 

•• 

-.1 
• 

-•1 • , 

sol 

121 



CC) 

OD COD 

(11 
U)  CD 
CDl (.71 
(D 

Co 
C) 

U,  r i 

O u--, 
o

, 	 iii 
.i.7.. 

cx: 	 V) ,.._. 	 .i-) 4.) 	..8 	w 	--, ..., w  
E. 	fr• 	'Ea” 	 !..,... 	(.1) 
.1  

7:: ; 

; 

'':-'", .?,P'):: :::17;C Jft(11:1 :21. ; lei7:111°11 

: LLI 	

4 H il, 	!U 	c; 	_J, 	,,_.8 	Lo 
W 	CO IJJ 	 a 	1.1) 

—1 	z 	 .c): 

F:1 	Fij 
›— li > 	

,,,r, 
0 ,..4 6 	62  7,-*  

i"'s 	• ... ;71  .1 .47): 	.>"' 	.,.. 	 r 

I 	'..-.1 

cc....:._4. 	!

• 	

!.... 	
7 

(!) 	0. 
	,, 

-CC), 
V) 	ii) 	 i:::: :— 	i--, -..:. 	i— 	,... 	Q 

..., 
	(J 

-.., 

1 1  C...1 	.2: 	61 	:D 	0 U) 1-.7. 0 :: .D'" CC 

	

ILI 1.11 	5 l'a...-- 	!1 :43":1 	C111.. 	V.:..L1  

,....4 	4 	U 

:11 	.::e. 	u 	'.---- 	::::: 	z 0 •,..s 	,r 	-,4; 

, 	
..--. 	 .-,,I 	:Ni 	en 	 in 	

!I
A 

	

il 	: I cl .,:.: 	 e
t  n 
	 i'il 	a■ 	 ,L.71 	f I, . 

.'...7) ...." I 

CD 	 01 	CD 	 1, 
en 	 co 

P1  

	

v) CC) 
	Lu 

	

C.L 	u) 
i 	l„, 	Fir' 	

V) 	 0 	 141' ■4: 	LIJ 	--, 
—I 	74 6.  C.) 	 -7: 
-,5, 	';"''  

( 

	

U) 	
:„...  :— 	r3 	,,, 	., ;.-... 	_.-   

. 	 ...) 
s41 	it'— :;') 	. Cs...._ 7s -i 
Sr-. 	CO  C) 

 ' 1  ;T:i 	Ej'  , 17.  
A...' -.5 co .7 	F±' ("ri 

—1 	 h—  LI.) 7.... 	 •!,...71 	r• ■• 	ug u is 	0 	---t : 	,  -.5  ',.".5 ETc' 	r..',.'  fi.r''  H0 	',.,3 

) 

?).1 

! 

Cy  

CO 01 rq 

INN 

Mil 



0 
' 	7.01 

75) 

ff) 

Li 

 I. 
....) ,...D :-.5; 	7 	ILI 

5 	-2.... 
,...,.. 0 0 

( j  	,, '2_," N 

iT51' ' !---)1  0 
LI.) 

o -' LLI  ,:') I- 
, 	,:1", 	.) 	'---  LLI 5i,..) 	5;74 . 	""..c.. 

' 111  51) ■,il EU 
. 	(CI 	,-., 	51.,.' 	52,-.: 	C.1:: 

I 1 	al u..1 •,5,' Cl  :7„-±: 
-I.  :0 

5.1) 

V) 	I.} ) 	LI. 

f .ii 	!"-• 	I.L5 	II) 
)H 	5„/) !" .) - 5.7.) 
, -4,', 	,,.., 	 •5:-.. 

c,;) 	r, ..., , 	..., 
ii.) 

)'.?, , 	'...-:.3 	(I) 	5 .  _,I 	''';'` 	'.:Y• 

0' 1 
	5::::. 	.i 

 
'if), 	

_, 	7, 	5"  ,.....! 
	I 

	1.1.,1 	": 	,...54 	-.57., .-;.z. 
' 	.) -- 	_-.: 

--- 	,-5- 	•:7) 	---5: 	5:5)-1 	,-••;' '5--'75  

3 :i.., 

	

. 	 i 1 
P--  

	

.7.• 1- 	---, 1..)_: •,-. iij 
5 	I.11 	',,,,,- .-, 	I.1.1 	--,,., -::',,„ 	.‘.), 

	

.1:-.:,..-2 	0 I,..- 	0.,  Uri '-'7. :.--"," 

	

) 	)—).„....r 	;.".7.)cii...D  
...., III 	H L2, :Z:, ' 7)  

	

1-,;.5 	'..-3  

	

,..z) .. ,.1: 	'..-...-.- ■ .1.1 

	

(,-I ' :,. 	 )-•.: V) 	;',,.:::1  '..:44.) L7:1 , ' 	
0 

	

(..l.) •.-, 	55: (f.) 	)_1(. 3 12.1 ':; 	i., 
fr.... 	:51.7 	f.::.) .i.I44-.:, , , • 	''') -; :, , ,I) :: 1..1'.1 — — . 
-,•,): 	-) 	:.7f•'..........1 d 	.; - - - i  • 	 ••• : '' .f.5 	..7..J 

	

ro 	Ty: - ;'4 '5, 	7'; .::::7  '".'' ...."4. 	5.... T)  '.-  

	

: 	: 5 - 5 -5_, _A 	:,.-,r (1;,:: ::,,,: I.,L -,:.4 	;551 
„.....I '-,--, :it) •2., 	:;:: 	i.15::, 

	

cr S....,,,,. 	I.-- '25'i Cr's 	• 	5 ; 

▪  

5-) >- 'V-) 	 tjl 

	

,..4 S.-) 	4: (..) ::=-' 	.)J  

<i7tj:  
7.) 

.5•5,55 

5.:?. 	 -

▪ 	

••-•' • 

22:  57-5 • .„

• 	

.; 

4.5 



	

W' 0 	 (.9 01 

	

I Z N 	 z r-1 ..., 0 

	

Pim 1E4 0 	
E- r`l 
UJ 

0
. 

LU  

W CI (4 
 0 Z 	

E N  LU F)  Z 

	

0114I 	
iX m 0 r, 

ILI Um 	risi u w 

	

(I) CI >ma 	
ce 
8 

Z o De  0 
ce 

	

ii: Ii1J reM1 	8 M 
U CI°  
ILI x ea 
8 ii-mi uma 
ce  z 
®. 0 

z 
u j  

0 z  
112  zilmi  z 
(in 	 LLI i' 

4 	 11 f 



w 
O 
O 
O 

N 

N'D  
tF 

N
E

T
  C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

  F
U

N
D

  B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

.• 
C 

r 
0  

'Lf.' 
0 

0 
Fr) NF , 

Lu 

z 
ct 

4'3 • 

O 

z 0 

4tkil  

0 

8 

8 8 8 	8 8 

(s,000 $) 

cy, 
•;t- 
rn
o. 

Ln 
OD 
V 

..-i 	LO 
Cr 	0 
r.-- 	v- 

crl co-  ui-  

I••• 	03 
< 
LLI 0 

1.4  z 6 
r? 
%.0 

i•-• 
< 1-1 
LLI 0 

N 
‘.4 

< 

< 
al 0 

NI 
‘.0 

N 

0, 
oo 

1-4 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
S

 

LO MI 
,-1 LOI T-i

0 
 

—I 	 co 
Tr: 

 ..-I 

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

z 
8 

CD CD CD N. 
LI) 	Ln 	1-1 	N. 

co 
co 

0 

Cf.1 

0 
- 

P
D

A
 U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 

P
D

A
 D

E
S

IG
N

A
T

E
D

 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

PS
M

 A
IR

PO
R

T
-  

LE
A

SE
S,

  F
U

E
L

 FL
O

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S 

A
N

D
 PA

R
K

IN
G

 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 FE
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

SS
IO

N
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 (
C

O
P)

-  N
E

T
  

G
R

A
N

T
 A

W
A

R
D

S  
(S

E
E

 P
A

G
E

 #
8
)  

T
R

A
D

E
PO

R
T

 T
E

N
A

N
T

S 

L O
N

G
 T

E
R

M
 D

E
B

T
 R

E
T

IR
EM

EN
T 

 

C
A

PI
TA

L  
E

X
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S-
  N

O
N

 G
R

A
N

T
 (S

E
E

P
A

G
E

S
 #

5-
#

7
)  

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S-

  G
R

A
N

T
 (S

E
E

 P
A

G
E

 #
4
)  

SK
Y

H
A

V
EN

 A
IR

PO
R

T
  H

A
N

G
A

R
  A

N
D

 F
U

E
L

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S  

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

 B
A

N
K

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
-  

N
E

T
 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
  R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 

U
SE

S 
O

F
 F

U
N

D
S 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

O
F

 F
U

N
D

S  



ml 
w LL 

zl 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H

-  
P

O
ST

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

G
O

L
F 

C
O

U
R

SE
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

O
F

  F
U

N
D

S  

PA
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
-  

PS
M

 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 F

E
E

 

TR
A

D
E

PO
R

T
  T

E
N

A
N

T
S 

SK
Y

H
A

V
EN

 A
IR

PO
R

T
 

PO
R

T
SM

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

PO
R

T
 

FU
EL

 F
LO

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S-

  P
SM

 

G
R

A
N

T 
A

W
A

R
D

S 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

U
SE

  O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 
 

EX
TE

R
N

A
L 

FI
N

A
N

C
IN

G
-  

N
E

T
 

L O
N

G
  T

E
R

M
  D

E
B

T
  R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

  

C
L

O
SI

N
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

CO 
Ln 

N:1 	 Ln 	LO 0 in in 0 	 rn N 	0 NJ N 	V 	
Ln 

	

',3" 	CD CD N 	,--1i 	 M (NJ 1-1 	 CO 
(0 	 N 	N 	 LCI1 

 Ln 	N 	 11" N. 	 oo- 

LnCD 0 	 0 Cr 	 0 CO 	 I co r-I 	rs4 N 	 Ln 	("1 	 CD 	 Cfl 	 0 	N. N 	 oo v
im- 

	

in 0 in 	 Ct" 	I 	 trICD 	 COI 

COL°  

in CO a) 	 ln N co N 

Le) CO 0 0 0 Ln 	 1-  1 .4- 	 0 

WI 03 	Ln Ln 	'1" 	 NI CO
Ze vt. 	

e--I 01 CO 	(mil 

Ns  en 

O 

0 

03.1 
01 If 

to 

Ln 0 0 0 CD Ln Ln 	 r-4 	 I I N 	Ln 	N 	1-1 k0.1 N  M Ln 

1.0 0 0 	 u')0Ln 
Ln 	.4' el- 	 N 	 NI 

uo NI 	oo 
(4 CO 

Ln 0 0 11) 1-r)0 0 CO 	 1-1 	 I 	 ■-■ 1.11 	1-11 	Cr' 	 r\I 	 oo 
CO co 

O 0 

L 

al 
M 
60  .4 up 

01 	0 in u-) In 0 in 0  
,-i N N 1-  LO al NO ,-- I N 	Or) 	•-I 	

I 
CO 
'1" 
j 	

CO (7) 
NJ n 

I Ln 	NJ 	 1 	r.:1 

N 0") 
.-i 

N 0 

NJ 01 
1.0 

01 ' 

0 71 
1-4 	in 	(-NI 	--I 

..--i 

in c) in in in 0 L.n r. 1 
N 
NJ 	CO in 

CD N 
N N 	

Ln 
N 

 
VD 

Ln N 
MCO M I 03 ,-i 

(13 

ZI 
n N 

CD 0 Ln O Ln 	O N 	N 	In OD 0 O 	 11 1-1 Ln N in 	 1-1 	 ri 	 N 	 en CO 	
co 43 ...I 

N 1-1 
NJ 



R
U

N
W

A
Y

 1
6-

34
 D

E
SI

G
N

 (
A

IP
 58

)  

E
(  

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

G
R

A
N

T
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

  A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

0 	
CO 
	 In 0 	 CO 	,-.1 Cl 01 

'Itl 

0 Cl in ,--4 	 In 

0 

O 

ml 

wUl 

81 z  

0 
CO 

o 	 in 

8'31 

of 
al 

<1 

zl 

O 

O 

O 
O 

1■■ 

11  

0 2 
 >) 

(I) 
< 

Z 
ILI I- FNI 
Z 
0. Z 
• LU 

ILLI 
UJ 
• Nod 

UJ 
Vi 1614 
< 
Lu 4 
0-u 

0 

< < 
Z Z Z Z 
(-7 	(.9 
(7) 	W 
0 
z 	z 

=4-c.  
z 	z z Q z 

o >0-(  63 6 
< < 
Z 	Z 1— 
E ti) Z c‘ z 
w 0 w 0 

U 	U 



Lrl 
N 

of 

O 
4-1 rsi N N 

' I 

QI 

0 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
  

N
O

N
G

R
A

N
T

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

  

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

FA
IR

W
A

Y
  A

E
R

A
T

O
R

 **
 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
  M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

O
FT

W
A

R
E

 **
 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

SE
 

V
IN

Y
L  

FE
N

C
E

-  
PO

ST
 A

N
D

 B
E

A
N

 **
 

U
SE

D
 G

R
E

E
N

S 
R

O
L

L
E

R
 *

* 

R
E

ST
A

U
R

A
N

T
 M

O
D

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S 
 

W
O

M
EN

'S
 B

A
T

H
R

O
O

M
 M

O
P 

C
L

O
SE

ST
 F

L
O

R
R

  *
* 

PA
T

IO
 U

M
B

R
E

L
L

A
 / 

 F
IR

E
 P

T
T

**
 

N 	 p) Lni 
rs, 	4-4 

col 

zl 

U 
0 

8I 

ci) 

z 

of 
al 

OI 

51 

z 01 

LU 

ce 

LW 
ce 

0 (r) 
cn 

Z  
in 0 

'' 

ce 
LIJ 
i 0  

LuU 

Lu 
0 1— 
U 



0 0 0 

al

UI  
O 

0> ►  

LuUl 

zl 

(NI 

Ql 

 

L!) 
(NI 

rn 

 

      

G
R

O
U

N
D

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 B
U

S *
* 

    

  

P
O

R
T

SM
O

U
T

H
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
  

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N
 

 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 L

E
D

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 **
 

D
A

C
 C

O
N

N
E

C
T

I O
N

  U
PG

R
A

D
E

 **
 

 

PA
Y

  F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
  

T
R

E
E

 R
E

PL
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 *
* 



-J 

0 
Cl

.4 	
tr) N 

ri 	 N. 
111 

W
E

E
D

  S
PR

A
Y

E
R

  *
* 

R
U

N
W

A
Y

 P
A

IN
T

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

  *
* 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 F
L

E
E

T
 R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 *

* 

ST
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

  

Lul 

Nlri  

LA 	:411 
tto 

I I 

 
ri 

oo 

I 
N 
tn 

et- ro N 	O I 	trl 

z 

0 

zi 

OI 

11 

511  



SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
  

TA
X

IW
A

Y
 P

A
V

EM
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 (
SB

G
- 7

)  

In 

0 

CO 

1-1 	C•1 
"qh' 

1-4 

O 
'-4 

1'91 

1-1 

	 of 

NIC) 

rn Col 

JIO  
co I 
LL 

zl 

081 

of 

061 

alV) 

(1 

ZI 

P
O

R
T

SM
O

U
T

H
  A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

PS
M

 T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 S
T

U
D

Y
 (

A
IP

 6
1)

  

A
IR

  N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 G

U
A

R
D

 T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

Z ...._ 	,--1 

›- ,-... 
,.., a D cr, 	a 03 
I- 	 Ln  ."- ‘JD 	Ce til 

Ln 0- 	z ,a,- 	z a. 
m ',7,,c, 	 D 
0 .._.• 	CL .....- 	ce v) < 	-... 



ol 	ml M 	 Ul N C4 	71: 

in 

+
 M

A
R

K
- U

P
  

N
O

  M
IN

IM
U

M
 

1
2

- 3
1
- 2

0
2

2
 

T
H

E
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
N

T
 

0 YI  0 
• 0 	0 ui.. 

Lei 

0 

Et IN
T

E
R

E
ST

 R
A

T
E

 

T
E

R
M

 D
A

T
E

 

LL. 
0 
ILI 
N 

Z 

Z 0 
Z 	ce 

1. 
:0 0 

G
  T

H
E

  O
N

E
 M

O
N

T
H

 F
H

L
B

  

yJ 0 
CA W 
LU 

Z 

0 
Lf1 

ch 	 v) 	1 	01 UJ 	ri 	 .--1 	ri 	Ln u 0 Sao   

 < en 
en Ill 

CD 

u) C3 U-I 

	

IA 	1-- 	 u1 0 

	

Z >. 	z 	 IX-   

	

1-1 ,_i 	w 	= 	(.9 LI-I 
0 < a — 

	

u 	F- 

	

n 	
■-■ 

LLJ 

	

Z Z > 0, 	o 

	

a cx 	0  E 	LL. E cc ..... ea_ 	0 v) 

	

U) 1- 	le 	1- 

	

i- CO 	UJ Z 0 M Lu m < 
u H co 	a_ 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0, ‘0 0 0 
q 	0 	q 	q m m ry 	 CS 



N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
  F

L
O

W
 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

ES
  A

N
D

 B
E

N
E

FI
T

S  

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 EX

PE
N

SE
S 

FU
E

L
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 FE

E
S 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

SS
IO

N
S  

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

 A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H

-  
P

O
S

T
  R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

EN
TA

LS
 

U
S

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S  

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 / 

 W
H

A
R

FA
G

E 

oi 1-. 0, .4. 	,71 E 21 E',1 a .., c, 	1- 11 u., 0 
(...) r41 z 6 a ri) 
.../ 	I 

m § 

	

01 	o co to 1 

	

01 N 	r. cc) 	ID < ,{ in 	r ,--i 	VI u.i 0 
C.) e;1 

 Z ,..4 
< en 
-.1 	1 
< in CO 0 

F- 
0 

H
A

R
B

O
R

 D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
 

R
E

V
O

LV
IN

G
 L

O
A

N
 F

U
N

D
 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S

:  

U
N

R
E

ST
R

IC
T

E
D

 F
U

N
D

S  

T
O

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
  

FO
R

E
IG

N
  T

R
A

D
E

 Z
O

N
E

  

6u1J-1 
 Zujz  

006<,!u_ 

62Z SJ°  
LL.ILLft 

c9
'-%CeZolui  

2ZC"  
CLI.E.TZ 

Ce„

0  

,Z11.151- 
EO-- U Z  
26Z8 

ZO0 
0 < < PLLI 

OU0 1-de 
1-LL'ILIZO 

P-.111 ,9°C4 8 ,--,1")  

>*OecnE 
17.1:int.uzp cc.t ce. uacc Ki ctm og>LLI 

1-11 	0 
Lf);-'4  0 	

LLJ 
ui [LI 

Zintn LI.JLfiDO 
ce 	cvs) 

ijozz 
zz mOE u 

0 NC1
fv)  

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

O
F

 F
U

N
D

S  

O
P

E
N

IN
G

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

LD . 
... 	 0 rt. Cl) 	Luz..., 	: w < i__cci— 	i..- 

u-, .__, 	c` 
i_ in 	th:r. ig v.., ..„ 1. 

1 	
,.. g MCl2  

	

LIJ

n 
	ILI 

U 	
Lum. 
W 4 

g 	u-r> Ce 	Z 	
z c./ 

•:-1, 

Z 	LLJ 1_ 	5 	
7  , .1 Lu 	ce.,2„, 

E <  

	

c.D 	co 
Lu 	-icyz x I__ 	0<0 (/) < 	zl---1 < 1- <6 u 

.,-1 	'& 	_""--"E 1 	. 1- 
• oult.LE 	0 

Lu 1%.: 0  

z 0 Lu 
 g 	
.ct  

el CL . u j Z 	cc 
1- 

Otri zu-t  = v-i 0 Lk, 0 	UJ 
Ce 

I-  Ge 	" IA/ Z 

0 = 	 0 
'-'14.1 	OCI0D 	7 
1--E 	0 

	

2=/LU 	 D 
< 

LLJ 	0 t h ...- I 
ZLLI 

ZO E>- LU 
LU  Z < 	

n  

CD > 
in 	ZI-1-1 cC 	Ce <'-' <i-= 0, 

I 

Lu 	0 kfy 	0 

Lu b 

0 

	

-18...-: 	 R. iN 0 Z (i) Lu 	, ,.., 
W LL 
< IJ- it:4 Lrq 

o o o o o 
-J LLI 	iii-03 	'A 'A . . . . . - 0, , LO 01 

- ,-;. 

t« $) 

141 0 V) VD 	 CO 
("1 NC)  kn  

VI NJ NJ NI 	
00 	

0 	0 0 
 0 N 	VI NJ 

01 N 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

 F
U

N
D

  B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  



Nl ZI 
Inl
O  03 

U) 
1-1 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 F

E
E

S 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

EN
TA

LS
  

M
O

O
R

IN
G

  F
E

E
S  

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S 
/  W

H
A

R
FA

G
E

 

C
O

N
C

E
SS

IO
N

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

FU
E

L
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

  

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 
 

O
PE

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

  

SO
U

R
C

E
S 

O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
  

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

U
SE

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H
-
 PO

ST
 R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

  F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

O 	N U7 0 
M Cr 

LI) 

U) 
-J 
UJ IL 
LL 

0 0 N m V.  01 1-1 H 1-1 

	

In 0 	IA 0 0 tr) 	0 0 	N 	0 0 CO 

0 

Tr N 	N N 	N 00 	 m o 	1-1 o 	o 

	

N 	 N 	 ri v-i 
1-1 

• 	'Of 	in 0 kr) .1-  in 

mI 
	• 0 

LL 	
N. 	 Ncsi 0 01 

1-1 

toi 	 ir-) 	111 	o Lf 1I Lr) 	 o 	 Ln < ZI 	 Lc) N 
M 1-1 	 1-1 00 	tr1 

1-11 

in 0 
tO 

I 

	
U) al 1 

  

rN1 M 

UPI 	U) 0 Ul N 
O 	01  

Cn 	 1-1 	 N N 
t.0 col 

u-) )-I 	 o 	 In 	0 
	01

L0
cz, 	..cr" 	 1-1 	1-1 	 01 

0 

LEI 0 	 l-n 
M En U) 

LU 
(.0 	01 	 N 	•:1-• 	

/-1 CLI CO 
CF1 V) 

401 

(,) LC) 0 	 O 	 0 NI N 	 0 en 1- 	

C*431 	
0 71-  7-1 	 r-f -1 7-1 	

Ri 

NI 0 CD Lr) 	 NI 	 LI) Ln
I 

N
1-1 

0 0 0.9 	(c■ID I r-  
0 

01 



<ZI NI 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
  

R
E-

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S 

PI
- E

R
 U

SA
G

E
 F

E
E

S 

G
R

A
N

52
T

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
 A

N
D

  F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

  S
E

R
V

IC
ES

  

FU
E

5O
L

 FL
O

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

S
2O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

A
LL

 O
T

H
ER

-  
( C

B
O

C
)  

- O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

N NI 

(N 

NI NI 

O 

JI 	co 

O 

0 

Lucil 
	NI 



SO
U

R
C

E
S 

O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 

>I to 
z 

0.1 PI 
LU 	1-4 

(.71 ill I 
etC 

O
PE

N
IN

G
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 

J 

 to 
0 

A
LL

 O
TH

ER
  

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

N
E

W
 L

O
A

N
S 

IS
SU

E
D

 

IN
T

E
R

E
ST

 IN
C

O
M

E
-  

FU
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E 

IN
T

E
R

E
ST

  I
N

C
O

M
E

- L
O

A
N

S  

LO
A

N
 R

EP
A

Y
M

EN
TS

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
A

N
D

  F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
A

N
D

 B
E

N
E

FI
T

S 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
  

G
EN

ER
A

L 
A

N
D

  A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
  

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

• eq 

• 	

°?14I r•I 

	

.21 n 	MI 1-1 	
CO 

kr) 

i,ni l 	 rn 	ml r•4 	0 

	

1-1 	rsi 

,--4 	01 	,-I -,--i 	 11 	 i 	N 	N 	CH 1-1 	COI 

	

1-1 	0 
ri 

.■-i 	
Cr] 	

til N I  NI N 
■-■ 

	

,--4 	G1 

,-. m ,- 	 . 	 m Ln1 	 , 	mi  

	

,-. E3 	cu31 
..-. 	 ..-i .,--. 

-,--, M 	1 	 N 	1 N 	 ,:ri o 	m .-I 	co 
,--1 

r-I 

	

. N 	NI N 	In 
,--4 	N 	,--i 	1 

• r. 
T—I 

tr) 
C;:1-°1 	+-11 

I 	N 	N 	crl 1-1 



'DI 

N 	 NI 

N
E

T
  C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

EN
TA

LS
 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S  
A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

U
SE

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
  

11 21 8 I 	,--,c' 

z 

V I 

blO 

N 

N 

11 

willU, 

.01 
C7 

%DI 

o 
—II 

ni 

I 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
, 	Dr 	Port 	 0380• 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Torr: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby accepts 

the proposed FY 2020 Operations and Maintenance (0 & M) Budget and FY 

2021 - FY 2023 0 & M Forecast; all in accordance with the documentation 

submitted by Irving Canner, Finance Director and attached hereto. 

N RESOLVES \ 20 .19 • F=inance FY 2020 0 & M and FY 2021 - FY 2023 Forecast (6-20) docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Wvli .peasedev or cl 





to 
v-1 

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

  

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
IO

N
S

  

C
O

M
P

O
S

I T
E

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

  

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

  O
P

E
R

A
T

I N
G

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

  

S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
 A

N
D

 O
R

G
A

N
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 C
H

A
R

T
 

a. 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 

CO 	ri 	N 
1-1 	N 	N 

A 	I 
CI 	ig 

v-I 	rt 	N 

U 
111 

O 
LL 

N 
O 
N 

LL 

O 
N O N 
LL 
0 
z 

i- 0 
ILI N 

mi 
Z 

3 
n 

0 

N 
O 
N 

)• 
U. 
C 

UI 
0 
C. 
0 
C. 
C. 

3 



(1) 
 W m W 

(f U) 
< Z w — 

Zce 0 C2 
I— 	> 

LLI Q cn < z 

W 
N 
O  N 

> 
W 

N m 
O 

W  
W  0 (D  
(/) 	C] a 
O MOD 
a. LU 0  CO - • 
O ncrI W 
ceZ N ,--1 0  

W> LD N OI  
x ILI 

E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 

Z 
0 .4 

U 

Lu 	 Z r
_ l 	 Z
 
	 tY

 
	 D

 

<
 
	 ur 

< 
	 0

 

	

cl• 	 ui <
 
	 ul Z

 
	 D

 
	 Z
 

	

..1 	 LU iu
 

	

iij IU
 	 W 'L
I 
	 Li

' 
cc

 	 a
 

(Xx
'

■
 Wi X
 
	 Ce a

. 

'''S
 LU 

F
E

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

ce 
0 

0 
N 
>- 
u. 

0 N 
0 N 
LL 
a 
Z 

0 
W ry 
W 

 Z 
7 

z 

0 
0 

0 

LL 
O 

a 

a 

10 

01 	Ol 	 CO 	CO 	co 
0 

0 	01 	LC) 

0 
%.0 

O LU 
U) 1 	 >" 1.4 11.1 E 	Z iu 

	

E- 	•••1  (/) 	I- LLI 

Z W O. ° 

Z 	D < 	liCi fa  g 71 	
w 

	

,-. 0 0 O w 	Lu D 	(I) 0 re (y) M 

0 r•I ,4 

	

1'  E (9 	W u) < ›. 	Z U  

	

CA < 	Z E 	

• 

(/) 

	

CO in in , re 	" 1-1 .r_ Lu  r4 	is.' Z 
< VI- 0 r" 	Ce re 0 	 O. I-4  
. U) W ..1 	CG LLI 	U. 0. I-I 	 X /- 

	

0 CL  0 > 	 V/ ...I 
NI 	 1U 1  Z < W 	

W in 

	

W
o 	la th 	n. I) 	I- re >- 8 E u. 	>- I:; Lit 11

( 	u) [LI  
re 

▪  

}- 
al  (.1 -1 it -1  E 0.."-I  ZUj rT ZI-4  OCe  VI I-111  /-4Z  EzD 1-10u) Euri 
iu 1.4 U. 0 O. 0. ur CO 	E tn •-• NO 

l0 	ri 

ri 	ci 
'■:)* 	 'It 	CO 	Cr) 

.-) 0 

1-1 	co 	in 	0 	0 ri 
LO 	.-4 	 1-1 	 1-1 	O 	Ct* In 	 N 	N 	N 	 N 

N 

	

(.9 iu 	u, 

	

u) 	2 	(/) 

	

Ku 	 x 

	

. 	ta. 	z lu 	I- 

	

I- 	0 	l-I u- 	0 

	

0 5 	0 	X !L 	CA 

A 	gX u Z -I >•• 	0 ea Z_ U 
cf) 	M  0 ct* w  D 	0 z H • u. 3a e. 	 < 	z P

S
M

-  
P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

A 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
  

L
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

  



K
E
Y

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S 
 A

N
D

 I
N

I T
IA

T
IV

E
S 

E
X

P
E

C
T

E
D

  T
O

  B
E

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

:  

0 
M 
N 
0 
N 
>- 
u. 

O 
N 
O 
N 

LL 
0 
Z 

I- o 

O 
tu 

iu 
Z 

1-I 
1-• 

0 
0 

O 

>- u_ 

0 a. 
0 
a. a. 

1. 

0 
U 

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 O
V

E
I ; 



M (1) 
N < 
0 

uj 

U. 0 
U. 

N 
c:( 

0 
N w 
›- 
U. 0 

U. 

ri in 
N < 
0 
N 12.1 
›- U. 0 

In 0 En 
N Ln 

N 
O 
N 

N 
rn 

CD 
Ln 
V3 
cv 

N 
ui 
cv 

G
R

O
U

P
  I

I  

1- 
z 
0 L

IF
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

72, 
	 In 

O 
O 
O 

IL 	0 
0 Z 1--. 	tii 

	

f- w z < 	Lu 	 < 

	

(1)  0 u_i >- 	LUi  

	

00zu 	>- 	 0 < a_ 

	

U __, < 0 	Ln  o a  U 2 	 0 1-1 

	

Z Lu ce 0 	c)- 	00-  < 
I __i 	Lu 

	

O H - Lu z 	a_ z --1 0 	- H  

	

H (..) - CL M 	LU 	0 a. 	(n < 

	

1-- w < - U 	Ow 	 W 0 	N 
, W  

	

< E3 ,-,Z L)  r. 	o _. 
	, 	. o  . 

""J CC LJ  „ 	0 c° 	 F- z 6 LU re ct CL p tk.-.4 zs 1,  

	

ur) u < m r-  Li 	
00 3; 1  

tn  F- 2: 	i:=1 	
F_ --I 	D 11 
< LLI rn D 	

0 0 2 

L u < 	r 0 
 :i 0 

CL 

	

Z I.. ce a_ Z 	a 

	

ill  « W < 	 ---I O ^ 
LI- U_ 

a. ce 	<V) Ln  
< 0 

CL 
, LIJ 	

W II- Ce  .s, 	0 
LLI  0 W 

LL 
e\IC)  1---  0 

ce 

	

Pool Z 0 2 " 	
u u_ , > - _1 

Ilmini  Ca 	. ce 
ur 	Lu r_t  F- (/) (°D  

W ‹. 	<
) 	Cr.) IL  

(..) --I 	D (fi-  -J 

Z Z 

	

al  0 I-I  till  < 0 	< Ln 
W • I- < 	W 

,...... _J 
(1)  NI  

Li_ u j W
LI1 

a   
L(.)' ° Z D 0 0 im 0 

co 0 
W T-1 	Z ce 	 CL. W 

12: < 0 (i) 	Vi' < (i) 	Z I-U 	Z 1-1- 	
0
H D < 

 cZ > 

	

U 0 uj U F- 	i_ u w 
w (r) W W 	1— C" = 

LU o , 

	

M  u j c 1  - < I - u 0 	1-1 

	

rY ce Z , 	I-4 ri; 	r4 ..;:ii 	>-. z  
(11 5 CL  < < " 

	

Z lil 	
W 
11.1 0 	L7 	u..1 ,--4 

	

ce Cr)  LO I-, 1.1 	E 1- -2 
D I-1 	

cX >_. Vi 	> H 0  
11-1 < 

...1 t-1 u_ 	ui . 	
ty 0 
< Z 	1-1  ■-,, I- 	(I)  n 11-I 
>- H (.5 <° 1 Z < 

Z ID- 	
0 0 

4 (I)  
• I'Ll  (.7Uzr-H  

Z 

	

Lu U. . 
Z  " Z 	< 
‘-' 0 U) 	-1 1._ 	Z 0 l—f 	W co --I 

0 	Li-  ° 	 I- 
< CD ZZO (1)Z  ‹ Ln 	g 8 Z-9' 

1-1 0 
° 
u) 	1- co 

	

Z 1... d" -, w 	_J W 	(.9 ,..i 12" 	Ll. _ j o  
uo ...I  

limil M
I U li <I  - OZ  1 OC  L  < " 
Ce 	Eli L'L  (/) W 	Z 	CO 	ril 	Z 1

- Ce LL  
Z = 

CI 	
11.1  0 ril)  > LL U 

Ce 
Z , W ,,X 
LIJ vi  

LU 1-1 0 

I- W 5 m< 
O.. 

	

... WE (7)  (9 } 	W ..., 	

HZ  ,Lu 	0 _1 	LL1 
1.1.I ..4.  
>. CZ 0 D U al < , E 1..., 

	

Z ° 15<-I in Z  H 	 0 1 LI 
icE 1-1 „.... 

. 0 WV 
D 

	

LL %-0  O.. U < () 	c:1_ -1  0 -J 5 W z 0  

	

c, .... < u) (fl u) 	I-1-1  < 	L.) a. u) 
Z 0 	0 it)  1-- -1  0 < m t, 

re W ij J 
U. Z a_ =NJ 

LL Z ca_ D 1- w 

In o In  N 

Ln 	 (NI o tfl c) 
N 	cl oi - 6, 
r 	 .--f 	/NI 
N 

o 
o..-- 	 0 	tn N 
0 	 CD In ln 0) 
0 	 r6 (xi ,i 0  

,-1  
rg 

o 	ko 
O tn 

IN1
N  1

-4 6 

to  
to co ro 
vsi N 

in 
rn 
O 

z 
LU 

LU 
LLI 

Z Ce 

m D 
LU LU 

LICI  42D  ke 	)C  

Q 

0 
0 

N 
0 
N 

LL 
0 N 
O 
N 

0 
Z 

t o O N 

Z 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 



O 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  
K

E
Y

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 

:— 
(v") V) 
(N < 
0   (N U uj 

L
>. cL 
t.. (-.) 

Lt. 	 I- 
co 
U 
iu 
cL 
0 
LL 

I— 	 to 
(N in LI

esi  
(-,1 <  
0  0 	ai 	 r4 
N u.J 	t-^ 	 >- 
..._ CZ 	 •••1 	 U. 

6- 0 	!I. 	 I 
IL 	W 	 o 

N w.  O . 
MI 	 N 
m 	 >- u. 
7 

V-- 	5 	 ch z 
,--1 (f) 	 a  
NI -4: 	 1- 0 
0 U %. 	 ILI r.,4 
IV ui 	 0 w  

(2= 	 0 z 

II. 	?...) 	 to n 
EU 	W 
1- 	z . 
H 
!J. 

i (D 	L'S(N 
0 1.... 	 a. 

0 
(N W 	?A 

a 	
o 

l 	 c‘i 
CL 0 	x 	 o 

N 
0.. 73  
0 ( >- O U. 
CZ 	 0 
a. 	 ui 

co 
0 
a. 
0 
cd 

I— 	 a. 
(3) (J) 
—IQ 
0  (.) 
N LLI 
>- 0.= 
LL 0 

ii. 

oo 
N 

N 

N 

0 0 0 0 
C) 0 0 
(,) •— ■ 

5211/710G 

a N 
N 
N 

to 

Z 
0 

	

1•4 	 2 0 

	

..-

▪  

I 	 0 u)  

	

Cr 	= Lij 0 

	

U 	 1- --1 ce 
-.I D >- 

	

(in 	 < p < 
LU „: w c)- 

'” 2 I-- 
f n in 

	

U. 	 0 - Ce 

	

ILI 	 o I- 
a 

 1--1 

	

Z 	
2 

LU (9  
W 

	

Ca 	 Z 121 0 >: 1.4 u_ 	_j  

W I--(9Q I-I-1  __I 

	

W 	 W 1,7; (9 < 	'a,
0 	 LU ,'-'- •=t D 	!-- 

	

Z 	 > P.-J.  t Z 	L(F) 

	

lig 	
0 iy 17i  Z 

	

,RI  U < 	
u 

	

LL 	 0 (2 	 0 

	

1---  -1-" LI-1  f-,c) 	 ozLLCI 	 1-4 _i Co_ --- 

	

Z < ...r  ir 	:44: 

	

Z 0 U- --'' >_ 	-; 

	

> < W 	X 
-1  

	

W 	 Lu Z in < 	L-- ci..,  

	

U 	 > (1)  !--1 Z 	Fii 
(7.)>- ,, 1- .5-.: 

	

(i) - > 0 
	1? 0  

w LLJ 0 LI 1: 

OUl  U CL  0 < CI- 
O Z < - I 	 a LI-1 ILI V) 

W,--, D (.9 LU %__. _ j < in  
Z 	 I- Li_ 	.1/4tt  
Z 	 (n Z 0 ce 	 rsi 
O U-I 	0 LLJ 	

cv 
en 

Z u) C4 	 r. 0 Z W 	z  o  ci. 
G. 	 0 LLJ ui  CD 

(6 -; 	
0 .-J 

L  CO  
< < < < 

H am.

Ci 	a  

	

I-I .-■ 	 o.. cC ce a_ 
U. 12 

	

U. 0 	x > r i  
ct Y- 	I- < F- 
I— 
(i) 

R 



P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

  A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 

Na 

N 
1:e ›- 

LL, 0 
U. 

• (J) 
N 
O 
N 
>" 
U. 0 

U. 

N

• 

 < 
0 
N uj 
>- 
u. o 

LL 

ILI 

• 

0 
• N 
O 0 L.9 
• N 0 
0 
• 0:1 
a. 

U) 
ri < 
0 
N uj 

U. 0 
u. 

0 0 ..,0 
0 N 0 

1--1 	't 
Pl 

4 -EA- 

0 0 0 
0 N 0 

0 

a) 

0 
Cr) 

co 

co 

0 0 
0 N 0 
N. 1--1 0 

CO 
,--I.  VI- 

co 
in 
to 

0 La oi uY 
O 

U 

re 
0 

N 
0 
N 

U. 

N 
0 
N 
>- 
U. 
O 
z 

W ry 
ILI 
Z 7 

CO r, 

ID 
z 

0- 
0 
0 
N 
O 
N 

LL 
a 

0 

0 
re 
a. 

R
A

T
E

 P
E

R
 D

A
Y

 

O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 R

A
T

E
  

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

  S
P

A
C

E
S

 

R
A

T
E

 P
E

R
  G

A
L

L
O

N
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 G
A

L
L

O
N

S
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 

0 
0 
0 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

F
U

E
L

 F
L

O
W

A
G

E
 F

E
E

S
:  

	

i— 	cp 0 In 

	

rto vs 	o 	co 
N < o o t

N
o 

	

0 0 	c; 

	

N uj 	PI 

	

>" ce 	
a) 	-EA- 

	

U. 0 	N. 

	

LL 	1I 

I- 0 0 0 

Na Cr) co  

	

N ct 	0 o Tr 

	

0  0 	cS' O 

	

N to 	co 

	

>- re 	et- 

	

U. 0 	N 

	

U. 	,-t 

	

I— 	
0 0 it) 

	

Ii (/) 	CD 	m I- 
N < 0 0 el 

	

0 (,) 	0." 	(-; - 
N Liu 	0 

	

>- W 	
0 4A- 

	

u., 0 	ni 

	

is. 	,--1 

O ID 0 ul 
LU 0 I- 0 N ,.1 

0 0 N 

	

V) N 	UJ __. 	. 
O 0 0 'ID 0 
a. N 0 - 1!) EA ro 
0 >- n 
OC u. CO ,--Z ,-i 
O. 

H 0 0 to 

	

al U) 	0 N o 

	

rs ez 	o 0 N 
0 0 Qs  6 
N LL 	u-) 

	

>- W 	N -EA- 

u. 0 6 
u.. 	,--1 

P
A

S
S

E
N

G
E

R
 P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
:  



1 

	

H 	 H
 

a
 

	

2 
z 	

z
 

LLJ
 
	 2 Z

 

	 ct
 
	 0
 
	 I I 1 N

 
03

 , 

	

C)
 
	 .
 

0
 

Z
 ILI

 
	 Z 0

 

	 Z 
I -  a-
 

W
 

1-1 (
.9 

	 ill 1
21 

2 

 D
i
 

 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

 

.7> 
s'n 
O 
O 
O 

w 

03 

I— o 
oi 	M 	r\I 
7-1 	 C.7 nr-ILLI CD 
0 	 1--1 — C•1 
CNJ a 	__I 

U_ 0 >- 
2 	I-I-. I__ 0 ...T. 	Q 0 
	

< 
iii 	n Cr)  ...' 	IL 	f  min 	2 

V) 	 LLJ 	 0
Z 
 j 	V) W 

< I-  < 	Iti 
LU 	 Z 	1=1 	Lu U Ce 	CI 
P. 	n 	cn r., _._ 

}— 	
cc W UI  u a 	tn al 

w 
1:31 	cc 	ce z I-- 	Z ce 	4 
tl 	 0 0 (4, 

cl_ 	 o_ Z 	DO (-.1 
at 	 Lu Z u_ c, 1-1 	

z i_ .< 
< z  F_ 	0 6 

	

ELI ,--: 	o .-. z 	 ILL 

1 

 0-3 
(De 	 Z 2 	 CL 0 	Z al < 
1.11 	 ?-• X < 	0 2 	 >5  III 	 I- 

LIJ 	 CL LU UJ 	U. 2: 	m a 
Z 	U Z 	 0 

IC; 0 7(9 	D CC wZ 1--1 
D 	w ce 

(n 	 cz ce 	a I—  ;7. .,— 	0 151 	(f) z  
(i) 	 2 	ce LLI LI 

< D D 	(1) 
LLJ a ce 

u j 	a. <  
N 

() CD LJJ C) 	
LIJ 
__I (-) LLJ 

	

2: D 	
1-4 LLJ 

Zt 	 U --1 
	u) U 	D

F 	
< 0 u) 

	

Cuj 	 < U) 	 LLJ 	1-1  u  Z -J 	LLI LLI  Ill M 	Li. LU I- 
	

°n 
IJJ Lu 	 Z Z 	 1.4 	 F- 	 N 

0 

	

LL1 111 	 U)  < ,-,>- CL 	0 Ca 

	

LL Li_ 	 lit 0 	 IL 	(3- 	s..., Lu  

	

U 	 2 
O (-9 	 0 Li_ 	 0 (yLU  EI 	< 16 El  ID- 	Fc-2. Lii 

Z Z 
. > 

w LL 	›- 	 0 

	

Z 0 	 Z 1-1 2 0 	I-. Q 1.-1 	o 

	

% 16 	 F-  Z 	
F-  LLJ D 	CC r-  Lu c) 	> uj I-- 	o 

w 
a 

	

Y O C) 	
ZUO ui Lu Z  Cii I-U H U 

	

< Z 	 LL.1 
ILI < I Lu 	I- < ° 1-1 	Ceti III 	

a 

	

UU < 	 p 	M ce LL. U) 	Z Z V1:1 -En- 	LLJ 1.1-1  ri: 

	

CD -I 	 < < 
O ° 	 Z D 	 Uj  Y.;' C) Z 	I:1 41 E 16 	uj 

	

I- Z 	 Z 	 re()  6 Z il.Lij 	ax... 0 z Lu 	
U) LLJ j

w < 	 in 1--1 	 c,UOX 	I— 	" I I_ 	" ,Z  Ce 

	

in  I— 	 — Lu -- . 	..,.., 	■ 

c) 1--, 
I 1 2  t C  Zi: e 	2LeL L j 1-  ' g 

Li'  " 
 



S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

N
O

  C
H

A
N

G
E

S 
IN

 H
A

N
G

A
R

 A
N

D
 O

R
 T

IE
  D

O
W

N
  R

E
N

T
A

L
  R

A
T

E
S

.  

E
L

IM
IN

A
T

IO
N

 O
F 

N
E

W
 H

A
M

PS
H

IR
E

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S-

  
H

B
 1

2
4
- F

N
.  

G
R

O
S

S
 S

A
L

E
S

 

• 

(J) 
z 

0 
0 

1'7-4  
c 
0 

(r) 

Z 
< 

1--I 
U 

O
z 

 < 
U- u 

< 
> 

a< 

• z 
< 

O 0 
• z 

>- W 
F_ 

U V) 
W

4  ce 
L1.1 Ur 11-1 
Z 
< < 

U 

0 
Z 

XZa 
ce0 

a. LU 
< z  

0 
I- 
< 	(cDp  
LucC LU r.4  

Lu 	I- 
< C. 9z 

0 
X 
0 0 co ry  

LIJ 
I- lit 
U 
L1.1 
0- Z 
X < 

U_ILU 1-IZ CD  

< z (I) 	u  
Z 	(j) 

O 0 ILI 
1-4 ▪ a_ 

LL U rd 
O F- 

Z 

• 

Z 0 
1-1 z re) 
..J 1-1 Lij  
LU r, z  
11. 	r•-■ 

M 
N 
O 0 
N LL1 

u. 0 
W 

(f) 
N < 
0 
N w 

U. 0 

I-
v-1 LA 
N 
0 
N w 

D ›- 
U. 0 

LL 

0 
LU 0 I- 

N LLI 
0 0 0 
Ct. 01  0 
0 } 

u. eel 
a. 

F- 
01 v) 

0 
N 
)- 
U. 0 

LL  

	

VD 01 	VOI 	0 

tp 

	

t.01 	r-lj 	 0 

-b9- 1-1 

" '1 to Ln 0 
Ln 
LA*  

d - 	I 

	

Lrl 	;2.1 

nl 	0 
to L.11 	 0 

1-1 

0 
0 
0 
O 
u. 
0 
I-- 0 
Uf 
0 0 
0 in 

V') 

rn 

0 
0 
0 

tri -to+ 

N 

-413- 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

U 
re 
0 
u-
m 
N 0 
N 
>- U. 

0 
N 0 
N 
>- U. 

Z 

t 
W 
Z 7 
,., 

0 

0 

tn 
n. 
a. 
a. 



a 
0 

t 

(-9  01  Z 0 
UHL 

Lii(Y  Z ILI 
LLJ c[ DO 

O 5  < 
I-  Z 
U 0 CY 
O U (f)  
Z uj fiej  

M CL 
0 I-- ,...., 
L11 z ,....`-' 

.r.i:ii,  

lf) 
r..1 

I.Li 

it 0 (f) 
1-  U- < 

2 • 
u j 

• 

0 w

0 Ce c) 
U 0 8.-* 

w 	-di- 
Z 0 0 
Z LCD  I-

U  zoo  z  

LL CO 

LA uj LLI 
!Ai LU fY Ce 

D < 
Z Z 
Lt., On—I  

	

1!..1 	> U) --I  _J UJ ..., 1_, 
CC Ictj  

1 0_ 
,--1 	(.9 	

w

i• 	Z 
	I- 

	

} 	Lr&1 
z Lc; 1_ , 

4A-u_ L.I.1  
HI 
Etil wo k 

...r

▪ 

 

▪  

LLI UJ 
' H Z 
l'" < 
(i) ry LU 
LL I_ 

 

O W ~  
F. Z oj 
Z U-I ,--,T4  

Hi MI 1 RI • I- 
h 1--  Eue ce a cc, 
ct- 0 a 'Z, F- 
La o  u 
O N 0 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
A

D
E

P
O

R
T

 



O _..1 	Z 
in 	in 	u.i 0 1.__ 
F- 	1- Z < 	Z Z Lu U 

U F- (r) 	
CL 

 'EL 
U-I  
8 ILI 0 

O Ln CL X CL U) 	(7-)  ILI 	Ili CI- 
z a-  0 z 

Ln 	0 I-  H 0 
U u)  

Z 

< 0 I 

O

L' 
ILI (:)._ 

	

,----. 	W  8 	D-I  U •cr 

	

cn 	Zt >- 	0 u)  0 z Z in uJ z  

(kan 	Z ._. iji  a 1  0 ' -(22 5 	CL u j 	U 0 
cn 

Err 	 W1 Z .- 	
UJ 	 r < 	u-) ...„ D 	1-, ,_, 

0 	
1.--i (4 	_1 ---1 	,---, (...) 
Z V) 	0 < 	co 

co E: 
,--4 

ix 
Pug W oe 	1 

L.1
- 	

Ln 1- 
up U 

1.4's 	
-J ILI CD 
< ›. 	z 

, 
V) 	

0 W 
c 3 DI  

Mto 	z LU 	til 
UJ  (I/ 	

Q 
0 Ci2 	

41)- ..._., c: 

IQ < . W 	W 1_, LU 1 
c) Ce 	O 1-- 	..4 >- 

	

-• 
U 0 H D 	_1 
Z i• 	H 0 

ce < 
O ILI Our >- U 

z 
Ln 0 

(1) 	
I---,  V) 	DC cz 

CI. ,-, 1-4  

VI 	0 	Z I- a. , , 

	

cl_ ...• 	LA.  
" 

< g 	5 D iu . 

14 oC •:( 	(y 	V) IY  Z 
O O. 	(-9 w 	>- I-D-  Ulm 

	

(f) 	i••• D 	. 

D 	0 w U 1-i  

Z 	

06 _i--  cn -I  

	

.4 	
Z . 	

Ce
..i 

D D 	,-1  i.0 
0 u_ 	1"- 0 

< 
H 

a 1_, 	 (..) r\I 
0 u 	....1 w 

< 1 	tii  W 1-1 	 -I 
Z 	 --1  Z D 

D U 
Z (f) 	ILI cn X 

HCC 0 

Z 	
< 
Z Z < o  

Z • 
CN1 	LLI CO CI- 

z 111 CL 

< 	
, . = 
, }— 	

v).-+ 	, 0 
< — 	

0-- c,  < 
D U 1-- 

1011111 	 L<  .§1 	
O H  a. < U 0 < 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

IN
S 



U) 

(fi 0 
Cr) 
HI Z 

O 
 

v) CD 
^ N UL  

rf 
W z Z 

" (I) 
W  

W 
W

r 
 (I) g 
w 

UJ z 
min 

0 IL  0 
U Ce a. 

(-) < 0 
/".±3* 

›- 
(7) (-9  ww  

ry• 0 
F- 
0 F—  

W w 
up Z D 

Z W 

(f) Cy 
w uj  

U 	Ee 
L.L. 0- in (I.7)  
(-% < (I) W 

b oa 
>-• 

W < < >- 
0e El  I— 

w 
U C.9 

U 17j O U  
0 CC)   1-.-1 CO 0 
w a OD N  
(r) 
Z 0 

W Z 

ceU)  
Z000w 

0 F- w >  < 
W -J 0 %-J  
(f) 	0- 

U 
 w 

<ZOWU_ 
I-1 (DC 
U") 0_ 	W 

G
O

L
F

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
  

N 
m 

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
 /

  H
O

U
R

L
Y

 

o 
m  cp 

W
E

E
K

E
N

D
  /

  H
O

U
R

LY
  

N
O

N
M

E
M

B
E

R
 P

L
A

Y
 

N 
CO 
 N 01 m 	M Lf1 

N 00 O 
7-1  rt 	1-1 

-EA- 

0 Crt m N  1p 
01 	N m m 

PI 01 tO 	 (Y) 0 N 
CO In cn 	 N 

C
A

R
T

 FE
E

S
 

UJ 
W 

0 0I 
I 
rn 

00  

T
W

IL
IG

H
T

 

M
E

M
B

E
R

 P
L

A
Y

  

H 	0 0 0 0 0 0 	0 0 	I- 
Z 	0 o o o o 	0 o 	Z w &) 	to N ,z)'NI-  o 	tn 	p1 Ill 	ILI V)  
Ce wiLl  ,-4 .-i (-N r\i ,-Z rns  r2 u JILI 

 Ce 'L.0 V. 

U U 

0 	0 0 0 0 0 0 	0 0 	Cl 

co in 
	U1 Lf) 0 in tn 	o in 	it, 

co in 	N N t Lfl o ID 0 IlD 	U) (/) 
0 Ill 	,--1. 	 1-4..  M N 	Ni rns 	0 LU 
O 	 - . 111 	 t:I. MI 
0 11- 	-EA 	 -EA- 	 0 Li- 
te 

>- 	H 	 cn < 	z cK Ce lig 
Y H 1-1-1 	 _J 
Y _J a 0 0 0_ 
LIJ D D 2 Z W -, a H n w 0 
s < cr) .. (r) U 

H 

w 
W 
—I  0 0 1= 

CO D 0 
a) rf < 

C
O

U
P

LE
S

-  
S

E
N

IO
R

S
 

F
U

LL
  W

E
E

K
 

co 

_J 

0 0 
< 

 

S
IM

U
L

A
T

O
R

 

     

S
E

N
IO

R
 9

 H
O

LE
 

S
E

N
IO

R
 1

8 
H

O
LE

 

W
E

E
K

E
N

D
 

i- 
cn 
U 

C' 
0 

N 
0 
N 
>- 

0 

0 
N 

LL 
0 
Z 

W N  N 
(.9 

O Z 
co 

Q
F 

0 

0 
rn
O  
O 



LU 
(NI N 

N Iy  

U. 0 

P
U

B
L

IC
 P

L
A

Y
 

R
O

U
N

D
S

 O
F

 G
O

L
F

 P
L

A
Y

E
D

:  

U au 
re 
0 

O 
N 

LL 
0 
N 
0 
N 

LL 
Z 
< 
I- 0 
LU ry 

W° z 

4.9 

0. 
0 

N 
0 

0 

LL 
O 

0 a. 
0 re 

Z 
< CO 0 

1-1 (I) 
< 

N Lis 
< (I) 

0 0 0 
o in in 
0 N N 

0 o 0 
Ul 0 In 
N. 0 N 
u"; d CA 
M 

0 0 0 
CD In Lr 

N N 
In rn 
rn 

• 

0 
0 

w 

0 

0 

uJ 

cr.) 

M 

(1) 	
** 
H 

Z 	W tz! 
Z 0 

1/11111 
0 

 W ee 

0 0 
Z 1 

( :71  

11.111 	< >_ 
E Ili  

to 
Lfi 
N 

0 0
l i 	 N 

N as 

Z z  / fle 	
I-- u j 

ri.,' r3 

re 	
z 

Z 
 o 

w 
W 

/ 	

U. 

=i 	
Ce 
W 

0 I) 	

• 

I— 
H 	.4 o 	

U`S 
CO 

	

// 	

0 I.L.4 I-- 
iN 4) U.J 

CD r, fa  
(sin 	

Z 
• (J)_, 	

ni r, fa 

1/4IC 	 D r\J 
ce 0 	 gl. 

< 

(19 
	
rW

I— 4 

LO 
ZfY W 

UJ 
(I) in 	 • 

00 
at i... 

Us 
..-i 4 

illill 	CD 

O U) o  . 

0 

	 ,,... 

N if,4 

U.1 

ZIN (.9 
CO M 

...i 0 
1-1 cK a a.» 

a 	a 

	

rn 

• 	

o 
s-, 

i 	ol ,,. 

	

,-1 	,..i` mai 	Ce  

Clia 
a 

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  



K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 A
S

 
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

  (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
S 

A
N

D
 H

A
R

B
O

R
S 

0 
1- 

 w 

172  

0 
U 
U) 
c:e 

0 

0 
co 

Z 
Z 
0 

cC 

Z C) Ow j 
Li) 

W 

• 

< 
z 

a 

< 
11-1 

• > 

U 
W < 
> w 
O m W

O
R

K
E

R
S

 C
O

M
P

E
N

S
A

T
IO

N
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 R

E
M

A
IN

S
 S

E
LF

- F
U

N
D

E
D

.  

0 
0 

U) H 
in 	0 
in 	0 u_ 	u_ 
I- 	--... 
V) o 1-1 
...i 	o 	0 
1— 	O 	1— 

,--f 
< -69- 	 CC 

5 	
cz 0 

0 	0 	Oa  
Z 	CZ 	OD D 
< IL 	cc m  

< 
v) 	vi 	m (-9 in 	in 	, z 
ui 	W_J H 
U_ 	IL 	< 0  
C9 	I- 	Z  
Z0 D fr; 
1E2 	5 

CC 	
rY 1-1- '''' a.  _j  C) 

ID 
O n_ 	< D w  Z 
5 	w 	WZ 

V) O w z w 
I 	D (NI 	1- < 
H CD H Z 

i> 	
Ce CV 	" ILI  < W , 

5 5 
5o z 

1-1 	w a 	fa. ,--1 0 0  1— 
u ce  z 1— 	0 c2 < 0; 	LL D  < 
	a- 'Zit 

POI 1-1  • z w0 2  

O i-

CD w < 5 H (/) 	cc in z 
u")  i- 	(X in 	In 11-1  < 
< UJ > > .__I 	 cr) w I—, 	re .-1 	0 z ce  
et cK o H 

	

0 	1— II-1  ..-.--,i 
D a  Zuj 	wz"-a- 

0 u jci- V 1- 	 UJ Lul-1- 	a U ce D U I- 	D 
W Fill 	< 1- 	co a (9 
I- u_ WO -1 Z 
Li) LU 	0 	t< u_ L6 0 u_ 
ILI 0 	111 	F-1 (.9 Ce 
I- I-- 	F- c) 	a. _, UJ 
g 2f 	C) CD 	‹t -71 2: 

	

1.1.1 (...1 	(..) (9 uj 

Z O 4,ft' 	
I 0 I- 
I- w 

	

W W Ce 0 	CL W 
Z 	0- I-- X 0 5 

UJ 
U) 
CO 

Z 

U 

S 
C) 
ce 
u_ 
U) 

Z 

Z 

Z 

0 
Z 
U) 

(!) 
0 
o_ 
0 c 
0_ 

0 
N 
w (I) 

I- Z 
 Z > 

0  0 

OG 
 171 
H 
LL 

u 0 



of 
0 

CO 

o oo 01 
o 

in 	N 	
Ln
00 

o 0 
0 	in 	Lni 

Ln 	N 	

- 	

00 

o o o o  
Ln 
CO 

o o o ol 
o 0 N 

co 

G
R

O
S

S
 S

A
L

E
S

 
11J 

0 

0 

y
N 

LL 

0 
N 
0 
N 

0 
Z 

1- 0 
ILL cs4 
W 
a Z 

z 

0 3 

0 
0 
N 
0 

U. 

LU 

0 
CL 
0 

a. 

R
Y

E
  H

A
R

B
O

R
  

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 

0 
0 
0 

I- 
M (/) 
N < 
0  0 

1- 	 N tu 
0 	 ›- Ce CO u. 0 N 	u. -bg- 0 
›- N 

	

E 	 J 

	

Lii 	 Li 6 

	

D 	 — Cr)  N (/) 
■--, Z I 

< 	 N < 
H 2 W0 0 

NW 
>- IX u. 0 0 ^  

oe 

	

(in 	
o_ z 

	

Z 	 L.L.1 Z 
< 0 

I-I (f) 
I...  

N < 

	

0 	0  W 
N Lu 

	

Pali 
	Wm   0 	u. 0 

Z CX D 	
u. 

	

111111" 	 0 O. Y 
LLI u j 

	

au 	(pm <  ce 
(/) N (LJ 

0 
LU 0 I- 

I—  

ill 0 ',.9 	0 } = 
0 Z 	a. rsi CI 

ce u. DI 1 z - 	(), 
U , • 
Lu - to 	

n. 

Li 

	

n 	 x LLI F- 
CL. 

• 

a j 
I- 

	

(111 	 L1J I-  E 
LL1 = < 	cn U1 1-1 < 

0 0 

	

al 	
Ce 0 '-' .tc ..., 	>. C4 

ev im 

	

,_..,' 0 	u- 0 
Z D fa. 

N 
Z 

g 9 (11 

	

1/14 	 W U_ --- 
,--,Z  

0 Ln I- 

	

Z 	 L9  U W 
< Z 

Z , (f) 

	

44 	
N r-  iii -I W 
Ill Z ci_ 

	

Mel 	n z ILI U. 1-1 Ce 
CIL 

>igl  
ILA 
,le 

D
IV

 



.41  
0 
0 

try 

ff) V) 
N 
0 
N 

Ce 
U. 0 

u. 

I-
N V) 
N  
0 
N uj 

U. 0 
LI- 

ri (1) 
N < 
0 
N 
D 

›- 

11- 
u. 

LU 	/- 
O L4  11.1 
0 
Ct. 	CZ 
0 >" 
• U- CIC1 
0 

O u) 
ri 
0 
N 

u. 0 
LL 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

  P
R

O
J
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 IN

C
O

M
E

 -z(
 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 

si) 
0 

fel 

O 
N 
tr; 

N
E

T
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
  I

N
C

O
M

E
 

rn 
N 
N 

o 
O 
03 

Lrrl

4.0  

,-; 	CD 	If) 	V N 	0 	N 

s". 

 CO 
V 

rNi* 
N 
V 

in 
N 	Ul OD 

N N 	CO 
CO 	CO 	i 

N 
ri 	

n w 7-I 
N V Ln 
rn rri ici 

01 V OD 

..._.• 

N 
V
,-1 	

,--4 
V 

CO 	cl- 	V 	0 V 	,-t 	UD 
CO 
N 

N N N 

,--1 
Crl 
 

V 
N N 
✓ CO 

M
cn s 

N 
-,--Z 	M rri Los N 

N CO 
N..1 OD I- 

V Pi CO N 
.-..• 

00 

O) 	,--t 	CO 	co rn 	a) 	co Ln 
O 	co 

Ns 

N 
co 
...4.  

N N 01 N 
,-i" 	

in ol <3 
CO N N 

CY) Pi cd  

1 OD CY) 

CO 
....• 

C3 
kO 0) 

,--i 	N 00 	N 	VD  ■-i 

N. 

r-1 

O 
VD 
N 
fri 

• O 

N. 
rn 
N 

in 

CO 	CO 	LC) 	c.0 	 LC) 	 N 
CO 	N 	0) 	

• 

0 	 0 
/-1 	N 	N 	N M 	M 	N 	M 01 01 r

▪ 

 o 

N 	CO 	VD 	1-  0 	 OD 	 N ct 	
En C3 N 	 CO 

CO 	 rn 	 co LI) oo 
r■I 

> c 	0_ cC > * 	
■-• 

Z 11.1 A 	w ex. 	Lu 	0 
	Q. 0 

ce .4 	U-I  Ili 	iLj 	--, r--i _, 
__, v) .:1 (2  z°  5/-1-1' 	z co 	(NI a

n < u.1 a ko a r ,  c.9 4t 	m u, 
z 0 	w 	V) ci El- 	0 	(9  * U-I 4* 
1.4 11-1 F- 	/-. (A Z ii, 0- u j  Z 11)  (9  I-U -J v) 	

(I)  L.1.1 tr2 0 0 0 
lit -• 	Z I-  ._ i  IF:: 	‘ N  .--. 	„ ,V)  U 	cK ce  cc 
W tt 	0 413: 0  n ce z 
w 14 	u) ILI -1 1-. 	LLI .--, 	it 	c)-- Lu o- 
n. 141 	wz .--.0 zz 	ow cc UJ  144 z t.LI 

w  LLI  D <  Eli CI 	CIC  U.1  < 	1._ Ili 

0
 ■ 11

.- 	 0_ CO C
O U- (.9 <

 
	 Ct. (r

) Z ■ 1 2. 0
 (.)-

 

0- 

0 
LL 

N 
O 
N 

N 
0 
0 

›- 
O 

?.1 
I- 0 1.1.1 N 
CO au 

 0 z  

1- 
g 
a. 
0 

O 

>- 
u. 

0 
o_ 
0 
a. 
a. 

tu 
o 
Z 	 R 
C2 	 N -, 
U_ " 	 1 	 z 	V) 

	

NI 	

Z 

	

0 	Lu 
0 4* 	

-, 	CD 
U.I 	 V) 

V) 	 Z cl, (NJ CC 	 1172 
W 	 Q ,..1 	(N 	Q. 	 Ct-  0 	Lii 
b 0., 	V1 (r) *t 	* 	111 	 NI Z 	0_ 

Z 03 	LIJ tr) 	LL 	UJ 	 *a 0 
	

X 
11.1 

LIJ " 	 C.) u4 	o 	0) 	 14J c2e 

Z 	
CD  o_ 	(.9 



FE
E

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 

R
E

N
T

A
L

 O
F

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 

F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 A

N
D

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 H
A

N
G

A
R

S
 

P
U

B
L I

C
 P

LA
Y

 

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 

S
IM

U
LA

T
O

R
S

 A
N

D
 L

E
S

S
O

N
S

 

a. F
U

E
L
 F

LO
W

A
G

E
  

A
V

IA
T

IO
N

 F
E

E
S

  A
N

D
 S

E
C

U
R

IT
Y

 B
A

D
G

IN
G

  

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 H

A
R

B
O

R
S

 

W
H

A
R

F
A

G
E

  A
N

D
  D

O
C

K
A

G
E

 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

  F
E

E
S

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

  A
N

D
  F

U
E

L  
F

LO
W

A
G

E
  

O 
O 
O 

F- 
M in 
N  
0 
N ui 
>- 
u. 0 

U. 

CO 
0 0 03 001 	Cr) LA 0 C01 	Ln LI) 00 

	

N to to 	in 	cn Cr) 	

▪  

Cr) 	
N N N 
CA to 	 Cr) N 	'-4 	.C:ir)  

N < 
N U) 0 

MI 
Li) CA ,-I 0 
,--1-  

0 tO cr ,-I 

N 	
CA .4-  

tO 0 0 
*-1 CO N „zr:-4 

1 	CA N 	,-I CA N 

LO LO LA Ln NO koLn toN 	fr,0 rnr,  k003 

O 0 
N LI 
›- te 
U. 0 

U. 

0 0 
N < 
1-i U) 

kfi 
N 	 d: Cr)  ,-i 

CO t.0 7t 00 	 1-n 71-  N N 
CO Cr) 	N 	

LO to t.(3 	N 0 
LO Cr) N 

0 LO 71- 	N 
T-1 

,-1 	,..itDCA 	in 

N.1 
LO 0 CA 03 	 CO LA 0 01 I-- 

N uj 
›- Ce U. 0 

U. 

MI 

Ce a  
O 0  CD 

01  LU 

0 
ILI 0 I- 

0 
0 

l 
.-1 

,--i 

Ln 0 CO CA 
N 71-  Cr) 0 
d- 	Cr) 	,--1 	

CO LO 00 	.-4 
LO ,-1 ,-1 al 
CO N 	o 	Ln Cr) N 

O in Cr) 
LO to LO 	N 0 0) 

,...1‘,., 	,itn 	: 

Cr) N 

CD . , D 
O. 	GI rsi 

re 11- Ca 
Ct. 

+11.14 

111.9. 	
01 

 I- L 
(/) 

ri ct 	
Cr)
l 	 0 0 N N 	 o Li) to ,-4 	o o 

r-i 	
, 

71-  
O ‘i-  71-  CO 
1- 	Cr) 	"--f 	00 

LO 0 Cr) CA 
Cr) N ,-i 

 
LO 71-  N 
tO Cr)(-A N 	̀

A) r‘i rc71 ,_, 

g >- w u. 0 

0 . N uj 

U. 	

--1 	Cr) 

ILI 

ON 

0 

0 
(.9 

(sn 
LU 

LIU 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 



F
U

E
L

 S
A

L
E

S
 

C
O

N
C

E
S

S
IO

N
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

O
T

H
E

R
  R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
  

G
O

LF
 M

E
R

C
H

A
N

D
IS

E
 

UD 	 03 	 0 	

• 

N 
.ct 	V 	 Ln rn co cn 	on 	 N 	re) tr) 

op 	ry 	 ul rs rvl 	0 ry
n 	

Tr 
c N 	Lr) 

.4- en co 	0 
CA 

1 

O 

ei 

ri 

oo 	re) 	 re) 	 O N N 
r-i 	 re) 	 •;:t 	 V 	rn N Oi 	M 	 N rr) 1.0 0/1 

v)M
y 	 M 

▪  

cn 
N 	 M

N M LO 

N 	N 	 0 LID t.0 in 	co 	d 	 in 1.0 0) 
Ch 	 M 	 N ect 

z 
I IL. 11.1 Z 
O < u 0 

Z 
tn > 
• "j  
uj 0 
I— > 
Z 
1-4 CL 

   

(C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

 

F- 
M U) 
N < 
0 

>- 
U. 0 

u_ 

N
I-
V) 

N < 

NW 
>- 
U. 0 

Lt. 

1-iu) 
< 

N 
u. 0 

LL 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 O
P

E
  r  

A  T
IN

G
  R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 

 

 

Q 
U 

0 
u- 
rn 
N 
0 
N 

0 
N 
0 
N 
>- 
0. 

Z 

1- 0 
N 

W w 
a  Z 

z 
1:1  

0 
0 
N 

N 
0 

U. 
a 
U) 
0 
0. 
0 
CC 
0. 



	

NI OD1 	Ln in  

	

.F; 	 N 
N 	

to 	

„v. 	r. N 
	n"I 	ti 

	

mu) 	NCONNY 	N 
0 

>- 
W 0 

u. 

► 01 
.4- 00 001 ,40.1 	in a) N co NN N N 	 TIC°1 

0 	Ni lu 

rin 	›. (2 
u. 0 

ILI 
0 	 in N. N a 	 i) 	 ,-I 

	

N o tk°1 1 	tLn 	W.I 

5 	N 1.1.1 
01.4 15 
r4 (/) 	 0 CO N .-■ 

	

V' 	
•-I VD ON 	Noinl 

Lt 	 U. 0 
>m re 

LL 

LU 
Cin 
.1 

 
WOW 

 	,P, rT V. RI' O '

N N •:11 I 	00 CO ,-I CO 	COI 0 t.0 N N N. 
N tO 

	to 

 7C1 
O 

Ni-' 	in 	-Z 	 r. 

LLI up) 	0 0 , i - to 
0. N  

O >- n 

Z Elm 	CI'  

Z iml 	.0 N , ,, 
N M 

N0 HN 1  
to 00

CO 
 tO N 	M 0 0 VI lInOrl 	N.1 

0 It 0 U 
Crl UL 
O < 

N 	CO 

	

V' 	
0 0 	rj,  

Cetn  ILL  U. 0 
IL 

N w 

ILI cc)  
Et. 

ILI LU 
Eim (9 ow  
1=4 Z o  

0 Ce 
te) I•4 

m Li- LUZ   

▪ 

 W
-J 

Cf? r2  
E CI 	 0 > 

Z W Lui--; 
0 0 

0 Z 

(I) < 

PE
F P 

FR
 

RI
 

L
IF

E
 I

N
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 



M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 

lf) ct 1-1 	1-1 7-4 

7-4 

_J 
0 

U) 	CD 

N 

0 

	

a
LLI 	o_ 

	

_J 	0 

,71 co V) 

co 
N 

O 

Ina 

Cl 
0 r, 
co LO 

(r) D 	Z 0 W

• 	

Z Z V) 
0 	0  Z U r • 0 5 	w 

Z 	I■4 is 	
< 
(g) 0 

moo 	u 

U. 
0 0 

U.1 0 
N 

0 

0 >. 

CI 
C. 

z 
-J 

ST
A

F
F

IN
G

 

N 
0 
N 

LL 

N 
N 
O 

IL 

N 
0 
N 

U. 

O 
N 
O 
N 

•-• 
0 
N 

U.  U. 

  

1-4 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

0 0 0 0 0 1 0 
0 0 Ul 0 

UDC Crt 

• 	

tr) 	 CO 

N 	 7-i 
3-1 	

rl 
 

o 	0 0 0 0 ■ I to o o Ln 
to 	0 C*1 V i

o
ll 

ni 	‘1.--  ri.  N 4 
N 	7-4 

o 0 0 0 0 ' 1 
 0 	 In 0 

VD 	0 P
0
1 V Ul 

N Tr-
N 	7.4 43

.
8
7
0
 
4
3
.
8
7
0
 
 

0 0 0 0 0 	 01 0 
N 	0 0 Ul 0 V 7-1 0 .4 
0 	0 	C • 1 	•:1- 	Ul 	0: 	1••• 
(Nr ei N 	 N 
N 

: 0 0 o 
0 	o cp in o 	tn 0 m 
to0 M VV) 	 N co in 

•:1M 	(-4 	.-. 	m 	N 	,...; r-I 	1-1 	
Rt 

N 7-1 

vl 

N 	 7-1 	 r1 vi 
N 	 NNI 

UI 5 re ce 
o 'e 0 0- z 	 UJ 	LU 	rt 0 44 

	

<C .-0 0 I w J=re 	 0 Ct. X 

CO N 	N 	N 	tt go• 	

• 

N 
ri 	7-4 	 If) 	7-4 

CO 	el 	U) 	Nr 	1-1 N 	1 	rq 	•zr 0 
ri 	 •••-• 

z 
0  

0 
(.7) 
U) W 
U 
(fa 
(I) 
(I) 	c2 
C 0 

• c

• 

c 

I- 

• 	

ar, 
> 

0 

(,) 0 
• 0 < 
0 

• w z 
g 
a— 	I__ 
▪ c4 

Lai .2 z z 
o 

• p < 0 ,e 
Z 

0

- 

 Q- 
 

ZOO 0 x  • (,) 

~mo d . 0 ui 
(r) 
=

• 0

a 
0 

to 
▪ 0 

W L(L71  z 
< 0 

O 0 P, 
• W 

< 
rj 2 2 0 

< 
0 z 

0 z E 0 2 
cn 
0 (i)  
°- 2 < 

1

• 	

2 2 
• Z 

< (.9 
O f f < 

O w O 

• 

<
eL  

 Q¢ 
u_ u_ u_ 
0 00  

0 0 W z z z  

u  
0. 
O w 

x 
X • I- I- • ,„ 

Z 	W „ 
V 	tij 
• --I -I 

U-

0 
• rsi 

• F. Cud F. 
 rl 



u. 
0 
ce 
ce 

a 

(B
E

N
E

F
IT

E
D

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

S
 O

N
L

Y
)  



C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 
tr) 
N < 
0 
N lij 

U. 0 
U. 

CV u) 
N < 
0 0 
N 

U. 0 
u. 

ri 
N 
0 
N 

u. 0 

U 
 w 

ce 
0 

N 
M 

0 
N 

C
L

E
A

N
IN

G
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 P
A

R
T

S
 

E
N

V
I R

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

  T
E

S
T

IN
G

 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

V
E

G
IT

A
T

IO
N

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 

G
A

S
O

L
IN

E
 A

N
D

 D
IE

S
E

L
  

S
N

O
W

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 R
E

N
T

A
L 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

H
V

A
C

 R
E

P
A

IR
S

 

A
IR

F
IE

L
D

  L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 

A
L

L
  O

T
H

E
R

 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 P
A

R
T

S
 

N 
•-■ 

C 
O 
O 

• N 	N CO 	CA <I" (11 	•-4 	N U) O Ln 
• N 	Lr) ‘71-  CA GO VD 00 	'11" 	tO 'I' 01 en 1-1 

rn 

Cr)

N  

r-i tO In N. OD .-1 Tr •:1" 'cr 	CO 	UD 01 CM Ul 
N N VD Ul <1-  Cr) CO r' CO 	q 	U0 't N N 
Cr) 	Cr) 	Ch 	•-I 	,-, 

>- 
U. 

0 
N 
O 
N 

>- 
VD 00 Cr) CI CO CA 	N r-1 	 MN 01 1.11 U1 LO 
00 V) 	 Cr) CO 00 N N 	 IP 

• 

N N N N N 	0 
Cr) 	Cr) 	M*1 	r-■ 	 Z 

Nw 
(./ uj 
OZ 

to ,-, 

z 

au 
a. 

N to N. N ,-I N N CO N 	•--i 	rn N N Cr) 0 0 0 
U) V" Cr) c'N 00 N 1.0 VD 	U) 	U) d-  CO N CI' N  
,-4 	N 	,--4 	'-4 	 N ,!.1.111 	N 

N 
>- 
u. 

o 
u, 
tn 
0 
a. 
0 
W 
w 

 VD V' 0 Xi M N M CO 	C2) 	U) In OD 0 N 
N 1.0 	 V-  01 00 VD OD 	CO 	VD .4-  M M 
In 	(NI 	Cr) 	1-1 	I-4 

■-4 	0 	1.1 

N 	Cr) 	ril •-4 	01 	p, 
N M 

Cr) 	N 



T-1 0 0 
0 CO 
st N 

0 03 N 	 0 	 N 	 N oo 	 d- 	 M N 1-4 	r-I 

oo cs-■ 
Cri N o 

't 0 0 Lt) N Cr) 0 N. 	 N 
00 N 	 en Crl 	en 	en 	 0 

1-4 

01 0 VD 
at N. 0 
Cr) N 

t
CO
O 

N 
Lf) 

Cr) N 

0 	N CCI Cr) 	1.1) 	Ln 	N 1-1 	 LO 

	

CO k0 V V 	 Cr)M 	Cr) M N 	 0 ch 

	

N O V' 	 L.11 	Nt 'Cr CO 	1.0 Ln M 	rn 	 1-1 	 N 

A
L

L
  O

T
H

E
R

  

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
 A

C
T

  

IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 

B
A

N
K

 F
E

E
S

  

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 

C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

  

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
 

T
R

A
V

E
L

 A
N

D
 M

IL
E

A
G

E
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
  A

N
D

  P
R

IN
T

IN
G

  

C
L

O
T

H
IN

G
 A

N
D

 U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 U
N

D
E

R
 $

5
, 0

0
0
 

T
A

X
E

S
  I

N
 L

IE
U

-  
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

  S
E

R
V

IC
E

 F
E

E
  

S
A

F
E

T
Y

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 R

E
N

T
A

L
  

S
U

B
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

  

O 
O 
O 

	

ko (NI 	in 	N Cr) 	 oo 	d- 	O 	CO 	N Lf1 —1 v) 1-4 	 1-1 	CO 	N •;1- 	Cr) 	Cr) 	Cr) 	 N 	 1-1 	.--4 
CO
N v-I 

ri 

tu 
lr 
0 
LL 

N 
0 N 

0 
N 
0 
N 
>- 

O 
U. 

Z 
a -4  

o 
frI 
I, 
Z 

m 
cX 
z 
1-1 

0 
0 
N 
0 N 
LL 
W 

0 
0. 
0 
re a. 

(v) (1) 
N  0 < 

N ul 
›- 
U. 0 

u. 

I- 
N in 
N 

N 

U. 0 
u. 

1 ♦ 
N < 
o 
N uj 

U. 0 
U. 

0 
LU 

 V) 	
1— 
W 

O. N0 

0. 
11- 

(/) 
ri < 
O 
N 

U. 0 
U. 



O 

tF 171 

Ca 

• 

5 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
!.11 	%71' 

HMM 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 

I-
N u) 
N < 
0 
N 

>•-• 
u- 0 

U- 

1-1 (1) 
N < 
O L) 
N 

U. 0 

O (/) 
1-1 < 
0 L..) 
N 

>" 
U. 0 

U- 

0 
0 
0 

Ol 	M 	(fl 	CO 	al 
N N 	 k0 

,-I 

N 	 01 N Nal 

▪  

'O r) 

- N 	 N 	COI 
r-

▪  

t 

▪ 	

N 	O1 	co 

0 	CO 	rn 	 1D 
0 	 CO 	N 	 T-1

I 

NI
N 

r01 	 tO 

▪  

CO in 

0 
Z 
< 
ILI 
Z 

< 
tu 

a. 

V) tn 
r,1 < 
0  C..) 
i'l w 
:';-• 

0
it 

tl.. 	D. 

	

IL 	CS 

1- 
vi 
.2 
U 
W 

	

i- 	 re 

	

el to 	0 
+NI . 	U. 	u_ 

	

0 C.; 	....J 	VI 

	

IN !J 	0 	N 
,-,.. 	0 	N 

	

Ff. 0 	>- 

	

1.1. 	u. 

0 
N 
0 
N 
).- 

	

t-• 	.›....4 	
O. 

1-1 M 
(7) 	

0 
Z o 01 < 

	

0 (.) 	, 

	

ri EU 	I- o 
ILI N 

	

::. W 	 0 iii  

	

0. 0 	 0 z 

	

a. 	 n D 
CO ,., 

Z 
I-I 

(,) 	I- 
0. 

W 

	

r..) 	III 

	

0111 	a 

	

el U) 	0 

	

0 Q 	0 
IN N 

	

a. 	0 

	

>., 0 	N 

1^ 	a 
o 

O w 
in 

D. 	0 
EU 	a 
( 0 
• e[ 

F0 ti) 	Lt 
.ri 	r■-• 

N0 („) 	-II 
w 

>. it 
U. 0 

U. 

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y
 

W
A

S
T

E
 D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

 

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
 G

A
S

 



1-1 
N N cr co 

0 Cr) 1 

o 	c3) 

 

M O 

  

to 	.4' 	a 
N 

0 
 a) 	
N 0 
`4-  

fel 

• (I) 
N 
0 
N Lu 
>- 
U. 0 

U. 

A
L

L
  O

T
H

E
R

 

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 

..111  

0 
0 
0 

c.1- 	co 0 	•:1- 	NI 
N 

U) 
LU 
U  

LU 
U) 

z 
0 

U) 

 tool 

ILI 

0 (/) 
ri 
0  

uj 
>. re 
u. o 

LL 

0 
0 

0 
0 

Ll 
N 
1-1 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

  

Z 0 
0 CC Z 

	

I-I ILL I-4 	 i- 

	

0 cd 	 re 
< Z O 

	

4 0 a 	
0 
C. 

	

1— c)I— 	Z I& 
ILL Z ..J 	 0 >"' 

	

CC ILI 	1.4 (.7 CI) 
>" 12 Z —I I—.  0 —1 

	

1-4 = ILI 	cr ..I et 

..j er Z Cd CI ... 1.4 W li re Z re 
1 a u) < 2 0 X IU 
ul c4 iti U. " U. (..) I- 

	

..Juj  ...c2" u.111  (.1 	u. 	1-I >' Z  1-1"ur 



F- 
M U) 
N < 
0 
N 
>. Ce 
U. 0 

U- 

F. 
N 
Na 
0 
N w 

U. 0 

(/) 
(Ni < 
0 
N 
>•• 
U. 0 

U- 

U) 
TI < 
0 
N 

U. 0 

••••■ 

0 
0 
0 

+A- 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
  P

R
O

M
O

T
IO

N
  CD 	o 	CD1 

Cet 
N 

 
ri 

CD 	1-1 

CD 
mI 

O 	CS) 	 Chi 
0 

fel 

Ill 	1-1 
r-I 

1-1 

u- m 
U 

re 
0 
u. 

0 
N 

LL 

0 
N 
0 
N 
›- LL 
0 
z o  

I- 0 
ILI N 

15  1U Cz 

z 

ag 
0. 
0 

0 

LL 

c. 



E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

Q z 
tin4 

CL 
0 

I 
LIU 

0 

C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
E

 

G
O

L
F

 C
A

R
T

 L
E

A
S

E
 

G
O

L
F

 M
E

R
C

H
A

N
D

IS
E

 

C
O

A
S

T
 T

R
O

L
L

E
Y

 

M 
N < 
o 
N uj 

U. 0 
aL 

N M 
N < 
0 
N w 
›- 
U. 0 U. 

I- 
v-1 

 N M< 

N w 

U. 0 U- 

0 
in 	l- 
in (NI ;Li 
0 
a. 0 

ai m11-  
et 

01 V) 
< 

0 
N 

U. 0 
U. 

OomN 
Ln 	co N N 03 T-I 

L!O) 
	0 0 0 	kt) 

GO N N co 

O o 
If) 	GO 	N 
CO 

O 0 0 LO 
Lf1 	CO 	N 
03 	r-I 

"zr 0 0 
r•-• 	GO 	N 
GO 

U 

0 u. 
N 0 N 
LL 
0 N 0 N 
LL 
0 
Z a  
42 
I- 11/ N 

ui 
 OZ 

z 
172_ 

0 
0 
0 

LL 

O 

0 

171 

col 

,71 



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

LICENSE 

This LICENSE is made by and between the PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 55 

International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801 established under New Hampshire RSA 12-G ("PDA") and 

Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company of Boston, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, with an 

address of 10 Navigator Road, Londonderry, New Hampshire 03053 ("Enterprise" or "Licensee"). 

RECITALS  

A. PDA is an agency of the State of New Hampshire established pursuant to RSA ch. 12-

G, "Pease Development Authority," and is authorized to enter into this License pursuant to the provisions 

contained therein. 

B. By Quitclaim Deeds made and entered into on October 15, 2003 and September 16, 

2005 (the "Deeds"), the Government, acting by and through the Secretary of the Air Force, did grant 

to PDA the land and improvements located in the City of Portsmouth, Town of Newington and 

Town of Greenland which deeds included the licensed Premises. The Parties acknowledge that 

the Deeds impose certain requirements on Licensee with respect to licenses which are addressed 

in the terms and conditions of this License. Copies of the Deeds are recorded in the Rockingham 

Registry of Deeds at Book 4227, Page 1 and Book 4564, Page 985 respectively. 

C. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required 

under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 

of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq, has been entered into by the Air Force, the New 

Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that this 

FFA also imposes certain requirements upon PDA and Licensee which are addressed in the terms 

1 



and conditions of this License. A copy of the current FFA recorded at the Rockingham County 

Registry of Deeds at Book 4227, Book 0078 (see Exhibit F to Quitclaim deed dated October 15, 

2003). Unless the context refers specifically to the document constituting the FFA document, the 

term FFA shall include any amendments to said document. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other 

valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, PDA and Licensee hereby 

agree as follows: PDA grants to Licensee, on a month to month basis for a period beginning on 

June 3, 2019 and extending through November 30, 2019, a License to use all of 35 Airline 

Avenue (a 2,400+/- square foot building) in Portsmouth, NH as more specifically shown on 

Exhibit A ("Licensed Premises"), attached hereto and made a part of this License. Each Party 

reserves the right to terminate this License without cause upon providing the other party with thirty 

(30) days written notice. 

Licensee may use the Licensed Premises during the period of June 3, 2019 through midnight 

November 30, 2019 only for the purpose the short-term storage and prepping of motor vehicles related 

to its car rental business at the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, and other uses incidental 

thereto, and for no other use without the prior express written consent of the PDA. 

Licensee is strictly prohibited from the washing of motor vehicles with water or other liquid 

that would cause a discharge to the ground, sewer, or drainage system on the Licensed Premises and 

from the storing any "Hazardous Substances" (as that term is defined in Exhibit B attached hereto) 

on the Licensed Premises. 

Licensee is strictly prohibited from engaging in any subsurface excavation, drilling, 

digging or any related activities which would involve disturbing the surface of the Licensed Premises. 

This License is granted subject to the following conditions: 

2 



1. The use, occupation and maintenance of the Licensed Premises shall be (a) without 

cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) 

subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time. 

2. Licensee acknowledges that it has inspected the condition of the Licensed 

Premises and that said Licensed Premises are in good and tenantable condition for the use 

contemplated in this License. Licensee accepts the Licensed Premises in an "as is," "where 

is" condition without any representation, warranty or obligation on the part of the PDA to make 

any alterations, repairs, or improvements or as to the use or occupancy which may be made 

thereon. PDA shall not be responsible for any latent or other defect or change in condition in said 

Licensed Premises. 

3. Licensee understands and acknowledges that (a) this License allows only 

temporary use of the facilities and (b) this License may be revoked at will by PDA or terminated as 

provided in Paragraph 12,, and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or 

termination. Licensee's use of the Licensed Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not 

constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

4. Licensee will, at all times, protect, repair and maintain the Licensed Premises in good 

order and condition at its expense and without cost or expense to PDA but shall have no duty to 

repair any condition that existed at the commencement of this License. Licensee will be 

responsible for snow removal in connection with the use of the Licensed Premises. 

The Licensee shall during its occupancy of the Licensed Premises pick-up and secure any and 

all trash or debris observed on the Licensed Premises. All trash and debris shall be removed from the 

Licensed Premises on a daily basis. 

3 



PDA shall have no obligation to bring or to cause utility lines to be brought to the 

Licensed Premises. PDA makes no representation with respect to the capacity of utility lines existing 

as the execution date of the License Agreement. Licensee shall not at any time overburden or 

exceed the capacity of the mains, feeders, ducts, conduits, or other facilities by which such utilities 

are supplied to, distributed in or serve the Licensed Premises. 

During the term of this License, PDA shall not be responsible for providing any meters or 

other devices for the measurement of utilities supplied to the Licensed Premises. To the extent 

applicable, Licensee shall install or make application and arrange for the installation of all such 

meters or other devices. Licensee shall be solely responsible for and promptly pay, as and when 

the same become due and payable, all charges for water, sewer, electricity, telephone and any other 

utility used or consumed in the Licensed Premises and supplied by PDA, any public utility or 

authority, or any other person, firm or corporation. 

5. Licensee shall, at its own expense, promptly repair or replace to the satisfaction of 

the PDA any PDA, State of New Hampshire or Air Force property damaged or destroyed by 

Licensee incident to the exercise of the privileges granted herein. Alternatively, if required by 

PDA, Licensee shall pay PDA money in an amount sufficient to compensate for the loss 

sustained by PDA or State of New Hampshire for damage to or destruction of PDA, State of New 

Hampshire or Air Force property. 

6. No addition, alteration, change, or improvement (including erection of signage) to the 

Licensed Premises shall be made without the prior written consent of PDA, which consent shall 

not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. PDA reserves the right to impose conditions on any 

such work to the extent such conditions are consistent with applicable governmental regulations, 

codes, standards or other requirements, including fire, safety and building codes and Land Use 

4 



Controls promulgated by PDA, applicable provisions of the FFA and the Deeds. 

	

7. 	Licensee will at all times during the existence of this License, promptly observe and 

comply, at its sole cost and expense, with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and local 

laws, rules, regulations and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the protection 

and enhancement of environmental quality, pollution control and abatement, safe drinking water, 

and solid and hazardous waste. 

a. Responsibility for compliance with such laws, rules, regulations and 

standards rests exclusively with Licensee. PDA assumes no enforcement or supervisory 

responsibility except for matters committed to its jurisdiction. Licensee shall assume 

responsibility for and pay all costs relating to (i) any modification to the Licensed Premises 

required, as a result of Licensee's use of the Licensed Premises, to meet applicable federal, state 

and local standards relative to on-site sewage treatment or compliance with other applicable 

laws, regulations, or standards, or (ii) associated with compliance, defense of enforcement 

actions or suits, payment of fines, penalties, or other sanctions and remedial costs arising or 

directly resulting from Licensee's use of the Licensed Premises. 

b. This condition does not constitute a waiver of Federal Supremacy or State or 

federal sovereign immunity. Only laws and regulations applicable to the Licensed Premises under 

the Constitution and statutes of the United States and State of New Hampshire are covered by this 

condition. 

	

8. 	PDA or any other agency of the State of New Hampshire, their officers, agents, 

employees, and contractors may enter upon the Licensed Premises, upon reasonable prior notice, 

to inspect the Licensed Premises for compliance with environmental, safety and occupational 

health laws and regulations, whether or not PDA is responsible for enforcing them and Licensee 

5 



shall have no claim on account of such entries against PDA, the State of New Hampshire or any 

officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof. 

a. Licensee acknowledges that Pease has been identified as a National 

Priority List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and 

Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. Licensee acknowledges that PDA has provided it 

with a copy of the FFA entered into by the EPA, NHDES, and the Air Force on April 24, 1991 and 

Modification No. 1 thereto, effective March 18, 1993 and agrees that it will comply with the terms of 

the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the Licensed Premises and that should any 

conflict arise between the terms of the FFA or the provisions of this License, the terms of the 

FFA will take precedence. 

b. The Air Force, the EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, 

employees, contractors, and subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to Licensee, to 

enter upon the Licensed Premises to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where 

necessary drilling, test-pitting, borings, and any other response or remedial action related to the 

Pease Air Force Base Installation Restoration Program (IRP) or FFA. These inspections, surveys or 

other response or remedial actions will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with a 

representative designated by Licensee. Licensee agrees to comply with the provisions of any 

health or safety plan implemented by any person during the course of such response or remedial 

action. Licensee shall have no claim on account of such entries against the United States or the 

State of New Hampshire or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof except for any 

intentional or negligent act or omission by PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, 

contractors and subcontractors. 

c. The Licensed Premises may have environmental monitoring wells situated 

6 



on or around it which are maintained by the US Air Force. Licensee agrees to ensure that its activities 

on the Licensed Premises will not interfere with or damage said wells. 

9. 	Except to the extent caused by any intentional or negligent act or omission by PDA 

or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors, PDA shall not be 

responsible for damage to property or injuries to persons which may arise from or be attributable 

or incident to the exercise of the privileges granted under this License (including the condition or state 

of repair of the Licensed Premises and its use and occupation by Licensee), or for damage to the 

property of Licensee, or for damage to the property or injuries to the person of Licensee's officers, 

employees, servants, agents, contractors, or others who may be on the Licensed Premises at 

their invitation or the invitation of any one of them, arising from governmental activities on the 

Licensed Premises. 

a. Licensee agrees to assume all risks of loss or damage to the Licensed 

Premises including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other property and bodily injury or 

death to persons by reason of the exercise by Licensee of the privileges granted herein, and will 

settle and pay any claims arising out of the use and occupancy of the Licensed Premises. Except to 

the extent caused by any intentional or negligent act or omission by PDA or any of PDA's officers, 

agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors, Licensee expressly waives all claims against PDA, 

the State of New Hampshire and the United States of America, including the Air Force, for any such 

loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring by reason of or incident to the 

possession and/or use of the Licensed Premises or as a consequence of the conduct of activities 

or the performance of responsibilities under this License. 

b. Licensee agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend PDA and 

the State of New Hampshire (the "State") their officers, employees, and agents from and against all 

7 



suits, claims, or actions of any sort resulting from, related to or arising out of any activities 

conducted under this License and any costs, expenses, liabilities, fines, or penalties resulting 

from discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage, disposal of any substance or matter, or any 

other action by Licensee giving rise to PDA or the State liability, civil or criminal, or 

responsibility under federal, state or local environmental laws except to the extent caused by any 

intentional or negligent act or omission by PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, 

contractors or subcontractors. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this 

License and Licensee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever PDA or the State incur costs or 

liabilities for Licensee's actions of the types described herein. 

c. Licensee shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Licensed Premises, 

including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from any 

causes whatsoever except to the extent caused by any intentional or negligent act or omission by 

PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors. 

d. During the entire period this License shall be in effect, the Licensee at its 

expense will carry and maintain personal property insurance coverage against loss or damage by 

fire and lightning and against loss or damage or other risks embraced by coverage of the type now 

known as the broad form of extended coverage (including but not limited to riot and civil 

commotion, vandalism, and malicious mischief and earthquake) in an amount not less than 100% 

of the full replacement value of the improvements and personal property on the Licensed Premises. 

The policies of insurance carried in accordance with this Section shall contain a -Replacement 

Cost Endorsement." Such full replacement cost shall be determined from time to time, upon the 

written request of the PDA, but not more frequently than once in any twenty-four (24) consecutive 

calendar month period (except in the event of substantial changes or alterations to the Licensed 

8 



Premises undertaken by Licensee as permitted under the provisions hereof) by written agreement 

of PDA and Licensee, or if they cannot agree within thirty (30) days of such request, by an 

insurance consultant, appraiser, architect, or contractor who shall be mutually and reasonably 

acceptable to the PDA and the Licensee. Any such determination by a third party shall be subject 

to approval by PDA and Licensee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The 

insurance maintained per the requirements of this Section shall be adjusted to 100% of the new full 

replacement cost consistent with the approved determination. 

e. During the entire period this License shall be in effect, the Licensee at its 

expense will carry and maintain commercial general liability coverage on an occurrence basis for 

"personal injury", including without limitation bodily injury, death and property damage 

insurance occurring on, in or about the Licensed Premises (limits of liability shall not be less than 

Two Million ($2,000,000) per occurrence; workers' compensation and employee's liability 

insurance in an amount and form which meets all applicable labor laws of the State of New 

Hampshire, as amended from time to time, and which specifically covers the persons and risks 

involved in this License; and automobile liability insurance coverage to a limit of not less than 

One Million dollars ($1,000,000) per incident for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, for 

any loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring by reason of or incident to the 

possession and/or use of the Licensed Premises or as a consequence of the conduct of activities or 

the performance of responsibilities under this License. Licensee shall also obtain contents 

insurance to insure its property and equipment. 

f. With the exception of Workers Compensation coverage all policies or 

certificates issued by the respective insurers shall name the PDA as an additional insured, 

provide that any losses shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of 

9 



PDA or any other person, provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the 

PDA, be primary and non-contributing with respect to coverages carried by PDA, provide that the 

policies shall not be canceled without first providing PDA with thirty (30) days advance written 

notice, except in cases involving the non-payment of a premium, in which case ten (10) days shall 

be acceptable and be reasonably satisfactory to the PDA in all other respects. In no circumstances will 

the Licensee be entitled to assign to any third party rights of action which Licensee may have 

against PDA. Licensee shall deliver or cause to be delivered to PDA a certificate or certificates of 

insurance evidencing the insurance required by this License prior to occupancy of the Licensed 

Premises. 

10. On or before the date of expiration of this License, or expiration of the 30 day 

notice period after its revocation by PDA or relinquishment by Licensee set forth in paragraph 12 

below, Licensee shall vacate the Licensed Premises, remove all its personal property therefrom 

and restore and return the Licensed Premises to PDA, broom clean and in the same or better 

condition than their condition at the commencement of the term of this License, reasonable wear 

and tear excepted. If Licensee shall fail or neglect to remove its personal property and to restore 

the premises, then at the option of PDA, such property shall either become the property of PDA 

without compensation therefor, or PDA may cause the property to be removed and the premises to 

be so restored at the expense of Licensee, and no claim for damage against PDA or its officers, 

employees or agents shall be created by or made on account of such removal and restoration 

work. 

11. [Reserved] 

12. This License may be revoked by the PDA or terminated by either party with or 

without cause on thirty (30) days written notice to the other party concerned, and if such notice shall 

10 



be so given this License shall terminate on the thirtieth (30th) day following the date of such 

notice. 

13. This License shall not be transferred or assigned. 

14. No notice, order, direction, determination, requirement, consent and/or approval 

under this License shall be of any effect unless it is in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to 

this License shall be sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; addressed, if to 

PDA: 
Pease Development Authority 
Attn: Executive Director 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

and if to Licensee to: 
Enterprise Rent-A-Car 
10 Navigator Road 
Londonderry, NH 03053 

or at such other address or addresses as PDA or Licensee may from time to time designate by notice 

given by certified mail. 

Every notice, demand, request or communication hereunder sent by mail shall be deemed 

to have been given or served as of the third (3rd) business day following the date of such mailing. 

15. [Reserved] 

1 6 . 	Licensee shall not discriminate against any person or persons or exclude any 

persons from participation in Licensee's operations, program, or activities conducted on the 

Licensed Premises because of race, color, age, sex, handicap, national origin or religion. 

Licensee, by acceptance of this License, hereby gives assurance that the provisions of Title VI of 

the Civil Rights Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 

U.S.C. § 6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794) and the 

11 



Department of Defense Directive 5500.11, May 27, 1971, as amended 32 CFR pt 300) will be 

complied with. 

17. This License shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State 

of New Hampshire and may only be modified or amended by mutual agreement of the parties in 

writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the respective parties hereto. 

18. This License may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

19. This License is subject and subordinate to any agreements heretofore or hereafter 

made between PDA and the United States or the Air Force, the execution of which is required to 

enable or permit transfer of rights or property to PDA for airport purposes or expenditure of 

federal grant funds for airport improvement, maintenance or development, including, without 

limitation the Deeds and FFA. Licensee shall abide by requirements of any agreement between 

PDA and the United States or the Air Force applicable to the Licensed Premises or Licensee's 

activities at the Airport and shall consent to amendments and modifications of this License if 

required by such agreements or as a condition of PDA's entry into such agreements. 

20. The rights of Licensee under this License shall be subordinate to PDA's rights to 

manage the Airport and other common areas and roadways, which rights shall include, without 

limitation, the right to impose, reasonable rules and regulations relating to use of the Airport 

common areas and roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the 

designation and use of all airfield facilities and parking areas, entrances, exits, roadways and 

other areas of the Airport, to the extent all of the foregoing are not part of the Licensed Premises. 

Licensee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations which 

apply to the conduct of the use contemplated, including rules and regulations promulgated by 

12 



PDA. Licensee shall pay to PDA an amount equal to all fines levied by the FAA against PDA for 

any breach of FAA requirements by Licensee or any of its contractors, agents, servants or invitees. 

Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the uses authorized herein are not granted on an exclusive 

basis and that PDA may enter into licenses, leases or other agreements with tenants and/or other 

users of the Airport for similar, identical or competing uses. 

21. Licensee shall pay, on a monthly basis, a License Fee of $750.00 for the Licensed 

Premises. The License Fee shall be payable in advance in each case on the first day of each month 

without offset in lawful money of the United States at the office of PDA or at such other address as 

PDA may hereafter designate. The first monthly payment shall be made in advance on or before 

the commencement date of this License Agreement. The License Fee for any fractional portion 

of a calendar month at the beginning or end of the term of this License shall be prorated based on 

the number of days in said month. 

22. In addition to the License Fee required to be paid under Section 21 of this License, 

Licensee shall also pay to PDA a municipal services fee in accordance with the Municipal 

Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of Newington, and the 

PDA effective July 1, 1998. The municipal services fee, which is based on the square footage of 35 

Airline Avenue, is $600.00 per calendar quarter ($200.00 per month). The municipal services fee 

shall be paid in equal monthly installments over the term of this License, as Additional Rent, at the 

times and in the fashion provided in Section 21 for the payment of the License Fee. The municipal 

service fee for any fractional portion of a calendar month at the beginning or end of the term of 

this License shall be prorated based on the number of days in said month. 

To the extent the Licensed Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and provided such 

municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services, Licensee 

13 



may offset against any fee paid to PDA the portion of such municipal taxes as are attributable to 

fire, police and roadway services, and PDA shall have no further obligation to provide such 

services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against the Licensed Premises, or on 

Licensee as Licensee, for all three of fire, police and roadway services and PDA either has no 

obligation to provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal services fee 

required to be paid under this Section 22 shall terminate. 

In the event the Licensed Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport 

District, Licensee shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in 

accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by 

a municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District. 

23. 	Both parties acknowledge that they have not worked with a broker or agent in 

connection with the negotiation or finalization of this License. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 	day of 	 

	  2019, by authority of the Pease Development Authority. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By: 	  
David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

This License, together with all terms and conditions thereof, is hereby accepted and 

executed by Licensee, Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company of Boston, LLC this 	day of 

, 2019. 

ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR COMPANY OF 
BOSTON, LLC 

By: 	 
Print Name: 
Print Title: 

P:7ERM1NAL\ Enterprise\Agreeinent \Enterprise Rent-A-Car License 5-22-2019.docx 

   

Chryssa N. Alexis 

  

  

Regional Vice President 

 

 

14 



15 

l=204rs. 

35 Airline Avenue Right of Entry DESIGNED BY: MR11 	DATE: 51221I5 	SCALE 1%200'± 

55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE PORTSMO DIN, NH mai 0\  1 --  '--- PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

NH tueei 



EXHIBIT B 
As used in this License, the term "Hazardous Substances" means any hazardous or toxic 

substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, which is or becomes regulated by any local 
governmental authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government. The term 
"Hazardous Substances" includes, without limitation, any material or substance which is (i) defined 
as a "hazardous waste," under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a "hazardous 
substance" under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other petroleum product, 
(iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous substance pursuant to Part Hc. P 1905 
("Hazardous Waste Rules") of the New Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, (vi) designated 
as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 
U.S.C. § 1317, (vii) defined as a "hazardous waste" pursuant to Section 1004 of the Federal 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903), or (viii) 
defined as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601) and (ix) so 
defined in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, 
or as such laws or regulations may be further amended, modified or supplemented (collectively 
"Hazardous Substance Laws"). 

As used in this License, the terms "release" and "storage" shall have the meanings 
provided in RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided in 
RSA 147-A:2. 

16 



June 6, 2019 

Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC 
549 Route 1 Bypass 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: Right of Entry for Designated Portion of the Air Passenger Terminal 
Building @ Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, with Associated 
Vehicle Parking 

Dear 

1. In anticipation of Pease Development Authority Board approval of a Car Rental 
Concession Lease and Operating. Agreement (the "Agreement") at its June 20,2019 
meeting, this Right of Entry will authorize Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC. (DEAL) at its 
sole risk, to enter upon portions of the above referenced Premises as shown on 
Exhibit B for the purpose of utilizing an approximate 87 +/- foot area for a car 
rental services operation and for no other use without the express written consent 
of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). In addition, DEAL shall have access 
to a 24-hour DEAL drop box and the six (6) motor vehicle parking spaces shown 
on Exhibit B-1. Collectively, these areas are referred to herein as the "Premises." 

2. The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shall be; (a) except as 
otherwise set forth herein, without cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the 
general supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such rules and 
regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time. 

3. This Right of Entry will commence on June 10, 2019 and shall continue through 
June 30, 2019, unless sooner replaced by the approved and fully executed 
Agreement. Terminal rent, annual minimum concession fee, percentage fees, and 
municipal services fees shall be paid by DEAL to the PDA pursuant to the 
Agreement when approved and executed. If the Agreement is not approved and 
executed, DEAL shall pay to the PDA all rent and fees for the term of this Right of 
Entry as calculated based on the provisions of Article 4 of the draft Agreement. 

4. 	The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance 
and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 2 

5. Insurance & Indemnification.  DEAL agrees to provide PDA with proof of 
insurance which meet the coverage requirements set forth in Exhibit A of this Right 
of Entry. 

DEAL's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and 
all risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of 
or incident to its entry or the entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors 
upon the Premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities granted herein. 
DEAL expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, damage, 
bodily injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of DEAL's use of 
the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities 
under this authorization. DEAL further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, 
and defend the PDA, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and 
against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and 
attorney's fees arising out of DEAL's use of the Premises or any activities conducted 
or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

6. Janitorial Services - PDA will provide janitorial services to DEAL. Such services 
shall include sweeping, vacuuming, floor waxing and trash removal. 

7. Utilities - PDA shall furnish utility services for lighting, heating and air 
conditioning. 

8. The Air Passenger Terminal Building and areas behind the Portsmouth 
International Airport security fence are part of the Airport Security Identification 
Display Area ("SIDA"). DEAL personnel will, to the extent as may be required, 
obtain security badges in order to gain access to and remain in the SIDA. While in 
the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the Portsmouth International 
Airport at Pease Security Program (if applicable) must be met. Prior to accessing 
the SIDA, DEAL personnel must undergo verification of their employment history 
for the past ten (10) years, attend a training class that is offered no more than once 
every two weeks. Information regarding SIDA requirements can be obtained by 
calling the Airport Management Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through 
Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. No representative, employee or agent of the DEAL 
will be allowed in the SIDA without authorized escorts unless such individuals have 
been issued security badges pursuant to the Pease International Tradeport Security 
Program. No administrative processing fee will be assessed in connection with 
issuing security badges to DEAL personnel. However, PDA reserves the right to 
assess a fee for lost or unreturned badges. 

9. PDA reserves the right to relocate the DEAL to alternate facilities within the Air 
Passenger Terminal Building if such becomes necessary due to Air Passenger 
Terminal Building expansion plans or other business reasons. In the event 
relocation becomes necessary, PDA agrees it will make a good faith effort to 
provide the DEAL with comparable facilities to the ones being occupied and 
utilized in connection with this Right of Entry. 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 3 

10. MODIFICATION. This Right of Entry may be modified upon the mutual consent 
of the both parties. 

11. OTHER PROVISIONS. Nothing in this Right of Entry is intended to conflict with 
current law or provisions or the directives of DEAL or the PDA. If a term of this 
Right of Entry is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, 
but the remaining terms and conditions of this Right of Entry shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the 
consent of the DEAL to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me at you earliest 
convenience. 

Sincerely, 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of 

DEAL Rent-A-Car, LLC 

 

,  2019. 

  

By: 	  
Sign and Print 

cc: 	Paul Brean, Airport Director 
Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel 

 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT A 

7.1 INSURANCE 

A. Risk of Loss. DEAL shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Premises, including 
any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from any causes 
whatsoever. 

B. Insurance. During the entire period this Right of Entry shall be in effect, the DEAL 
at its expense will carry and maintain: 

(1) Personal property insurance coverage against loss or damage by fire and 
lightning and against loss or damage or other risks embraced by coverage of the type now 
known as the broad form of extended coverage (including but not limited to riot and civil 
commotion, vandalism, and malicious mischief and earthquake) in an amount not less 
than 100% of the full replacement value of the improvements and personal property on 
the Premises. The policies of insurance carried in accordance with this Section shall 
contain a "Replacement Cost Endorsement." Such full replacement cost shall be 
determined from time to time, upon the written request of PDA, but not more frequently 
than once in any twenty-four (24) consecutive calendar month period (except in the event 
of substantial changes or alterations to the Premises undertaken by DEAL as permitted 
under the provisions hereof) by written agreement of PDA and DEAL, or if they cannot 
agree within thirty (30) days of such request, by an insurance consultant, appraiser, 
architect or contractor who shall be mutually and reasonably acceptable to PDA and 
DEAL. Any such determination by a third party shall be subject to approval by PDA and 
DEAL, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The insurance maintained in 
this Section shall be adjusted to one hundred percent (100%) of the new full replacement 
cost consistent with the approved determination. 

(2) Commercial General Liability insurance, including, but not limited to, 
products and completed operations liability insurance, on an "occurrence basis" against 
claims for "personal injury," including without limitation, bodily injury, death or property 
damage, occurring upon, in or about the Premises, passageways, adjoining sidewalks, 
streets and parking areas, such insurance to afford immediate minimum protection at the 
time of the Term Commencement Date, and at all times during the term of this Right of 
Entry, to a limit of not less than Two Million ($2,000,000.00) Dollars with respect to 
damage to property, personal/bodily injury or death to any one or more persons and with 
no deductible or such deductible amount as may be approved by PDA. Such insurance 
shall also include coverage against liability for bodily injury or property damage arising 
out of the acts or omissions by or on behalf of DEAL, or any other person or 
organization, or involving any owned, non-owned, leased or hired automotive equipment 
in connection with Lessee's activities. 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 5 

(3) Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in an amount 
and form which meets all applicable requirements of the labor laws of the State of New 
Hampshire, as amended from time to time, and which specifically covers the persons and 
risks involved in this Right of Entry. 

(4) Automobile liability insurance in amounts approved from time to time by 
PDA, but not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for owned, 
hired and non-owned automobiles. 

	

7.2. 	All policies of insurance required to be carried under this. Exhibit shall be effected under 
valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required 
under this Right of Entry, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to 
transact such insurance coverage in the State of New Hampshire, and which have been approved 
in writing by PDA, which approval shall not be withheld unreasonably. The policy of insurance 
required in section 7.1.B. (1) shall name the PDA as loss payee. The policies of insurance 
required in Sections 7.1.B. (2) and (4) shall be for the mutual benefit of DEAL and the PDA with 
the PDA named as an additional insured as its interest may appear for liabilities arising out of the 
conduct of DEAL. Upon the execution of this Lease (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) 
days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this Article) the original of 
each policy required to be furnished pursuant to this Article (or, with the consent of PDA, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld a certificate of the insurer reasonably satisfactory to 
PDA) shall be delivered by DEAL to PDA. 

	

7.3. 	All policies of insurance, as applicable, shall provide for loss thereunder to be adjusted 
and payable to PDA or DEAL in accordance with the terms of this Right of Entry. 

	

7.4. 	Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable 
contain (i) a provision that no act or omission of DEAL, or any employee, officer or agent of 
DEAL, which would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided 
shall affect or limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss 
sustained, for covered acts caused by DEAL, (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy 
shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to 
PDA, (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA, and (iv) 
provide that DEAL's insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to 
any insurance coverages carried by PDA. 

	

7.5. 	To the extent applicable, personal property insurance required to be maintained by DEAL 
shall have attached thereto the PDA's Loss Payable Endorsement, or its equivalent, or a loss 
payable clause acceptable to PDA, for the benefit of any Mortgagee, but the right of any 
Mortgagee to the payment of insurance proceeds shall at all times be subject to the provisions of 
this Lease with respect to the application of the proceeds of such insurance. 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 6 

	

7.6. 	DEAL shall observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of insurance at any 
time in force with respect to the Premises and DEAL shall also perform and satisfy the 
requirements of the companies writing such policies so that at all times companies of good 
standing reasonably satisfactory to PDA shall be willing to write or to continue such insurance. 

DEAL shall, in the event of any violations or attempted violations of the provisions of this 
Section 7.6 by a subtenant, take steps, immediately upon knowledge of such violation or 
attempted violation, to remedy or prevent the same as the case may be. 

	

7.7. 	Any insurance provided for in this Right of Entry may be effected by a policy or policies 
of blanket insurance or may be continued in such form until otherwise required by PDA; 
provided, however, that the amount of the total insurance allocated to the Premises shall be such 
as to furnish in protection the equivalent of separate policies in the amounts herein required, and 
provided further that in all other respects, any such policy or policies shall comply with the other 
provisions of this Right of Entry. In any such case it shall not be necessary to deliver the original 
of any such blanket policy to PDA, but DEAL shall deliver to PDA and to any Mortgagee a 
certificate in form and content acceptable to PDA. 

	

7.8. 	The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement and in 
no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 

	

7.9. 	Over the term of this Right of Entry and any extensions thereof, PDA reserves the right to 
request increases in mandatory insurance coverage limits for each respective coverage area 
required under this Right of Entry as the same may be appropriate, commercially reasonable and 
prudent in view of then existing conditions and circumstances. PDA agrees to provide DEAL 
with a thirty (30) day written notice when making any request for an increase in required 
insurance coverage limits. 



DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 7 

EXHIBIT B 

PLANS DESIGNATING THE LEASED PREMISES 

• 	 • 	 . 

:cuor..ta 
,I•nzuntt..r 

Exhibit B - Service Area fur Key Rent-A-Car in PSM Terminal 
	

GCS.1.0 MR/. 	 MC: VIA> .1,ALE =1+1' 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

IS Imzeintn0u, DRIVE..0.11,14.71,01 =DI 



DESIGNED 8Y: MRM 	DATE: 415113 	STALE: r=120's Exhibit B-1 - Location of Key Rent-A-Car Dedicated Parking & Key Drop 

55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03101 - PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

DEAL Rent-A-Car RoE 
June 6, 2019 
Page 8 

EXHIBIT "B-1" 

PARKING AREAS 



avid R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONALINTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

June 10, 2019 

John R. Cantin 
Real Estate Manager 
157 CES/DER 
302 Newmarket St. 
Pease ANGS, NH 03803-0157 

Re: 	Exercise of Option - Right of Entry for Mobile Air Traffic Control Tower 
PDA-ATC-03-04 

Dear Mr. Cantin: 

In accordance with the terms of the Right of Entry dated March 4, 2004, this letter will 
serve to confirm that the New Hampshire Air National Guard has exercised its third option to 
extend the term of the Right of Entry for the Mobile Air Traffic Control Tower through March 2, 
2024. The Right of Entry will expire at midnight on March 2, 2024, unless otherwise extended by 
agreement of the NHANG and the Pease Development Authority. 

All other terms and conditions of the Right of Entry dated March 4, 2004 shall remain in 
full force and effect. If you have any questions, please call me. 

Very truly yours, 

cc: 	Paul Brean, Airport Director 
Anthony Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel 

P TIAN(rloOniobk a:r trRITic contr ,.)i lover ROF. 31-1.11T.xt (201(4)_tioc\ 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

peaseciev.org  



Agreed and accepted this I (&.  day of May, 2019 

d/b/a C&J Bus Lines 

Avvx 	L-eavykctdie__- 
Duly Authorized 

Jal 

By 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

May 14, 2019 

Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C&J Bus Lines 
185 Grafton Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: 	Exercise of Extension Option, Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area 
4 Lots-Durham and Hampton Streets, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Jalbert: 

This letter shall authorize the exercise of the six (6) month extension option of the Right of 
Entry granted to C&J Bus Lines ("C&J") via letter dated October 25, 2018, which is attached hereto 
with exhibits. As such, the Right of Entry is extended from May 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019. 
All other terms, conditions, and requirements of the Right of Entry remain in full force and effect 
during the extension term. 

Please indicate by your signature below C&J's consent to the extension of the Right of Entry 
and to the terms and conditions of the Right of Entry and return the same to me with evidence of 
insurance and payment of fee as required. 

V 	truly yours, 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

enclosure 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.org  



F A s E  
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

October 25, 2018 

Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines 
185 Grafton Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Re: 	Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area 
4 Lots-Durham and Hampton Streets, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Jalbert: 

This letter will authorize C & S Bus Lines ("C & J") to use and to enter upon and utilize 
four parking lots situated on Durham Street and Hampton Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire as 
shown on the attached Exhibit A (the "Premises") for the period commencing November 1, 2018 
through midnight April 30, 2019 for the purposes of parking C & J customer vehicles on a valet 
basis only. C& J is also granted a six (6) month option to extend the ROE through October 31, 
2019 subject to the approval of the Executive Director of Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). 
The privileges granted under this Right of Entry will expire at midnight on April 30, 2019, unless 
extended by C & J's exercise of the option. 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. C & J's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the 
entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the Premises and/or the exercise 
of any of the authorities granted herein. C & J expressly waives all claims against the Pease 
Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring 
as a consequence of C & Ps and its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or 
the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. C & J 
further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the Pease Development Authority, its 
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or 
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees arising out of or related to C & J's, and 
its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or any activities conducted or 
undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

2. C & J understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only 
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at 

TAKING YOU THERE 



Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines 
October 25, 2018 
Page 2 

will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or 
termination. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance 
and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

3. C & J, and/or any agent of C & J, providing to the Pease Development Authority 
satisfactory evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Four 
Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) per occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an 
additional insured; automobile liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and evidence of workers compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision 
that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of C & J which would otherwise result 
in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of 
the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) provide that the insurer shall 
have no right of subrogation against Pease Development Authority; and (iii) a provision that any 
liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing with 
respect to any insurance carried by PDA. It is the intent of C & J that such policies will not be 
cancelled. Should a policy cancellation occur, PDA will be advised in accordance with policy 
provisions. 

4. C & J's agreement that all vehicles parked at the Premises will be driven to and 
from the Premises by a valet service provided by C & J at its sole expense and that its patrons will 
not be allowed to self-park vehicles on the Premises. C & J's further agreement to use its best 
efforts to ensure that vehicles are not left on the Premises in excess of the term limits of this 
Right of Entry and to assume full responsibility for the removal of vehicle(s) left on the 
Premises, time being of the essence. 

5. C & J agrees the vehicles may be parked in the areas depicted in Exhibit A. PDA 
has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Premises used for vehicle 
parking as a priority for PDA operations. 

6. C & J shall provide snow removal and salting, as necessary, for the Premises during 
the periods of use provided for under the terms of this Right of Entry. C & J or any contractor of 
C & J shall also obtain certification by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services 
as a Commercial Salt Applicator. Certification includes the successful completion of the Green 
SnoPro training program. All personnel employed in snow removal operations shall be familiar 
with salt reduction measures. 

7. C & J shall coordinate the initial snow removal with the Pease Maintenance 
Department. All snow removal, sanding, and salting shall be at C & J's own cost and expense. 



Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines 
October 25, 2018 
Page 3 

8. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which 
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or 
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of C & J's 
patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at its 
invitation. 

9. C & J's agreement that C & is maintenance and management of the Premises shall 
be done at C & J's own costs and expense. 

10. Prior to termination of the Right of Entry, C & J agrees to restore the Premises to 
the same or better conditions than the Premises were in before C & .T's use. 

12. C & J's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant 
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the 
Premises. 

13. C & J's agreement to pay a fee for each lot per month for the period of use under 
this Right of Entry and pro-rated for partial periods broken down as follows: 

Lot 1 Durham/Aviation 0.93 acres $1,181.57/mo. 
Lot 2 47 Durham Street 0.94 acres $1,194.27/mo. 
Lot 3 Hampton Street South 0.90 acres $1,143.45/mo. 
Lot 4 Hampton Street North 0.89 acres $1,130.75/mo. 

Total $4,650.04/mo. 

C & J agrees to vacate the premises after receiving a 60 day notice by the PDA for Lots 1, 
2 and 4. C & J agrees to vacate the premises after receiving a 30 day notice by the PDA for Lot 
3. 

14. Municipal Services Fee. In addition to the Fee required to be paid under the terms 
of this ROE, C & I shall also pay to PDA, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in accordance 
with the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of 
Newington and the PDA effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police and roadway services 
provided by or on behalf of PDA at the Airport and will be subject to increases each year only to 
the extent the cost of providing such services increases. The municipal services fee shall be paid 
quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion provided for the payment of the ROE Fee. To 
the extent the ROE Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and provided such municipal taxes 
include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services, C & J may offset against 
any fee paid to PDA the portion of such municipal taxes as are attributable to fire, police and 
roadway services, and PDA shall have no further obligation to provide such services. For so long 
as municipal taxes are imposed against the ROE Premises, or on C & J for all three of fire, police 
and roadway services and PDA either has no obligation to provide such services (or ceases to 



Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines 
October 25,2013 
Page 4 

provide such services), the municipal services fee required to be paid under this ROE shall 
terminate. 

In the event the ROE Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport 
District, C & J shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance 
with the provisions of RSA 12-0:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by a 
municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District. 

15. Parking Spaces Adjacent to 47 Durham Street / Lot 2. C & J's agreement that a 
certain number of parking spaces situated on Lot 2 which are immediately adjacent to 47 Durham 
Street are being set aside and excluded in the ROE and leased to the tenant at 47 Durham Street 
(see Exhibit A, Lot 2). In the event the number of parking spaces for the 47 Durham Street tenant 
is increased or decreased, the fee assessed for the use of Lot 2 will be decreased or increased 
accordingly. 

16. C & J's agreement that it may not pave any portion of the parking lots which it has 
been granted the use of pursuant to this ROE. 

Please indicate by your signature below C & J's consent to the terms and conditions of this 
Right of Entry and return the same to me with evidence of insurance and payment of fee as 
required. 

Very truly yours, 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of  Co D k e 	, 2018 

Jul -Leasin 
	

d/b/a C & S Bus Lines 

f a/fAA,a 

duly authorized 

PACkARODPnrkingLol ROE1 Lois 1003 I 8.docx 



Mr. James Jalbert 
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines 
October 25, 2018 
Page 5 

EXHIBIT A 

PREMISES 



C&J Trailways Satellite Parking at 42 Durham Street DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 1119117 	SCALE: 1".-50' 

     

     

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 



Satellite Parking for CU 	 DESIGNED BY: MRM 
	

DATE: 10/10118 
	

SCALE: 1"=60'.1- 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 

       

dtmarn 

      



Satellite Parking for C&J DESIGNED BY: MRM 	DATE: 11/9117 	SCALE: 1"=100' 

  

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 



0-- - 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 0380 - 1 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Allard: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Right of Entry with New 

England Seacoast Region Chapter 225 of the Experimental Aircraft 

Association (EEA) at Skyhaven Airport for the purpose of staging and 

hosting EAA 225 Young Eagle Flight Rally events through December 31, 

2019; all in accordance with the Right of Entry dated May 16, 2019, 

attached hereto. 

N \RESOLVES\ 2019 \EAA 225 - Skyhaven ROE to 12-31-19 (06-20).docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.org  



PEASE 
N T E R N AT I O N A L 	 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

May 16, 2019 

EAA Chapter 225 
do Gerard Peterson 
523 Ridge Road 
Middleton, NH 03887-6221 

Re: 	Right of Entry - EAA 225 Young Eagle Flight Rally 
Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, New Hampshire 

Dear Mr. Peterson: 

This Right of Entry will authorize the New England Seacoast Region Chapter 225 of the 
Experimental Aircraft Association and it agents (collectively "EAA 225") to enter upon a portion of 
Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, New Hampshire (the "Premises") as shown on Exhibit A for the purpose 
of staging and hosting EAA 225 Young Eagle Flight Rally events (the "events") and for no other use 
without the express written consent of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). 

This Right of Entry shall be valid through June 30, 2019. The Right of Entry may be extended 
through midnight on December 31, 2019 (the "Term"), subject to the approval of the Board of Directors 
at its June 20, 2019 meeting. 

The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense to the 
PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such rules and 
regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time. 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. EAA 225 understands and acknowledges that for each specific period of use requested 
during the Term, EAA 225 shall coordinate with and shall obtain prior approval from the Pease 
Development Authority Airport Management Department for use of the Premises. 

EAA 225 understands and agrees that it will not enter the Premises or conduct events during the 
Term of this Right of Entry without the express prior approval of PDA. 

2. FDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may 
arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or the use and 
occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of the EAA 225's officers, 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasede.v.org  



EAA Chapter 225 
Gerard Peterson 
May 16, 2019 
Page 2 

agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation or the invitation 
of any one of them if such damage is caused by the negligence of EAA 225. 

3. EAA 225's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss or 
damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by 
any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the authorities 
granted herein. EAA 225 expressly waives all claims against PDA and the State of New Hampshire for 
any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of such 
possession and/or use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities 
under this Right of Entry, unless such loss, damage, injury or death is caused by the negligence of PDA 
or the State of New Hampshire. EAA 225 further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend 
the Pease Development Authority, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against 
all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees arising out of EAA 
225's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to 
this authorization. 

4. EAA 225 understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry; (a) allows only 
temporary use of the facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at will 
by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination. 
The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause 
disruption to other Airport activities. 

5. EAA 225 agrees to assume all risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to 
persons by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Premises, or the activities conducted 
by it under this Right of Entry if such loss, damage of injury is caused by the negligence of EAA 225. 

6. EAA 225 providing to the Pease Development Authority satisfactory evidence of 
commercial general liability insurance to a limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), 
naming PDA and the State of New Hampshire as additional insureds. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable contain: 
(i) a provision that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of the EAA 225, which would 
otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the 
obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) an agreement by the 
insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by 
registered mail to PDA; (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA or 
the State of New Hampshire; and (iv) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be 
carried shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA or the State 
of New Hampshire. 

7. EAA 22 S's agreement to secure all necessary municipal and/or local permits prior to each 
event. 



EAA Chapter 225 
Gerard Peterson 
May 16, 2019 
Page 3 

8. EAA 225's agreement to leave the Premises in the same or better condition as existed at 
the time of the event. 

9. EAA 225's agreement to coordinate the management of the events with appropriate local 
law enforcement officials, as the same may be required, and to otherwise ensure that all appropriate 
precautions are taken to protect the health and safety of event attendees. 

10. EAA 225's agreement to coordinate the placement of signs, including directional signs, 
with the PDA=s Airport Management Department prior to the placement of any signs at Skyhaven; and 
to secure permission from the New Hampshire Department of Transportation to place event signs along 
Route 108. EAA 225's agrees to remove all signs placed at Skyhaven at the end of the Right of Entry 
period. 

11. EAA 225's agreement to provide a sufficient number of portable toilets for use by 
participants during each event if so required in the discretion of the Airport Manager or his designee. 

12. EAA 225's agreement that by 12:00 p.m. on the day following an event, all waste 
containers and portable toilets that were placed on the Premises for use during the event will be removed 
from the Premises. 

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the consent 
of the EAA 225 to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me in advance of the first 
event. 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this  18  day of  May 	, 2019 

New England Seacoast Region Chapter 225 
of the Experimental Aircraft Association 

By:  ge&a-24z  

uerarci eeterson 
Print game/Title:  r.n.A 975  Young Gaye  

Coordinator 

cc: 	Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General Counsel 
Paul E. Brean, Airport Director 

P:\SKYHAVEN\NEAC\Young  Eagle EAA Itr 5-16-I9.docx 



EAA Chapter 225 
Gerard Peterson 
May 16, 2019 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT A 

PREMISES  





A CC)Rtf 	 CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE L...------  

DATE (MM100/TYYTI 

(3/4/2019) 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, 

IMPORTANT: 	If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. 	If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 
MARSH USA INC. 
540 W. MADISON 
CHICAGO, IL 60661 
AM: Chicago.CeiiRequest@marsh.com  I Fax: 212-948.0770 

503666•ChapE - 18 - 19 

CONTACT 
NAME: 
PHE 	 I FAX 
IA/C. 

ON
Na. Ertl: 	 (A/C, NM: 

E-MAIL 
ADDRESS. 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC It 

INSURER A : See Attached Schedule of Insurers 
INSURED 

ERA Chapter 225, Inc., 238 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, NH 
AM: Karen Kryzaniak 
PO Box 3086 
Oshkosh, WI 54903.3086 

INSURER B : 

INSURER C 

INSURER 0 : 

INSURER E: 

INSURER F : 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE 	 JNSD 

AnnireUEIR 
vevn POLICY NUMBER 

PoMY EFF 
IMANDO/YYTY) 

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DO/TYYTI LIMITS 

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY See Allached Schedule of nsurers 12/0112018 12/01/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE S 	 1,000,000 

CLAIMS -MADE I, 	I OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ert occurrarical S 	 N/A 

X ...i 

GEM. 

Aviation Operations Liability MED EXP (Any one person) S 	 5,000 

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S 	 1,000,000 

AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 	 N/A 
PRO- 

POLICY a JECT LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG S 	 1,000,000 

OTHER: S 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident). 

s 

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) S 

ALL OWNED 
AUTOS 

HIRED AUTOS 

— 

SCHEDULED 
AUTOS 
NON-OWNED 
AUTOS 

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) 5 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Per accitipm S 

5 

UMBRELLA LIAB 

EXCESS LIRE 

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE 

EACH OCCURRENCE 5 

AGGREGATE S 

DED I 	I RETENTIONS 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N 

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [. 
 OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N I 

(Mandatory in NH) 
11 yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 

N I A 

STATUTE I 	I 
O  ERTH- 

STA 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5 

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 

E.L.DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS! LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddIllonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 

As respects the event being sponsored by the Chaplet on the tot owing dates: 
Saturday, June 1, 2019, Rain Date(s): Saturday June 1, 2019 The certificate holder is Included as an additional insured but solely as respects to the use of 

their facility and solely for the operations of the named insured. This insurance is not the primary event insurance for Wings 8, Wheels event and excludes 
coverage for activities organized by others that may be taking place. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

Pease Development Authority 

55 International Drive 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
of Marsh USA Inc. 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: 503666 

LOC #: Chicago 

ACORD 
	

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE 
	

Page 2 of 2 

AGENCY 

MARSH USA INC, 
NAMED INSURED 

Experimental Aircraft Association and 
EM Aviation Foundation, Inc., et al. 
Ann: Karen Kryzaniak 
PO Box 3086 
Oshkosh, WI 54903-3086 

POLICY NUMBER 

CARRIER NAIC CODE 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 	(3/4/2019) 
ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 	25 	FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance 

The Insured Chapter named above is covered per the terms and conditions of Endorsement - SPM001 (1212009) - ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION (Activities Of And Events 

Sponsored Directly By A Chapter) attached to the Aviation Operations Liability policy evidenced above 

Experimental Aircraft Association and EAA Aviation Foundation, Inc. etal 

Schedule of Insurers for the period December 1, 2018 - December 1, 2019 under Insurer letter A. 

Insurers: 

Global Aerospace, Inc. 

Policy No. 13000709 

Various London Underwrilers 

Policy No. B0509AVNPN1700496 

Old Republic Insurance Co. 

Policy No. AP00887817 

XL Specially Insurance Co. 

Policy No. UA00001893AV1 8A 

National Union Fire Insurance Co. of Pittsburgh 

Policy No. PL001853274-14 

Starr Indemnity and Uability Company 

Policy No. SASICOM60111418-04 

North American Elite Insurance Company 

Policy No. FGG3000179-01 

The insurance is provided by separate insurers. The liability of these is several and not joint. 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) 
	

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 ' . Gnal E ve 	outh. NH 0380! 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and consents to issuing a Right of Entry ("ROE") to the United 

States Coast Guard ("USCG") for long term parking at 14 Aviation Avenue 

for the purpose of utilizing 75 ± designated motor vehicle parking spaces 

from July 22, 2019 through July 31, 2020; all in accordance with the 

memorandum of Paul E. Brean, Airport Director, dated June 13, 2019, 

attached hereto. 

N -  \ RESOLVES \ 2019 \ USCG - ROE 06-20.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

www.p aSedev org 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 InternatIonal Dnve Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Memorandum 

To: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

From: Paul E. Brean, Airport Director 

Date: 6/13/2019 

Subj: United States Coast Guard Long Term Parking Right of Entry 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") seeks approval of the Board of Directors at 
the June 20, 2019 meeting to authorize the United States Coast Guard ("USCG") to enter 
upon and utilize 75 +/- designated motor vehicle parking spaces at 14 Aviation Avenue, 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire. Parking will be limited to long-term parking of USCG 
member vehicles while units are deployed at sea. 

The Right of Entry would commence on July 22, 2019 and expire July 31, 2020 with a 
lease rate of $9,452.52 for the term. I have received approval from F.A.A. for Non- 
Aeronautical use of the property and this activity will have no impact on airport 
operations. 

1 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www, pea sedev.org  



June 13, 2019 

Peter C. Spinella 
Real Property Specialist 
Department Of Homeland Security 
United States Coast Guard 
Civil Engineering Unit Providence 
475 Kilvert St., STE 100 
Warwick, RI 02886-1379 
Peter.C.Spinellaauscg.mil   

Re: Right of Entry 
75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Spinella: 

This letter will authorize the United States Coast Guard, ("USCG"), with an address of 475 
Kilvert Street, Warwick, RI, to enter upon and utilize 75 +/- designated motor vehicle parking 
spaces at 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, as shown on the attached Exhibit A 
(the "Premises") for the period commencing July 22, 2019 through July 31, 2020 (the "Term") for 
the purposes of the long-term parking ofUSCG member vehicles while stationed at the Portsmouth 
Naval Shipyard. USCG is also granted an option to extend the ROE through July 14, 2021 subject 
to the approval of the Executive Director of Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). The 
privileges granted under this Right of Entry will expire on July 31, 2020, unless extended by the 
exercise and approval of the option. 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. 	USCG's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the 
entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the Premises and/or the exercise 
of any of the authorities granted herein. USCG expressly waives all claims against the Pease 
Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring 
as a consequence of USCG's and its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or 
the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. This 
assumption of liability by USCG is coextensive with and in accordance with the liability of the 
Federal Government under the Federal Tort Claims Act. Claims for tort damages shall be 
submitted and adjudicated in accordance with the procedures of the Federal Tort Claim Act and 
applicable state and federal law. 



Page Two 
June 13, 2019 
Re: 	Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

2. USCG understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only 
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) permits the PDA to 
relocate the parking spaces provided to another PDA property at the Pease International Tradeport 
at any time subject to a 7-day advanced notice requirement. The use of the Premises shall be 
orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other Airport 
activities. 

3. USCG is self-insured and is liable for tort claims under the provisions of the Federal 
Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 2671 et seq. 

4. USCG's agreement to use its best efforts to ensure that vehicles are not left on the 
Premises in excess of the term limit of this Right of Entry and to assume full responsibility for the 
immediate removal of vehicle(s) left on the Premises, time being of the essence. 

5. USCG agrees the vehicles may be parked in the areas depicted in Exhibit A. PDA 
has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Premises used for vehicle 
parking as a priority for PDA operations, and to relocate the USCG to an equivalent number of 
spaces on other PDA property. 

6. USCG may provide snow removal and salting, as necessary, for the Premises 
during the periods of use provided for under the terms of this Right of Entry. USCG or any 
contractor of USCG shall also obtain certification by the New Hampshire Department of 
Environmental Services as a Commercial Salt Applicator. Certification includes the successful 
completion of the Green SnoPro training program. All personnel employed in snow removal 
operations shall be familiar with salt reduction measures. 

7. USCG shall coordinate the initial snow removal with the PDA Maintenance 
Department. All snow removal, sanding, and salting shall be at USCG's own cost and expense. 

8. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which 
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or 
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of USCG's 
patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at its 
invitation. 

9. USCG's agreement that USCG's maintenance and management of the Premises 
shall be done at its own costs and expense. 

10. Prior to termination of the Right of Entry, USCG agrees to restore the Premises to 
the same or better conditions than the Premises were in before its use pursuant to this Right of 
Entry. 



Page Three 
June 13, 2019 
Re: 	Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NI-1 

12. USCG's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant 
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the 
Premises. 

13. USCG's agreement to pay PDA a $.35/square foot fee for each space per year for 
the period of use under this Right of Entry: 

Lot 1 	14 Aviation Ave. 	0.62 acres 	S9,452.52/yr. 

This annual rent shall be payable in advance in monthly installments and pro-rated for any partial 
periods. Payment shall be delivered to the PDA, 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH, 03801. 

14. Municipal Services Fee.  In addition to the Fee required to be paid under the terms 
of this ROE, USCG shall also pay to PDA, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in 
accordance with the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the 
Town of Newington and the PDA effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police and roadway 
services provided by or on behalf of PDA at the Airport and will be subject to increases each year 
only to the extent the cost of providing such services increases. The municipal services fee shall 
be paid quarterly pursuant to an invoice issued by the PDA. To the extent the ROE Premises are 
subject to municipal taxation, and provided such municipal taxes include the costs of the provision 
of fire, police and roadway services, USCG may offset against any fee paid to PDA the portion of 
such municipal taxes as are attributable to fire, police and roadway services, and PDA shall have 
no further obligation to provide such services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against 
the ROE Premises, or on USCG- for all three of fire, police and roadway services and PDA either 
has no obligation to provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal 
services fee required to be paid under this ROE shall terminate. 

In the event the ROE Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport 
District, USCG shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance 
with the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by a 
municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District. 

15. USCG's agreement that it may not pave any portion of the parking lots which it has 
been granted the use of pursuant to this ROE. 



Page Four 
June 11, 2019 
Re: 	Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

Please indicate by your signature below USCG's consent to the terms and conditions of 
this Right of Entry and return the same to me with evidence of insurance and payment of fee as 
required. 

Very truly yours, 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of 	, 2019 

The United States Coast Guard 

By: 	  
Print Name/Title 	  

Duly Authorized 

P:\ROE\US  Coast Guard\USCG RoE - 14 Aviation Ave (75 spaces).doex 



EXHIBIT A 
PREMISES 

Potential Parkl no Area for USCG 
	

DEI51431,1ED EY: PARM 	DATE: V10'19 	',3CALE: t"=100'.,  

OF1:--=.  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

1HTFRNATIONA L DRIVE, PORTSMOUTII, h,11 C:3130t 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 international Drive Portsmouth ;  NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of the proposed signs for 119 International, LLC, for the premises 

located at 119 International Drive, 15 Rye Street and 19 Rye Street; all in 

accordance with the memorandum of Maria j. Stowell, P.E., Engineering 

Manager, dated June 7, 2019, attached hereto. 

RES(W/TS \ 2019 \ 119 Int Dr I5 Rye & iq Rye Si Signa.ge.docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www peasedev.org  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 Dr: ye 	 1, , 	03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 
To: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 
From: 	Maria J. Stowell 
Date: 	June 7, 2019 
Subject: 	Signage at 119 International Drive, 15 & 19 Rye Street 

119 International, LLC/19 Rye Street, LLC has submitted a request to erect door and ground signs for 
the new building located at 19 Rye Street. The Department of Health and Human Services is the tenant 
in this building and the details of each sign are attached. 

19 Rye Street is situated on a parcel that contains three buildings including 119 International Drive, 15 
and 19 Rye St. As such, staff prepared an inventory of signage to determine a total signage square 
footage for the parcel. Typically, parcels that contain multiple buildings need variances because they 
exceed the 200 square foot maximum for the parcel. The following table describes the existing signage 
on site as well as the proposed signage and the attached photographs detail each existing sign. 

Sign # Address Tenant Sign Type Sign Area 
(sq. ft.) 

1 15 Rye Street Smile Door Sign 2.66 
2 15 Rye Street Abilities Door Sign 2.66 
3 15 Rye Street 2 International Group Wall sign 7* 
4 15 Rye Street Directory Sign Ground Sign 18 
5 119 International Drive Crown Castle Door sign 2 
6 119 International Drive Franklin Pierce Ground Sign 25 
7 15/19 Rye Street Ground Sign 29 
8 19 Rye Street DHHS Door Sign 2.33 
9 19 Rye Street DHHS Ground Sign  

TOTAL 
30.33 
119.0 *Estimated, Proposed 

As you can see, the total square footage for existing and proposed signage is less than 200 square feet. 
This means a variance is not required to exceed the maximum allowable signage. However, research 
from our files indicate signs 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 were never brought to the PDA for approval. As such, the 
applicant would like an after the fact approval from the Board of Directors to allow these signs to 
remain. 

With regard to PDA Board approval, the signs are consistent with other Tradeport door and monument 
signs. The ground sign is internally lit and complements the materials of the building facade. The door 
sign is similar to other Tradeport building signs. 

' 	TAKING YOU THERE 

: 	I.; - 44 2 7.1) 	3 	 p e S .2; d e 	o 



Staff has reviewed the zoning ordinance as it relates to signage and we believe the proposal is in 
harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance. At next month's board meeting, please 
ask the Board of Directors to approve the sign proposal of 19 Rye St, LLC. 

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2019 \ 19 Rye St Signage.docx 



30" 

A
 O

A
S

T
  D

IS
T

R
IC

T
  O

FF
1 

52" 

A 

OD 

CO 

0 
CN1 

CN 

C 
0 U)  

1 
N m 

0 co F 
z 
0 
1Zc 

_q 

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

O
N

LY
 



J 

03 

O 

rn 

-0 

IIS
I T

U
R

IV
r3

 

7 

03 B
lu

es
to

ne
  c

ap
  b

y  
m

as
on

  

S
ig

n  
an

d 
re

ve
a

l b
y  

C
la

ss
ic

  S
ig

ns
  

C 
0 
U) 
CD 

0) 
C 

O 

>, 

;0 

X 

; 0 
CY) 

X 

00 



ND 
CO 

DARK GREY 
HALLO LIT NUMBER 

OVERALL SIZE OF 
DOOR GRAPHICS 14"x21" 

4 	 

28" 

35.25"  
►  

a fi 

sTAlt CP*1'444041;1., 
DtUaritartiOrKaittli Huara 

CMIVIHM.11.1 
rtiontLiy-Flittry 8l3fIDth-4.001.1m 

REVISION 11-29-2018 34744 

   

Measurements on this artistic rendering may vary 
slightly from the actual "AS BUILT" upon final engineering. 

Color and Resolution in proof are not representative of 

final project due to individual monitor settings. 

This drawing protected by U.S copyright laws. Any use, reproduction, copying or exhibiting this drawing without the express written consent of Classic Signs is illegal. 



t e m. 
Eppri kigiporiA UM lag 91110 N I uk 

.141nroupsOmmil 

Fief 001 1 1 0 thledd ir   

S
C

A
L

E
:  

N
T

S
  

5
5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L
 D

R
I V

E
,  

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

,  
N

H
 0

3
8

0
1

  

D
A

T
E

:  
5

/2
8

/1
9

 
D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

 B
Y

:  
M

R
M

 

O 
0) 
O 

ca U) 
C ti  
0 

tc. 

cts 
 E 

2 
O. 
0- 

C) 

.CO 

P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 

a) 
••■• 

(i) 
CO 
0 01  
C 

112, 
0 

6 E 

o 

C 0_ 
o.) < 

U) 

S
ig

n
ag

e  
fo

r  
11

9  
In

te
rn

a
t i

o
n

a
l 

D
r,

  1
5 

&
 1

9 
R

y
e  

S
t 



P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

  A
U

T
H

O
R

 
5
5
  I

N
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 D

R
IV

E
,  P

O
R

T
S

M
O

U
T

H
,  N

H
 0

3
8
0
1
 

S
C

A
L

E
:  

N
T

S
 

II 

Lu 

• ■ memel • I ••••• wow ■ ■ 	 war. sow • ■ ••••• ■ • mar ware 

■ 	
( -A 

t.---,---- 

D
A

T
E

:  
5
/3

0
/1

9
 

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:  

M
R

M
 

• most s • mow rim • ••
■• it wow 

._ 

	. 	
. 

INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 0 
C 

C 

19
  R

y
e  

S
t  

S
ig

n  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 latione1 Dnve Portsriloutn, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to complete 

negotiations and to execute a lease with B & H Airpower, L.L.C. for the 

purpose of storage and operation of its corporate Cessna 525 Citation Jet 

and BE-55 Beech Baron for the premises known as Hangar 5 located at 

Skyhaven Airport (DAW); substantially in accordance with the 

memorandum from Andrew Pomeroy, C.M. Airport Operations Manager, 

dated June 14, 2019 and attached hereto. 

N. \ RESOLVES \ 2019 Airport - 6 & Airpower Lease 0620.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

vv vv. pease d. e 



 

PEASE 
AIRPORT e Pori uncut, 	\I!--1 03801 

MANAGEMENT' 
	

603.433 6533 

Memorandum 
Pease Development Authority, Airport Management Department 

To: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

From: 	Andrew Pomeroy, C.M. Airport Operations Manager .40 

CC: 	Paul Brean, Airport Director 

Date: 	June 14, 2019 

Re: 	Skyhaven Hangar 5 Lease for B&H Airpower 

I request that you seek Board of Directors approval at the June 20, 2019 meeting for the Pease 
Development Authority to enter into a lease agreement with B&H Airpower, L.L.C. ("B&H") of 
Somersworth, NH, for Hangar 5 at the Rochester Skyhaven Airport (see Plan attached). Hangar 
5 has been vacant since the departure of GP Aviation in November 2016. 

The lease is for the storage and operation of B&H's corporate Cessna 525 Citation Jet and BE-55 
Beech Baron. The lease of this 4,875 square foot maintenance hangar will commence on July 1, 
2019 and run for one (1) year with up to two (2), one (1) year renewal options. PDA will retain a 
right of termination upon six months written notice to B&H in the event a fixed base operator is 
interested in locating at Skyhaven, as this is a higher priority aeronautic use of Hangar 5. 

B&H has agreed to a rental fee of $1,200.00/month for the use of Hangar 5 on a triple net basis. 
B&H will receive a $6,000.00 rent credit for the first 5 months of the lease term as a result of 
pavement improvements made to the hangar entrance area by B&H, at its sole cost and expense, 
to facilitate access to Hangar 5. 

)n TAKING YOU THERE 



S
C

A
L

E
:  

N
T

S
 

D
A

T
E

:  
6

/1
4

/1
9

  
D

E
S

IG
N

E
D

 B
Y

:  
M

R
M

  

5
5
 IN

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 D
R

IV
E

,  P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

,  
N

H
 0

38
01

 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
  

s • 

V.*  • 
• 1!..1.4. 

.• 

• 

_cr:14-11-....80-  • 

P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 

A. 



Oppim
,_  ""',....- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Torr: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the 

Executive Director to enter into a Car Rental Concession Lease and 

Operating Agreement with Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC, substantially in the form 

attached hereto for the purpose of providing rental car services at the 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. 

N: \RESOLVES \ 201 9 \Deal Rent-A-Car 06-20 

0000  TAKING YOU THERE 

www peasedev.org  



CAR RENTAL CONCESSION LEASE AND OPERATING AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

AS 

"LESSOR" 

AND 

DEAL RENT-A-CAR, LLC 

AS 

"LESSEE" 

CAUsers\raeline.PDA\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\PYLTX5Y8\Car Rental Concession Agreement.docx 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 

Lease 	 
RECITALS 
ARTICLE 1. 
ARTICLE 2. 
ARTICLE 3. 
ARTICLE 4. 

ARTICLE 5. 
ARTICLE 6. 
ARTICLE 7. 
ARTICLE 8. 
ARTICLE 9. 
ARTICLE 10. 
ARTICLE 11. 
ARTICLE 12. 
ARTICLE 13. 
ARTICLE 14. 
ARTICLE 15. 
ARTICLE 16. 
ARTICLE 16(A) 
ARTICLE 17. 
ARTICLE 18. 
ARTICLE 19. 
ARTICLE 20. 
ARTICLE 21. 
ARTICLE 22. 
ARTICLE 23. 
ARTICLE 24. 
ARTICLE 25. 
ARTICLE 26. 

PAGE 

1 
	 1 
LEASED PREMISES - TERMINAL COMMON USE AREAS 	3 
CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES 	 5 
TERM 	 6 
TERMINAL AREA RENT - ANNUAL MINIMUM CONCESSION 
FEE - PERCENTAGE FEE & MUNICIPAL SERVICES FEE 	7 
IMPOSITIONS 	 10 
SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES 	 11 
INSURANCE 	 12 
LESSOR'S RIGHT TO PERFORM LESSEE'S COVENANTS 	15 
USE OF LEASED PREMISES 	 16 
LIENS 	 19 
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 	 20 
RIGHT OF LESSOR TO INSPECT AND REPAIR 	 21 
GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY LESSEE 	 22 
UTILITIES 	 23 
ALTERATIONS - SIGNS 	 24 
DESTRUCTION AND RESTORATION 	 26 
EMINENT DOMAIN 	 28 
DEFAULT BY LESSOR 	 29 
DEFAULT BY LESSEE 	 30 
PROHIBITION AGAINST TRANSFERS - BANKRUPTCY 	33 
[RESERVED] 	 34 
ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 	35 
INVALIDITY OF PARTICULAR PROVISIONS 	  36 
NOTICES 	 37 
QUIET ENJOYMENT 	 38 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 	 39 
MISCELLANEOUS 	 44 



EXHIBITS TO LEASE 

Exhibit 

"A" FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

"B" PLANS DESIGNATING THE LEASED PREMISES 

"B-1" PARKING AREAS 

"C" EXAMPLE OF A 10% CONCESSION RECOVERY FEE 

"D" LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

"E" CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE GOOD STANDING/EXISTENCE 

"F" FAA REQUIREMENTS 



LEASE 

THIS CAR RENTAL CONCESSION LEASE AND OPERATING AGREEMENT ("Lease") 
is made by and between the PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ("Lessor") and DEAL 
RENT-A-CAR, LLC ("Lessee"). (Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the "Parties.") 

RECITALS  

A. Lessor is an agency of the State of New Hampshire established pursuant to 
RSA ch. 12-G, "Pease Development Authority," and is authorized to enter into this Lease 
pursuant to the provisions contained therein. 

B. In 1992, Lessor commenced its acquisition of fee title to portions of the former 
Pease Air Force Base hereinafter designated Premises I and Premises II from the United States of 
America ("Government or Air Force") by public benefit transfer (i.e. transfer without 
consideration) pursuant to the general authority contained in 49 U.S.C. Sections 47151-47153 
and other applicable provisions of law. (Together, Premises I and Premises II constitute the 
entirety of the Pease International Tradeport (the "Airport" or "Pease").) The terms of such 
acquisition are set forth in an Amended Application for Public Benefit Transfer executed by 
Lessor ("Application") and accepted by the Air Force on April 14, 1992 (the "Acceptance"), as 
the same have been subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 dated March 24, 1994 and 
executed June 27, 1997 ("Amendment No. 1"). (The Application, as amended by Amendment 
No. 1 may be referred to as the "Amended Application.") The Amended Application was 
approved December 12, 1995 and confirmed March 18, 1997 and the Air Force executed an 
acceptance of the Amended Application on June 26, 1997 ("Acceptance II"). (The Acceptance 
and Acceptance II may be referred to collectively as the "Acceptances.") In accordance with the 
terms of the Amended Application and Acceptances, the Lessor and Air Force entered into a 
Lease on April 14, 1992 for the Airport District, a Supplement No. 1 thereto dated August 4, 
1992, a Supplement No. 2 thereto dated July 15, 1993, a Supplement No. 3 thereto dated June 
27, 1997, and a Supplement No. 4 thereto dated October 15, 2003(collectively the "Master 
Lease"). As a result of the Air Force's conveyance of the Airport, in fee simple, to Lessor, the 
Master Lease is no longer in effect. 

C. By Quitclaim Deed made and entered into on October 15, 2003 and Quitclaim 
Deed dated September 16, 2005 (the "Deeds"), the Government, acting by and through the 
Secretary of the Air Force did grant to PDA the land and improvements located in the City of 
Portsmouth, Town of Newington and Town of Greenland, as contemplated by the Master Lease, 
Application and Acceptances, and which deed dated September 16, 2005 included the Leased 
Premises. The Parties acknowledge that the Deeds impose certain requirements on Lessee with 
respect to leases which are addressed in the terms and conditions of this Lease. Copies of the 
Deeds are recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 4227, Page 1 and Book 
4564, Page 985 respectively. 

D. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required 
under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability 
Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et sec. has been entered into by the Air Force, the New 
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States 



Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that 
this FFA also imposes certain requirements upon Lessor and Lessee which are addressed in the 
terms and conditions of this Lease. A copy of the FFA is attached to this Lease as Exhibit A. 
Unless the context refers specifically to the document constituting Exhibit A, the term FFA shall 
include any amendments to said document. 

E. 	Lessee is a limited liability company and is registered to do business in New 
Hampshire with a place of business at its office located at 549 Route 1 Bypass, Portsmouth, NH 
03801. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other 
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby 
agree as follows: 



ARTICLE 1. 

LEASED PREMISES - TERMINAL COMMON USE AREAS 

1.1 	Description of Leased Premises 

Lessor, for and in consideration of the rents and covenants herein specified to be paid and 
performed by Lessee, hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby hires from Lessor, the 
following areas (excluding exterior walls, the roof over such areas and sub-floor lying beneath 
such areas) located within the Portsmouth International Airport @ Pease Domestic and 
International Air Passenger Terminal (the "Terminal") and described generally below and more 
particularly on the plans attached as Exhibit B: 

- The area designated "Deal Rent-A-Car Ticket Counter Area" 

(Total square feet for Ticket Counter area = 87 sq. ft. +/-) 

In addition, Lessor also leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby hires from Lessor, the 
following areas contiguous to the Terminal, also shown on Exhibit B-1: 

- The area designated "Deal Rent-A-Car Parking Area" consisting of a total of three (3) 
parking spaces 

- The area designated "Deal Rent-A-Car Overflow Parking Area" consisting of three (3) 
parking spaces (collectively the "Parking Areas") 

— A 24-hour key drop box 

(All of the areas described in this Section 1.1 may be referred to collectively as the "Leased 
Premises" or the "Premises") 

Excluded from the Leased Premises are property or other rights obtained by a utility 
supplier from the Lessor pursuant to a Lease or other agreement in connection with the provision 
of utility lines and or utility services at the airport. 

12. Terminal Common Use Areas 

Lessee is also granted the right, in common with others, to use the lobby area shown on 
Exhibit B in connection with its processing of car rental passengers utilizing its services. 

The foregoing area described in this section 1.2 may be referred to as the "Terminal 
Common Use Areas." 

Lessee's use of the Terminal Common Use Areas is subject to the general direction and 
supervision of Lessor, and/or Lessor's designee, as Terminal manager as well as other applicable 
provisions of this Lease. 

1.3. 	Easements - Riahts-of-Wav 

-3- 



This Lease is subject to existing easements and rights-of-way of record and to the Utility 
Lease and License Agreement dated July 31, 1992 by and between PDA and Public Service 
Company of New Hampshire ("PSNH"); to the utility Lease and License Agreement dated May 
10, 1995 by and between PDA and New England Telephone and Telegraph Company 
("NETEL"); to the Wastewater Disposal and Water Service Facilities Lease and License 
Agreement dated as of January 1, 1993 by and between PDA and the City of Portsmouth; and to 
the Pipeline Easement and Transfer Agreement dated August 12, 1998 by and between PDA, 
Portland Natural Gas Transmission System and Maritimes & Northeast Pipeline, L.L.C. 

The Government reserves for the use and benefit of the public, an avigation easement and 
a right of way for the free and unobstructed passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface 
of the Airport, together with the right to cause in such airspace such sound, vibrations, fumes, 
dust, fuel particles, and all other effects as may be caused by the operation of aircraft, now 
known or hereafter used, for the navigation through or flight in the said airspace, and for use of 
said airspace for landing on, taking off from, or operating on the Airport. 

1.4. General Rights of Access/Common Use Areas.  

Subject to the provisions and additional restrictions set forth in Article 9 and other 
pertinent provisions of this Lease, Lessee shall have in common with other authorized Airport 
users the right to use the entrances, exits and roadways designated by Lessor for common use at 
the Airport. 

The rights of Lessee under this Section 1.4 shall be subordinate to Lessor's rights to 
manage the Airport and other common areas and roadways, which rights shall include, without 
limitation, the right to impose reasonable rules and regulations or to issue management directives 
relating to use of the Terminal Common Area, roadways and parking areas and the right to add, 
delete, alter or otherwise modify the designation and use of all Airport facilities and parking 
areas, entrances, exits, roadways and other areas of the Airport, to the extent all of the foregoing 
are not part of the Leased Premises; provided, however, that Lessee shall continue at all times to 
have reasonable access to and use of the Leased Premises. 

Lessee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations which 
apply to the conduct of the uses contemplated under this Lease, including, without limitation, 
rules and regulations promulgated by Lessor. Lessee shall pay to Lessor an amount equal to all 
fines levied by any governmental body against Lessor for any breach of applicable requirements 
by Lessee or any of its employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents, servants or invitees. 

END OF ARTICLE 1.  



ARTICLE 2. 

CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES 

	

2.1. 	Lessee acknowledges that it has inspected the Leased Premises, including all buildings, 
improvements and other facilities thereon, as of the date of execution of this Lease and that it has 
determined that the said Leased Premises are in good and tenantable condition. Lessee accepts 
said Leased Premises in their present condition and without any representation or warranty by 
Lessor as to the condition of said Leased Premises or as to the use or occupancy which may be 
made thereof and without obligation on the part of the Lessor to make any alterations, repairs or 
additions to said Leased Premises that has not been fully set forth in this Lease. Further, Lessor 
shall not be responsible for any latent or other defect or change of condition in said Leased 
Premises, and the rent hereunder shall in no event be withheld or diminished on account of any 
such defect in said Leased Premises nor any such change in its condition, nor, except as provided 
herein, for any damage occurring thereto. 

	

2.2. 	Lessee shall be responsible for the following "fit-up" work required to make these Leased 
Premises ready for Lessee's intended use. 

- the connection of all computer and related equipment; 

- the installation of appropriate signage displaying Lessee's logo or other appropriate 
signage. 

All such fit-up work performed by Lessee shall comply with the provisions of this Lease 
applicable to Alternations. 

END OF ARTICLE 2.  



ARTICLE 3. 

TERM 

	

3.1. 	This Lease shall be for a base term of one (1) year ("Base Term") which term shall 
commence retroactively effective as of June 10, 2019 (the "Term Commencement Date") and 
shall expire on June 30, 2020, unless terminated earlier or extended in accordance with the 
provisions of this Lease. Lessor shall have two (2) options of one (1) year each to extend this 
Lease upon such terms and conditions as Lessor and Lessee shall mutually agree to. 

	

3.2. 	The options granted in Section 3.1 of this Lease, if exercised, are subject to the approval 
of the Executive Director of Pease Development Authority. Lessee has the right, without 
penalty, to reject Lessor's renewal terms and conditions and to discontinue providing car rental 
services at the end of the initial one (1) year term of this Lease or at the end of the first option 
period. Lessor shall provide Lessee with proposed renewal terms and conditions ninety (90) days 
prior to the end of the initial one (1) year term of this Lease and, if applicable, ninety (90) days 
prior to the expiration of the first option period. In either event, Lessee shall have thirty (30) days 
thereafter to accept or reject Lessor's renewal proposal. If Lessee rejects any of Lessor's 
renewal proposals, Lessee will vacate the Leased Premises at the end of one (1) year or the end 
of the first option period, whichever is applicable. 

	

3.3. 	The options granted hereunder may not be exercised by the Lessee if it is in default under 
the terms of this Agreement and such default has not been cured within any applicable cure 
period. 

	

3.4. 	Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise when used in this Lease the phrase "term 
of this Lease" shall mean the Base Term plus any duly exercised allowable extensions thereof 

	

3.5. 	Early Termination. Notwithstanding the above, Lessee shall have the right to terminate the 
Lease with thirty (30) days written notice to Lessor in the event: a.) of a 15% or higher drop in 
deplanements in any month as compared to the same month in the prior year, or in the same month 
of 2018, or b.) the Airport no longer has any commercial air carrier service. 

END OF ARTICLE 3.  



ARTICLE 4. 

TERMINAL AREA RENT - ANNUAL MINIMUM CONCESSION FEE - PERCENTAGE 
FEES & MUNICIPAL SERVICES FEE 

4A. 	Subject to Section 4.3 of this Lease, Lessee shall pay to Lessor Terminal Area Rent 
("Terminal Area Rent") at the following annual rates for the areas of the Leased Premises 
described in Section 1.1: 

Year 1 
	

$15.00 per square foot of terminal area plus $144.00 for each 
terminal parking space, $96.00 for each overflow parking 
space and $100.00 for a 24 hour key drop box. 

Option Years 1 & 2 - 	To be negotiated 

4.2. The Terminal Area Rent due under Section 4.1 shall commence upon the Term 
Commencement Date. The annual Terminal Area Rent shall be payable in each case in equal 
monthly installments of one-twelfth thereof in advance on the first day of each month without 
offset in lawful money of the United States at the office of Lessor at the Airport or at such other 
address as Lessor may hereafter designate. In addition, Lessee agrees to pay when due, such 
other amounts that may be required to be paid as additional rent. Lessee's rent obligation for any 
fractional portion of a calendar month at the beginning or end of the term of this Lease shall be a 
similar fraction of the rental due for an entire month. 

4.3. 	For the privilege of operating its car rental service at the Airport throughout the term of 
this Lease, Lessee shall pay to Lessor each year, a fee equal to a sum of money which represents 
the greater of the guaranteed Annual Minimum Concession Fee (which shall be deemed to 
include Terminal Area Rent) or the Percentage Fee applicable to Gross Revenues, as hereinafter 
defined. 

A. The Annual Minimum Concession Fee shall be $7,100.00 in Year 1. Said 
Annual Minimum Concession Fee shall be payable in equal monthly installments 
of one-twelfth thereof, in advance and without demand, on the first day of each 
month in the fashion provided in Section 4.2 for the payment of Terminal Area 
Rent. 

B. The Percentage Fees to be applied to Gross Revenues, as hereinafter defined, shall 
be ten percent (10%). Lessee will pay the Percentage Fee on Gross Revenue on a 



cash basis, after final charges have been determined and rental tickets are closed. 
Lessee will not remit the Percentage Fee on any tickets that remain open at the end 
of the month. 

C. Gross Revenues shall include the gross revenues from all sales made and services 
performed for cash or credit at the Airport, regardless of when or whether paid or 
not. 

Excluded from Gross Revenues shall be sales taxes separately stated: all fuel sold, 
vehicle licensing fees ("VLF"); Carbon offsets; reimbursements received for 
payment and administration of parking and traffic violations, citations, fines, tolls, 
towing, and impounded fees; toll pass device rental charge, toll convenience 
charge,; acceptance of Personal Accident Insurance ("PAI"), Supplemental 
Liability Protection ("SLP"), or other insurance coverage; any sums received as 
insurance or otherwise for damage to automobiles or other property of Lessee, or 
for the loss, conversion, or abandonment of such automobiles or other property of 
Lessee. 

D. Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each three (3) month period during the 
term of this Lease, Lessee shall pay to Lessor a sum of money which represents 
the excess, if any, of the difference between the Percentage Fee and the Annual 
Minimum Concession Fee for the previous three (3) month period. To the extent 
the Lessee overpays the Percentage Fee in any given year it shall be entitled to a 
credit on the anniversary date of this Lease. 

E. All payments of Annual Minimum Concession Fees and Percentage Fees shall be 
accompanied by documentation of daily Gross Revenues for the preceding month. 
Lessee agrees to keep in the Leased Premises or in its home office, full and 
complete records of all sales and services, in, upon or from the Leased Premises 
(including deductions or exclusions therefrom). Such records shall be retained by 
Lessee agency for not less than three (3) years after the expiration of the Lease. 
Lessor or its agents may, at reasonable times and on reasonable notice inspect and 
audit such records. 

4.4. Concession Recovery Fee. Lessee may recover from its customers the 10% concession 
fee paid to Lessor at a rate of 11.11% pursuant to the formula described by way of an example as 
more fully set forth in Exhibit C. 

4.5. [RESERVED] 

4.6. All rent and fees, including the Annual Minimum Concession Fees and Percentage Fees 
payable hereunder, shall be net to Lessor, free and clear of any and all Impositions (as defined in 
Section 5.1), or expenses of any nature whatsoever in connection with the Premises. The Parties 
agree that, except as expressly provided herein, all costs, expenses and charges of every kind and 
nature relating to the Leased Premises which may be attributed to, or become due during the 
initial or any renewal term of this Lease, shall constitute additional rent or fees (whichever is 
applicable) to be paid by Lessee and, upon failure of Lessee to pay any such costs, expenses or 

-8- 



charges, Lessor shall have the same rights and remedies as otherwise provided in this Lease for 
the failure of Lessee to pay such rent or fees. It is the intention of the Parties that Lessee shall in 
no event be entitled to any abatement or reduction in rent or fees payable hereunder, except as 
expressly provided herein. Any present or future law to the contrary shall not alter the agreement 
of the Parties. 

	

4.7. 	In addition to the fees or rent required to be paid under this Article 4, Lessee shall also 
pay to Lessor a municipal services fee in accordance with the Municipal Services Agreement by 
and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of Newington and the Pease Development 
Authority effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police and roadway services provided by or 
on behalf of Lessor at the Airport and will be subject to increases each year only to the extent the 
cost to Lessor of providing such services increases. The municipal services fee shall be paid 
quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion provided in Section 4.2 of this Lease. 

To the extent the Leased Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and provided such 
municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway services, Lessee 
may offset against any fee paid to Lessor the portion of such municipal taxes as are attributable 
to fire, police and roadway services, and Lessor shall have no further obligation to provide such 
services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against the Leased Premises, or on Lessee 
as Lessee, for all three of fire, police and roadway services and Lessor either has no obligation to 
provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal services fee required to 
be paid under this Section 4.7 shall terminate. 

In the event the Leased Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport 
District, Lessee shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in 
accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:11, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation 
by a municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport 
District. 

	

4.8. 	Any municipal services fee or tax imposed for fire, police, and/or roadway services shall 
be considered an imposition under Article 5 of this Lease. 

END OF ARTICLE 4. 



ARTICLE 5. 

IMPOSITIONS  

	

5.1. 	During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall pay when due, all taxes, charges, excises, 
license and permit fees, assessments, and other governmental charges, general and special, 
ordinary and extraordinary, unforeseen, as well as foreseen, of any kind and nature whatsoever, 
which during the term of this Lease are assessed or imposed upon or become due and payable or 
a lien upon: (i) the Leased Premises or any part thereof or any personal property, equipment or 
other facility used in the operation thereof; or (ii) the rent or income received from subtenants or 
licensees; or (iii) any use or occupancy of the Leased Premises; or (iv) this transaction or any 
document to which Lessee is a party creating or transferring an estate or interest in the Leased 
Premises (all of which taxes, charges, excises, fees, assessments and other governmental charges 
are hereinafter collectively referred to as "Impositions"). If, by law, any such Imposition is 
payable, or may at the option of Lessee be paid in installments, Lessee may pay the same 
together with any accrued interest on the unpaid balance of such Imposition in installments as the 
same respectively become due and before any fine, penalty, interest or cost may be added thereto 
for the nonpayment of any such installment and interest.. Any Imposition relating to a fiscal 
period of the taxing authority a part of which period is included prior to the commencement of 
the term of this Lease, shall be prorated as between Lessor and Lessee so that Lessee shall pay 
only the portion thereof attributable to any period during the term of this Lease. Lessee hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that failure to make payment of any required municipal services fees in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 4.7 of this Lease shall constitute a default and breach 
of this Lease as set forth in Article 18. 

	

5.2. 	Lessee covenants to furnish to Lessor within fourteen (14) days of receipt of a written 
request from Lessor, official receipts of the appropriate taxing authority, or other proof 
satisfactory to Lessor, evidencing the payment thereof. 

	

5.3. 	Lessee shall have the right before any delinquency occurs to contest or object to the 
amount or validity of any such Imposition by appropriate legal proceedings. This right shall not 
be deemed or construed in any way as relieving, modifying or extending Lessee's covenant to 
pay any such Imposition at the time and in the manner in this Article, unless Lessee shall have 
obtained a stay of such proceedings. Lessor shall not be required to join in any such proceedings 
unless it shall be necessary for it to do so in order to prosecute such proceedings and Lessor shall 
have been fully indemnified to its satisfaction against all costs and expenses in connection 
therewith. Lessor shall not be subjected to any liability for the payment of any costs or expenses 
(including attorneys' and expert witness fees) in connection with any such proceedings brought 
by Lessee, and Lessee covenants to indemnify and save Lessor harmless from any such costs or 
expenses. 

	

5.4. 	As between the Parties, Lessee alone shall have the duty of attending to, making or filing 
any declaration, statement or report which may be provided or required by law as the basis of or 
in connection with the determination, equalization, reduction or payment of any and every 
Imposition which is to be borne or paid or which may become payable by Lessee under the 
provisions of this Article, and Lessor shall not be or become responsible to Lessee therefor, nor 
for the contents of any such declaration, statement or report. 
END OF ARTICLE 5.  

-10 - 



ARTICLE 6. 

SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES  

6.1. 	On the expiration or termination of this Lease, Lessee shall surrender to Lessor the 
Leased Premises, including all buildings and improvements on the Leased Premises whether 
leased to or otherwise owned by Lessee, broom clean and in good order, condition and repair, 
reasonable wear and tear excepted, together with all alterations, decorations, additions and 
improvements that may have been made in, to or on the Leased Premises, except that Lessee 
shall be allowed to remove its personal property or any improvements made by Lessee at its sole 
expense that can be removed without damage to any buildings, facilities or other improvements 
to the Leased Premises. The Leased Premises, including the buildings and improvements 
thereon, shall be delivered free and clear of all subtenancies, liens and encumbrances, other than 
those, if any, permitted hereby or otherwise created or consented to by Lessor, and, if requested 
to do so, Lessee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor such instruments of further 
assurance as in the opinion of Lessor are necessary or desirable to confirm or perfect Lessor's 
right, title and interest in and to the Leased Premises including said building and improvements. 
On or before the end of the Lease term, Lessee shall remove all of Lessee's personal and other 
property allowed to be removed hereunder, and all such property not removed shall be deemed 
abandoned by Lessee and may be utilized or disposed of by Lessor without any liability to 
Lessee. Lessee's obligation under this Article 6 shall survive the expiration or termination of 
this Lease. 

END OF ARTICLE 6.  



ARTICLE 7. 

INSURANCE 

7.1. 

A. Risk of Loss. Lessee shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Leased Premises, 
including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from any 
causes whatsoever. 

B. Insurance. During the entire period this Lease shall be in effect, the Lessee at its 
expense will carry and maintain: 

(1) Personal property insurance coverage against loss or damage by fire and 
lightning and against loss or damage or other risks embraced by coverage of the type now 
known as the broad form of extended coverage (including but not limited to riot and civil 
commotion, vandalism, and malicious mischief and earthquake) in an amount not less 
than 100% of the full replacement value of the improvements and personal property on 
the Leased Premises. The policies of insurance carried in accordance with this Section 
shall contain a "Replacement Cost Endorsement." Such full replacement cost shall be 
determined from time to time, upon the written request of Lessor, but not more frequently 
than once in any twenty-four (24) consecutive calendar month period (except in the event 
of substantial changes or alterations to the Premises undertaken by Lessee as permitted 
under the provisions hereof) by written agreement of Lessor and Lessee, or if they cannot 
agree within thirty (30) days of such request, by an insurance consultant, appraiser, 
architect or contractor who shall be mutually and reasonably acceptable to Lessor and 
Lessee. Any such determination by a third party shall be subject to approval by Lessor 
and Lessee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The insurance 
maintained in this Section shall be adjusted to one hundred percent (100%) of the new 
full replacement cost consistent with the approved determination. 

(2) Commercial General Liability insurance, including, but not limited to, 
products and completed operations liability insurance, on an "occurrence basis" against 
claims for "personal injury," including without limitation, bodily injury, death or property 
damage, occurring upon, in or about the Leased Premises, passageways, adjoining 
sidewalks, streets and parking areas, such insurance to afford immediate minimum 
protection at the time of the Term Commencement Date, and at all times during the term 
of this Lease, to a limit of not less than Two Million ($2,000,000.00) Dollars with respect 
to damage to property, personal/bodily injury or death to any one or more persons and 
with no deductible or such deductible amount as may be approved by Lessor. Such 
insurance shall also include coverage against liability for bodily injury or property 
damage arising out of the acts or omissions by or on behalf of Lessee, or any other person 
or organization, or involving any owned, non-owned, leased or hired automotive 
equipment in connection with Lessee's activities. 

(3) Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in an amount 
and form which meets all applicable requirements of the labor laws of the State of New 

-12- 



Hampshire, as amended from time to time, and which specifically covers the persons and 
risks involved in this Lease. 

(4) 	Automobile liability insurance in amounts approved from time to time by 
Lessor, but not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for 
owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. 

72 	All policies of insurance required to be carried under this Article shall be effected under 
valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required 
under this Lease, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to transact 
such insurance coverage in the State of New Hampshire, and which have been approved in 
writing by Lessor, which approval shall not be withheld unreasonably. The policy of insurance 
required in section 7.1.B. (1) shall name the Lessor as loss payee. The policies of insurance 
required in Sections 7.1.B. (2) and (4) shall be for the mutual benefit of Lessee and the Lessor 
with the Lessor named as an additional insured as its interest may appear for liabilities arising 
out of the conduct of the Lessee. Upon the execution of this Lease (and thereafter not less than 
fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this Article) the 
original of each policy required to be furnished pursuant to this Article (or, with the consent of 
Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld a certificate of the insurer reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor) shall be delivered by Lessee to Lessor. 

7.3. 	All policies of insurance, as applicable, shall provide for loss thereunder to be adjusted 
and payable to Lessor or Lessee in accordance with the terms of this Lease. 

7.4. 	Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable 
contain (i) a provision that no act or omission of Lessee, or any employee, officer or agent of 
Lessee, which would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided 
shall affect or limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss 
sustained, for covered acts caused by the Lessee, (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy 
shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to 
Lessor, (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA, and (iv) 
provide that Lessee's insurance coverage shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to 
any insurance coverages carried by Lessor. 

7.5. 	To the extent applicable, personal property insurance required to be maintained by Lessee 
shall have attached thereto the Lender's Loss Payable Endorsement, or its equivalent, or a loss 
payable clause acceptable to Lessor, for the benefit of any Mortgagee, but the right of any 
Mortgagee to the payment of insurance proceeds shall at all times be subject to the provisions of 
this Lease with respect to the application of the proceeds of such insurance. 

7.6. 	Lessee shall observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of insurance at any 
time in force with respect to the Leased Premises and Lessee shall also perform and satisfy the 
requirements of the companies writing such policies so that at all times companies of good 
standing reasonably satisfactory to Lessor shall be willing to write or to continue such insurance. 
Lessee shall, in the event of any violations or attempted violations of the provisions of this 
Section 7.6 by a subtenant, take steps, immediately upon knowledge of such violation or 
attempted violation, to remedy or prevent the same as the case may be. 

-13- 



	

7.7. 	Any insurance provided for in this Lease may be effected by a policy or policies of 
blanket insurance or may be continued in such form until otherwise required by Lessor; 
provided, however, that the amount of the total insurance allocated to the Leased Premises shall 
be such as to furnish in protection the equivalent of separate policies in the amounts herein 
required, and provided further that in all other respects, any such policy or policies shall comply 
with the other provisions of this Lease. In any such case it shall not be necessary to deliver the 
original of any such blanket policy to Lessor, but Lessee shall deliver to Lessor and to any 
Mortgagee a certificate in form and content acceptable to Lessor. 

	

7.8. 	The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement and in 
no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. 

	

7.9. 	Over the term of this Lease and any extensions thereof, Lessor reserves the right to 
request increases in mandatory insurance coverage limits for each respective coverage area 
required under this Lease as the same may be appropriate, commercially reasonable and prudent 
in view of then existing conditions and circumstances. Lessor agrees to provide Lessee with a 
thirty (30) day written notice when making any request for an increase in required insurance 
coverage limits. 

END OF ARTICLE 7.  



ARTICLE 8. 

LESSOR'S RIGHT TO PERFORM LESSEE'S COVENANTS 

	

8.1. 	If Lessee shall at any time fail to pay when due any Imposition or other charge or to pay 
for or maintain any of the insurance policies required under Article 7, or to make any other 
payment or perform any other act on Lessee's part required by this Lease, then Lessor, after ten 
(10) days written notice to Lessee (or, in case of any emergency, without notice, or with such 
notice as may be reasonable under the circumstances) and without waiving or releasing Lessee 
from any obligation of Lessee hereunder, may (but shall not be required to): 

(i) pay such Imposition or other charge, or 

(ii) pay for and maintain such insurance policies, or 

(iii) make such other payment or perform such other act on Lessee's part to be 
made or performed as provided in this Lease, and may enter upon the Leased Premises 
for such purpose and take all such action as may be deemed or appropriate by Lessor to 
correct such failure of Lessee. 

	

8.2. 	All sums so paid by Lessor and all costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in connection 
with the performance of any such act (together with interest thereon at the rate specified in 
Section 26.1 from the respective date(s) of Lessor's making of each such payment or incurring of 
each cost or expenses) shall constitute additional rent payable by Lessee under this Lease and 
shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor on demand. 

END OF ARTICLE 8. 



ARTICLE 9. 

USE OF LEASED PREMISES  

	

9.1. 	The sole purpose for which Lessee may use the Leased Premises is to operate a rental car 
service and for no other uses without Lessor's prior written consent. Lessee shall not use, or 
permit to be used, the Leased Premises for any other purpose without the prior express written 
consent of Lessor. Lessor's consent shall be subject to the execution of an appropriate 
agreement which shall include a provision requiring the payment of established fees and charges 
that may be applicable to any such additional uses consented to by Lessor. Lessee is prohibited 
from any use of the Leased Premises not specifically granted in this Section 9.1. 

Lessee shall have no right to conduct any commercial or other activities at the Leased 
Premises, other than what is expressly granted in this Section 9.1. The Parties acknowledge that 
among the uses not authorized at the Airport are the sale of food, beverages, consumer goods or 
services other than those related to or commonly provided in connection with the provision of 
rental car services. Vehicle fueling, washing, maintenance and overflow parking (except as 
authorized in this Lease) shall be prohibited on Airport property. 

	

9.2. 	Lessee recognizes that the uses authorized in Section 9.1 are not granted on an exclusive 
basis and that Lessor may enter into Leases or other agreements with other tenants or users at 
areas of the Airport other than the Leased Premises for similar, identical, or competing uses. No 
provision of this Lease shall be construed as granting or authorizing the granting of an exclusive 
right within the meaning of Section 308 of the Federal Aviation Act as the same may be 
amended from time to time. 

	

9.3. 	Lessee agrees that it will keep the Premises in a neat, clean and orderly condition and 
shall be responsible for trash removal in accordance the provisions of Chapters 300 through 500 
of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Zoning Requirements, Site Plan Review 
Regulations and Subdivision Regulations (collectively the "Land Use Controls") and such other 
rules and regulations from time to time promulgated, provided that Lessee shall not be bound by 
any such rules and regulations until such time as it receives a copy thereof. Lessee agrees to 
cause trash receptacles to be emptied and trash removed at Lessee's sole cost and expense. 

	

9.4. 	Lessee warrants that prior to engaging in any permitted use, it will hold all certificates, 
permits, licenses or other entitlements required by federal, state or local laws in order to allow 
Lessee to conduct the permitted uses hereunder, and that the same are, and will be, kept current, 
valid and complete. Lessee further warrants that it shall at all times abide by and conform with 
all terms of the same and that it shall give immediate notice to Lessor of any additions, renewals, 
amendments, suspensions or revocations. In the use and occupation of the Leased Premises and 
the conduct of such business thereon, Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly comply 
with all present and future laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations and requirements of all 
federal, state and municipal governments, courts, departments, commissions and boards, any 
national, state or local Board of Fire Underwriters, or any other body exercising functions similar 
to those of any of the foregoing. 



	

9.5. 	Lessee shall have the right to contest by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted in 
good faith, without cost or expense to Lessor, the validity or application of any law, ordinance, 
order, rule, regulation or requirement of the nature referred to in this Article. If compliance with 
any such law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation or requirement may be delayed on the basis of an 
order from a court of competent jurisdiction pending the prosecution of any such proceeding 
without the incurrence of any lien, charge or liability of any kind against the Leased Premises or 
Lessee's interest therein and without subjecting Lessor to any liability, civil or criminal, for 
failure so to comply therewith, Lessee may delay compliance therewith consistent with such 
court order. Even if such lien, charge or civil liability would be incurred by reason of any such 
delay, Lessee may, with the prior written consent of Lessor, contest as aforesaid and delay as 
aforesaid, provided that such contest or delay does not subject Lessor to criminal liability, 
damages or expense and provided that Lessee: (i) furnishes to Lessor security, reasonably 
satisfactory to Lessor, against any loss or injury by reason of such contest or delay; and (ii) 
prosecutes the contest with due diligence. 

Lessor shall not be required to join in any proceedings referred to in this Section unless the 
provisions of any applicable laws, rules or regulations at the time in effect shall require that such 
proceedings be brought by and/or in the name of Lessor and Lessor determines that such action is 
in its best interests, in which event Lessor shall join in the proceedings, or permit the same to be 
brought in its name, if Lessee shall pay all expenses in connection therewith. 

9.6. All employees of Lessee at the Airport terminal, Terminal Common Use Areas and 
Common Use Areas shall be neatly attired and clearly identified as employees of Lessee and 
shall at all times visibly carry an appropriate Airport identification badge. 

	

9.7. 	Responsibility for compliance with all federal, state and local laws as required by this 
Article rests exclusively with the Lessee. The Lessor assumes no enforcement or supervisory 
responsibility except with respect to matters committed to its jurisdiction and authority. 

	

9.8. 	Lessee's use of the Leased Premises shall be orderly and efficient and shall not cause any 
disruptions to other airport activities. Lessee shall not cause or maintain any nuisance on the 
Leased Premises. Lessee shall conduct all of its activities hereunder in an environmentally 
responsible manner. 

	

9.9. 	Lessee shall have the right to obtain supplies or services from suppliers, vendors or 
contractors of its own choice at the Leased Premises, provided that Lessor reserves the right to 
prohibit persons from engaging in "aeronautical activities" (as defined in Advisory Circular AC 
150/5190-2A of the Federal Aviation Administration) or the provision of ground transportation 
services at the Airport except in accordance with concession contracts or operating agreements 
entered into between Lessor and said persons. 

9.10. Lessee agrees to provide, throughout the term of this Lease, the following: 

A. 	Rental car services to the public during the hours necessary to meet normal 
demands of airline flight schedules. Such services will include providing one-way 
rentals "rent it here, leave it here" services. Lessor may require periodic reports 



of Lessee which would indicate the degree of satisfactorily response to requests 
for such services; 

B. A sufficient number of automobiles to meet the reasonable demands of the 
traveling public at the Airport. Such automobiles shall be of current model (an in 
no event older than the two previous years' model of such automobile); and they 
shall be maintained in first-class condition free from known mechanical defects; 

C. Personnel performing services are to be neat and courteous. Lessee shall not 
permit its agents, or employees so engaged, to conduct business or otherwise to 
behave in a loud, noisy, boisterous, offensive or objectionable manner, or to 
solicit business outside the space assigned in any manner, except through the use 
of signs approved by Lessor. 

D. An attendant for the purpose of providing rental car service for such periods 
during each day and on such days during each week as may be necessary to meet 
reasonable demands for services, or during such minimum hours as may be 
determined by the Lessor. 

E. Participation in an a nationwide or regional car rental system; and 

F. Accept for payment of services at least two (2) major credit cards. 

G. Charge prices in accordance with its usual standards on a basis substantially 
similar to those charged for similar services at airports of similar size within the 
same general area. Lessor shall have the right to approve all prices and 
adjustments thereto. 

9.11. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor is subject to certain restrictions on the use of the 
Airport Property in accordance with Paragraph V.B of the Deed. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Lease, the Lessee shall also comply with and be subject to all other restrictions 
and conditions of the Deed to the extent applicable to the Leased Premises. 

END OF ARTICLE 9.  



ARTICLE 10. 

LIENS 

10.1. During the term of this Lease, Lessee shall not permit to remain, and shall promptly 
discharge, at its cost and expense, all liens, encumbrances and charges upon the Leased Premises 
or any part thereof; provided, that the existence of any mechanics', laborers', materialmen's, 
suppliers' or vendors' liens or rights thereto shall not constitute a violation of this Article if 
payment is not yet due under the applicable contract. Lessee shall, however, have the right to 
contest with due diligence the validity or amount of any lien or claimed lien, if Lessee shall give 
to Lessor such security as Lessor may reasonably require to insure payment thereof and prevent 
any sale, foreclosure or forfeiture of Lessee's interest in the Leased Premises or any portion 
thereof by reason of such nonpayment. On final determination of the lien or claim for lien, 
Lessee shall immediately pay any judgment rendered with all proper costs and charges and shall 
have the lien released or judgment satisfied at Lessee's own expense, and if Lessee shall fail to 
do so, Lessor may at its option pay any such final judgment and clear the Leased Premises 
therefrom. If Lessee shall fail to contest with due diligence the validity or amount of any such 
lien or claimed lien, or to give Lessor security as hereinabove provided, Lessor may, but shall 
not be required to, contest the validity or amount of any such lien or claimed lien or settle or 
compromise the same without inquiring into the validity of the claim or the reasonableness of the 
amount thereof. 

10.2. Should any lien be filed against the Leased Premises or should any action of any 
character affecting the title thereto be commenced, Lessee shall give to Lessor written notice 
thereof as soon as notice of such lien or action comes to the knowledge of Lessee. 

END OF ARTICLE 10.  



ARTICLE 11. 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE  

Lessee covenants and agrees, throughout the term of this Lease, without cost to Lessor, to 
maintain the Leased Premises and to keep the same in good order and condition, and shall 
promptly at Lessee's own cost and expense, make all necessary repairs, to keep the Leased 
Premises and related improvements in safe, clean and sanitary condition. The obligations of 
Lessee to make repairs shall extend to any damage caused to the Leased Premises or Terminal 
Common Areas caused by Lessee or its passengers, agents, servants, contractors, suppliers or 
other invitees of Lessee at the Airport. 

END OF ARTICLE 11.  



ARTICLE 12. 

RIGHT OF LESSOR TO INSPECT AND REPAIR 

12.1. Lessee will permit Lessor and its authorized agents and representatives to enter the 
Leased Premises at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice for the purpose of: (i) 
inspecting the same; and (ii) making any necessary repairs and performing any other work that 
may be necessary by reason of Lessee's failure to comply with the terms of this Lease within ten 
(10) days after written notice from Lessor, unless an emergency situation (as determined in 
Lessor's sole discretion) requires earlier action by Lessor. Nothing herein shall imply any duty 
upon the part of Lessor to do any such work and performance thereof by Lessor shall not 
constitute a waiver of Lessee's default in failing to perform the same. Lessor may during the 
progress of such work keep and store in or on the Leased Premises all necessary materials, tools, 
supplies and equipment. Lessor shall not be liable for inconvenience, annoyance, disturbance, 
loss of business or other damage of Lessee by reason of making such repairs or the performance 
of any such work, on or account of bringing materials, tools, supplies or equipment into or 
through the Leased Premises during the course thereof and the obligations of Lessee under this 
Lease shall not be affected thereby. Nothing herein shall limit the provisions of Article 8. 

12.2. Lessee acknowledges that from time to time Lessor may undertake construction, repair or 
other activities related to the operation, maintenance and repair of the Airport which will require 
temporary accommodation by Lessee. Lessee agrees to accommodate Lessor in such matters, 
even though Lessee's own activities may be inconvenienced or partially impaired, and Lessee 
agrees that no liability shall attach to Lessor, its members, employees or agents by reason of such 
inconvenience or impairment, unless such activities of Lessor hereunder are performed in a 
negligent manner. 

12.3. Lessee shall allow any agency of the United States, its officers, agents, employees and 
contractors to enter upon the Leased Premises for any purposes not inconsistent with Lessee's 
quiet use and enjoyment, including but not limited to the purpose of inspection. Notwithstanding 
the preceding sentence, in the event the Air Force (or any other agency having a right of entry 
under the Federal Facilities Agreement (FFA) as defined in Section 25.8) determines that 
immediate entry is required for safety, environmental, operations or security purposes it may 
effect such entry without prior notice. The Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor or against 
the United States or any officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof on account of any such 
entries. 

END OF ARTICLE 12.  



ARTICLE 13. 

GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY LESSEE 

13.1. In addition to any other obligation of Lessee under this Lease to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Lessor, Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor against and 
from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, assessments, costs and expenses, 
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages 
for the loss or restriction on the use of the Premises, sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' 
fees, consultants' fees and experts' fees) resulting or arising during the term of this Lease: 

(1) from any condition of the Premises (except as otherwise set forth in 
Article 25), including any building structure or improvement thereon; 

(2) from any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the performance of any 
covenant or agreement on the part of Lessee to be performed pursuant to the terms of this 
Lease, or from any act or omission of Lessee, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, 
employees, Lessees, licensees or invitees; or 

(3) from any accident, injury, death, loss or damage whatsoever caused to any 
person or property occurring during the term of this Lease, on or about the Leased 
Premises (including Terminal Common Areas and Parking Areas), or upon the land, 
streets, curbs or parking areas adjacent thereto. 

In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against Lessor by reason of any 
matter for which Lessee has hereby agreed to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Lessor, 
Lessee, upon notice from Lessor, covenants to resist or defend such action or proceeding with 
counsel acceptable to Lessor. 

13.2. The term "Person" as used in this Article and Article 25 shall include individuals, 
corporations, partnerships, governmental units and any other legal entity entitled to bring a 
claim, action or other demand or proceeding on its own behalf or on behalf of any other entity. 

END OF ARTICLE 13. 



ARTICLE 14. 

UTILITIES  

14.1. Lessee acknowledges that the utility lines serving the Terminal as of the Term 
Commencement Date are sufficient to enable Lessee to obtain, as of the date of commencement 
of Lessee's activities, sufficient water, electricity, gas for heating, telephone and sewer service. 
Lessee shall not at any time overburden or exceed the capacity of the mains, feeders, ducts, 
conduits, or other facilities by which such utilities are supplied to, distributed in or serve the 
Leased Premises. If Lessee desires to install any equipment which shall require additional utility 
facilities or utility facilities of a greater capacity than the facilities provided by Lessor, such 
installation shall be subject to Lessor's prior written approval of Lessee's plans and 
specifications therefor, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. If such installation is 
approved by Lessor and if Lessor agrees to provide any additional facilities to accommodate 
Lessee's installation, Lessee agrees to pay Lessor, in advance and on demand, the cost for 
providing such additional utility facilities or utility facilities of greater capacity. 

Lessor also reserves the right to run such utility lines as it deems necessary in connection 
with the development of the Airport to, from, or through the Leased Premises, provided, 
however, that Lessor in exercising such reserved right shall provide reasonable prior notice and 
the opportunity to confer with Lessee and shall exercise reasonable efforts to avoid or minimize 
interference with use of the Leased Premises. 

Lessor, at its sole discretion, shall have the right from time to time, to alter the method 
and source of supply of the above enumerated utilities to the Leased Premises and Lessee agrees 
to execute and deliver to Lessor such documentation as may be required to effect such alteration. 

Lessor shall have the option to supply any of the above enumerated utilities to the Leased 
Premises. If Lessor shall elect to supply any of such utilities to the Leased Premises, Lessee will 
purchase its requirements for such services tendered by Lessor, and Lessee will pay Lessor, 
within ten (10) days after mailing by Lessor to Lessee of statements therefor, at the applicable 
rates determined by Lessor from time to time which Lessor agrees shall not be in excess of the 
public utility rates for the same service, if applicable, to other aviation tenants at the Airport. If 
Lessor so elects to supply any of such utilities, Lessee shall execute and deliver to Lessor, within 
ten (10) days after request therefor, any documentation reasonably required by Lessor to effect 
such change in the method of furnishing of such utilities. 

14.2. Except as otherwise provided for in Section 14.1 of this Lease, Lessee shall not be 
charged for utilities, including heat, air conditioning, water and electricity. 

14.3. All work and construction under this Article shall comply with the provisions of Article 
15 of this Lease applicable to construction work. 

14.4. [Omitted]. 

END OF ARTICLE 14.  



ARTICLE 15. 

ALTERATIONS - SIGNS 

15.1.  Lessee shall not place or construct any improvements, changes, structures, alterations or 
additions (cumulatively referred to in this Article as "Alterations") in, to or upon the Leased 
Premises without Lessor's written consent. Unless Lessee is subject to an earlier notice 
requirement under the Lessor's land use controls or other applicable requirements with respect to 
the information required under this section, any request for Lessor's consent shall be made upon 
sixty (60) days written notice and shall be accompanied by preliminary engineering or 
architectural plans or, if consented to by Lessor, working drawings. If Lessor grants its consent 
all such work shall be done at Lessee's sole cost and expense, subject, in all cases, to the 
following covenants: 

(1) All work and Alterations shall be done in compliance with all applicable 
governmental regulations, codes, standards or other requirements, including fire, safety and 
building codes and Land Use Regulations promulgated by Lessor and with the provisions of 
Article 25 of this Lease. This obligation shall include compliance with all applicable provisions 
of the FFA (as defined in Section 25.8), including obligations imposed upon Lessor in respect to 
construction and construction related work. 

(2) All Alterations shall be of such a character as not to materially reduce the value 
and usefulness of any of the buildings or other improvements below their value and usefulness 
immediately before such Alteration. All work performed hereunder shall be performed in a good 
and workmanlike manner, shall conform to drawings and specifications approved by Lessor and 
shall not be disruptive of the overall operation the Airport. All contractors engaged by Lessee to 
perform such work shall employ labor that can work in harmony with all elements of labor at the 
Airport. 

(3) During the period of construction of any Alterations, Lessee or any contractor, 
subcontractor or sublessee of Lessee shall maintain or cause to be maintained the following 
insurance: 

(i) The Commercial General Liability and automobile liability insurance 
provided for in Article 7.1.B.(2) and (4) shall be maintained for the limits specified 
thereunder and shall provide coverage for the mutual benefit of Lessor and Lessee as 
named insured in connection with any Alteration permitted pursuant to this Article 15; 

(ii) Property and fire and any other applicable insurance provided for in 
Article 7 which if not then covered under the provisions of existing policies shall be 
covered by special endorsement thereto in respect to any Alteration, including all 
materials and equipment therefor incorporated in, on or about the Leased Premises 
(including excavations, foundations, and footings) under a broad form all risks builder's 
risk completed value form or equivalent thereof; and 

(iii) Workers' compensation insurance covering all persons employed in 
connection with the work and with respect to whom death or bodily injury claims could 

-24- 



be asserted against Lessor, Lessee or the Leased Premises, with statutory limits as then 
required under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. 

The provisions of all applicable Sections of Article 7 of this Lease shall apply to all insurance 
provided for in this Section. 

(4) 	Lessee shall provide Lessor with MYLAR as-built drawings when any Alteration 
authorized hereunder is completed. 

15.2. Lessee may erect and maintain suitable signs only within the Leased Premises and upon 
receiving the prior written approval of Lessor. Lessee shall submit drawings of proposed signs 
and information on the number, size, type, and location, all of which Lessor may review for 
harmony and conformity with the overall structure and architectural and aesthetic setting of the 
Leased Premises and the Airport as well as with Lessor's own land use control regulations and 
may approve or disapprove accordingly. 

15.3. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees shall not conduct any excavation, digging, 
drilling or other disturbance of areas denoted as "Use Restriction Zones" on Exhibit C of the 
Deed, referenced in Section C of the Recitals of this Lease. 

15.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, the right of Lessee to place or 
construct Alterations in, to or upon the Leased Premises shall be subject to Paragraph B of the 
Deed, referenced in Section C of the Recitals of this Lease. 

15.5. In addition to the requirements to provide notice to Lessor under this Article 15 in respect 
to any Alteration, Lessee shall also provide notice to the Air Force, EPA and NHDES in the same 
manner and to the extent required of Lessor under the Deed and/or the FFA. 

END OF ARTICLE 15.  



ARTICLE 16. 

DESTRUCTION AND RESTORATION 

16.1. In the event the Terminal is damaged by fire or other casualty to the extent of fifty per 
cent (50%) or greater, as determined solely by Lessor, Lessor shall have the right to elect not to 
rebuild, in which event this Lease shall be terminated upon seven (7) days notice by Lessor to 
Lessee. In such event all proceeds of insurance shall be distributed in the same priority as set 
forth in Section 16A.1. Lessee shall not be deemed to be in default of the Lessee Service 
Obligations herein if Lessor terminates this Lease under this provision unless Lessor makes 
available within seven (7) days alternate premises suitable for Lessee's commercial passenger 
transportation services as reasonably determined by Lessee. In the event the Leased Premises, 
including improvements or facilities located on the Leased Premises, (but excluding movable 
trade fixtures, furniture and equipment), shall be damaged by fire or other casualty, and Lessor 
does not terminate this Lease in accordance with the first sentence of this Section 16.1, such 
damage shall be repaired by Lessee as promptly as possible and at Lessee's expense so as to 
restore the same as nearly as possible to the condition prior to such damage. In discharging this 
obligation Lessee may utilize available insurance in accordance with the provisions of Section 
16.2 and Section 16.5 and shall perform such work in accordance with Section 16.6. The repair 
obligations of Lessee under this Section 16.1 extend to the Leased Premises only. 

16.2. All insurance proceeds payable as the result of any damage to the Leased Premises shall 
be endorsed by Lessee and the Air Force, to the extent of its interests and shall be held by Lessor 
and shall be paid out from time to time as the repair/restoration work progresses as follows: 

(a) Lessee shall give a written request for payment to Lessor which shall be 
accompanied by a verified statement from Lessee setting forth that the sum then 
requested either has been paid by Lessee or is justly due to contractors, subcontractors, 
materialmen, engineers, architects, or other persons who have rendered services or 
furnished materials for certain work. Such statement shall give a description of such 
services and materials, shall list the several amounts so paid or due to each of such 
persons, and shall state that no part of such expenditures has been or is being made the 
basis for any other request for payment. Such statement shall state also that except for 
the amounts listed therein, there is no outstanding indebtedness known to Lessee after 
due inquiry, which is then due for labor, wages, materials, supplies, or services in 
connection with such work which, if unpaid, might become the basis of a vendor's, 
mechanic's, laborer's, materialman's, or similar lien upon such work or upon the Leased 
Premises. 

(b) Within fourteen (14) days after the receipt of such statement from Lessee, 
Lessor shall out of the fund held by Lessor pay to the person(s) named in such statement 
the respective amounts stated in such statement to be due to them, or shall pay to Lessee 
the amount stated in such certificate to have been paid by Lessee; provided, however, that 
such payments shall not exceed in amount the fair value of the relevant work as stated in 
such certificate. If the total insurance proceeds exceed the amount required to pay the 
cost of all construction when completed, Lessor shall be entitled to retain such excess. 

-26- 



16.3. All insurance money paid on account of any damage or destruction (less the actual cost, 
fees and expenses, if any, incurred by Lessor in connection with the adjustment of the loss, 
which costs, fees and expenses shall be paid to Lessor shall be applied, to the payment of the cost 
of the aforesaid restoration, repairs, replacement, rebuilding or alterations, including the cost or 
demolition and temporary repairs and for the protection of property pending the completion of 
permanent restoration, repairs, replacements, rebuilding or alterations (all of which temporary 
repairs, protection of property and permanent restoration, repairs, replacement, rebuilding or 
alterations are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "restoration"). Such insurance money 
shall be endorsed by Lessor, Lessee, and held and applied in accordance with the terms of this 
Article. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Lease, any insurance proceeds received by 
Lessor shall not be required to be paid out if at the time of the request for payment from Lessee, 
Lessee is in default in the performance of any term of this Lease as to which notice of default has 
been given and which has not been remedied within the time specified for remedying the same. 

16.4. All repair/restoration work under this Article shall comply with the provisions of Article 
15 of this Lease applicable to construction work. 

16.5. Upon completion of the restoration, and after taking into account other applicable 
requirements in respect to the application of such proceeds, any balance of the insurance money 
held by Lessor (or by Lessee) shall be paid to Lessor or the State in their order of priority in 
order to reduce the outstanding amount of indebtedness, of any loan provided to Lessee by 
Lessor and/or the State. 

16.6. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Article, no destruction of, or damage to 
the Leased Premises or any part thereof by fire or any other cause shall permit Lessee to 
surrender this Lease or shall relieve Lessee from its obligations to pay the full Terminal Area 
Rent, and additional rent payable under this Lease or from any of its other obligations under this 
Lease, and Lessee waives any rights now or hereafter conferred upon it by statute or otherwise to 
quit or surrender this Lease or the Leased Premises or any suspension, diminution, abatement or 
reduction of rent on account of any such destruction or damage other than as allowed under this 
Article. 

Notwithstanding the preceding provision of this Section 16.6 Lessee shall be entitled to 
an abatement of rent to the extent all or any portion of the Leased Premises is rendered 
untenantable as the result of such damage or destruction. 

END OF ARTICLE 16.  



ARTICLE 16(A). 

EMINENT DOMAIN  

16A.1.  In the event that there is a taking by eminent domain of the whole of the Leased 
Premises, this Lease shall terminate and the entire damages attributable to the land area shall 
accrue to Lessor, and that portion of the damages attributable to the capital improvements or 
buildings shall be divided between Lessor and Lessee as follows: 

First, to Lessee an amount equal to the unamortized balance of leasehold improvements 
made at Lessee's expense calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of said 
improvement. 

Second, to Lessor any remaining balance. 

16A.2.  In the event that there is a taking by eminent domain of a portion of the Leased Premises, 
then this Lease shall terminate as to the portion taken and the amount of the damages attributable 
to the area taken shall be apportioned between Lessor and Lessee in the same manner as set forth 
in Section 16A.1. In the event that the taking shall not be of the entire Leased Premises, but the 
part of the Leased Premises remaining shall not be reasonably sufficient and suitable for Lessee's 
use and occupancy for the purposes permitted hereunder, then Lessee may terminate this Lease 
forthwith. If Lessee so determines and terminates this Lease, the damages attributable for 
improvements made by Lessee at its expense shall be divided between Lessor and Lessee as 
follows: Lessee will receive that amount equal to the unamortized balance of any such 
improvements made by Lessee at its sole expense calculated over their useful life on a straight line 
basis, and Lessor will receive any balance. 

In the event of such partial taking and an election by Lessee not to terminate this Lease as 
herein provided, the total amount of damages shall accrue to Lessor, and the rental paid by 
Lessee shall be reduced in the proportion which the area of the portion taken bears to the area 
demised under the provisions hereof. 

16A.3.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, in the event of a temporary taking 
(i.e., 6 months or less) this Lease shall not terminate but shall resume at the expiration of the 
period within which the taking authority exercises dominion of the area subject to the temporary 
taking, provided, however, that in such event Lessee shall be under no obligation to pay rent and 
shall be allowed to share in any damages to the extent that the award reflects the fair rental value 
of the property taken and such value exceeds the established rental, including all applicable 
charges, required to be paid by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease. 

END OF ARTICLE 16(A).  



ARTICLE 17. 

DEFAULT BY LESSOR 

17.1. The occurrence of the following events shall constitute a default and breach of this Lease 
by Lessor: 

The failure by Lessor to observe or perform any covenant required to be observed or 
performed by it where such failure continues for thirty (30) working days after written 
notice thereof by Lessee to Lessor, provided that if the default is such that the same 
cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day period, Lessor shall not be deemed to be 
in default if it shall have commenced the cure and thereafter diligently prosecutes the 
same to completion. 

17.2. In the event of any such default by Lessor, Lessee may elect among any of the following 
remedies: 

1 . 	termination of this Lease; 

2. 	a rental abatement based on the degree of uninhabitability (as determined by 
agreement of the Parties) of the Leased Premises caused by Lessor's default but 
only for the period that such default remains in effect; 

3 . 	subject to available legal and factual defenses, 

a decree or order of a court of competent jurisdiction compelling specific 
performance by Lessor of its obligations under the Lease; 

a decree or order by a court of competent jurisdiction restraining or 
enjoining the breach by Lessor of any of its obligations under the Lease; 

4. 	to the extent allowed by law, the right to undertake to cure Lessor's default, in 
which event Lessor shall pay Lessee the reasonable costs incurred in such 
undertaking, provided that such cost does not exceed the value of the rental 
payments to Lessor due under this Lease for any one year period. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, this right to undertake to cure 
Lessor's default shall not extend beyond the Leased Premises and shall not be 
exercised in any way that causes disruption or interference with the overall 
operation of the Airport. 

END OF ARTICLE 17. 



ARTICLE 18. 

DEFAULT BY LESSEE 

18.1.  The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute a default and breach of this 
Lease by Lessee: 

A. The failure by Lessee to pay when due the ground rent or additional rent or to 
make any other payment required to be made by Lessee to Lessor hereunder where such failure 
continues for seven (7) working days after written notice thereof by Lessor to Lessee. 

B. The abandonment or vacation of the Leased Premises by Lessee while in breach 
or default of any provision of this Lease or that lasts for 14 days or more. 

C. The failure by Lessee to observe and perform any other provision of this Lease 
(including without limitation compliance with federal, state and local laws and regulations) to be 
observed or performed by Lessee, where such failure continues for thirty (30) working days after 
written notice thereof by Lessor to Lessee; provided that if the nature of such default is such that 
the same cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty-day period, Lessee shall not be deemed 
to be in default if Lessee shall within such period commence such cure and thereafter diligently 
prosecutes the same to completion. 

D. The making by Lessee of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors; the 
filing by or against a Lessee of a petition to have Lessee adjudged a bankrupt or of a petition for 
reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy where possession is not 
restored to Lessee within thirty (30) days; or the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure 
of substantially all of Lessee's assets located at the Leased Premises or of Lessee's interest in 
this Lease, where such seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 

18.2.  In the event of any Default by Lessee, Lessor shall have the option to terminate this 
Lease and all rights of Lessee hereunder by giving written notice of such intention to terminate in 
the manner specified herein, or Lessor may elect among any one or more of the following 
remedies without limiting any other remedies available to Lessor: 

(1) subject to available legal and factual defenses, 

a decree or order of a court of competent jurisdiction compelling specific 
performance by Lessee of its obligations under the Lease; 

a decree or order by a court of competent jurisdiction restraining or 
enjoining the breach by Lessee of any of its obligations under the Lease; 
and 

(2) to the extent allowed by law, the right to undertake to cure Lessee's default, in 
which event Lessee shall pay Lessor the reasonable costs incurred in such 
undertaking, provided that such cost does not exceed the value of the rental 
payments to Lessor due under this Lease for the year in which such default 
occurs. Except for emergency conditions, Lessor shall provide Lessee with two 

-30- 



(2) business days prior written notice of its intent to exercise the right to 
undertake to cure Lessee's default. In the event Lessee commences to cure such 
default within this two (2) day period and diligently prosecutes the same to 
completion, Lessor shall refrain from exercising the right to undertake its own 
cure of Lessee's default. 

In the event that Lessor shall elect to so terminate this Lease, then Lessor may recover 
from Lessee: 

(i) any unpaid rent up to the effective date of termination; plus 

(ii) any other amount necessary to compensate Lessor for all the detriment 
proximately caused by Lessee's failure to perform its obligations under this Lease or which in 
the ordinary course of things would be likely to result therefrom including the discounted value 
of the rental payments to Lessor under the full term of this Lease not otherwise offset by rentals 
realized from a subsequent Lease with a third party, including a Lessee provided by Lessee and 
reasonably acceptable to Lessor; plus 

(iii) such other amounts in addition to or in lieu of the foregoing as may be 
permitted from time to time by applicable New Hampshire law. 

18.3.  In the event of any such default by Lessee, Lessor shall also have the right, with or 
without terminating this Lease, to reenter the Leased Premises and remove all persons and 
property from the Leased Premises to the extent allowed under New Hampshire law. Such 
property may be removed and stored in a public warehouse or elsewhere at the cost of and for the 
account of Lessee. Under no circumstances shall Lessor be held liable in damages or otherwise 
by reason of any such reentry or eviction or by reason of the exercise by Lessor of any other 
remedy provided in this Article. All property of Lessee which is stored by Lessor may be 
redeemed by Lessee within thirty (30) days after Lessor takes possession upon payment to 
Lessor in full of all obligations then due from Lessee to Lessor and of all costs incurred by 
Lessor in providing such storage. If Lessee fails to redeem such property within this thirty (30) 
day period, Lessor may sell the property in any reasonable manner, and shall apply the proceeds 
of such sale actually collected first against the costs of storage and sale and then against any 
other obligation due from Lessee. 

18.4.  In the event of the vacation or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Lessee for seven 
(7) days or in the event that Lessor shall elect to reenter as provided in Section 18.3 or shall take 
possession of the Leased Premises pursuant to any provision of New Hampshire law or pursuant 
to any notice provided by law, then if Lessor does not elect to terminate this Lease as provided in 
Section 18.2, Lessor may from time to time, without terminating this Lease, either recover all 
rental as it becomes due or relet the Leased Premises or any part thereof for such terms and 
conditions as Lessor in its sole discretion may deem advisable, including the right to make 
alterations and repairs to the Leased Premises. In the event that Lessor shall elect to relet, then 
rentals received by Lessor from such reletting shall be applied: first, to the payment of any 
indebtedness other than rent due hereunder from Lessee to Lessor; second, to the payment of any 
cost of such reletting; third, to the payment of the cost of any alterations and repairs to the Leased 
Premises; fourth, to the payment of rent due and unpaid hereunder; and the residue, if any, shall 

-31- 



be held by Lessor and applied in payment of future rent as the same may become due and payable 
hereunder. Should the amount of rental received from such reletting during any month which is 
applied to the payment of rent be less than that required to be paid during that month by Lessee 
under this Lease, then Lessee shall pay such deficiency to Lessor immediately upon demand by 
Lessor. Such deficiency shall be calculated and paid monthly. Lessee shall also pay to Lessor, as 
soon as ascertained, any costs and expenses incurred by Lessor in such reletting or in making such 
alterations and repairs not covered by the rentals received from such reletting. 

18.5. The various rights and remedies reserved to Lessor, including those not specifically 
described under this Lease, shall be cumulative, and, except as otherwise provided by New 
Hampshire statutory law in force and effect at the time of the execution of this Lease, Lessor 
may pursue any or all of such rights and remedies, whether at the same time or otherwise. 

18.6. No delay or omission of Lessor to exercise any right or remedy shall be construed as a 
waiver of any such right or remedy or of any default by Lessee. 

18.7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease in the event the breach by Lessee in 
the reasonable opinion of Lessor affects or is likely to affect the efficient operation of the Airport 
or give rise to public safety concerns, in addition to any other remedy it may have under this 
Lease, Lessor shall also be entitled (but shall not be obligated) to take whatever actions is 
deemed necessary by Lessor to abate or cure such situation and Lessee shall reimburse Lessor 
for all costs incurred by Lessor in taking such action. 

END OF ARTICLE 18.  



ARTICLE 19. 

PROHIBITION AGAINST TRANSFERS - BANKRUPTCY 

19.1.  Lessee shall not have the right to delegate any of its responsibilities or obligations, to 
assign any of its rights, or to mortgage or otherwise transfer any of its rights or interests under 
this Lease or to mortgage any portion of the Leased Premises. 

19.2.  If a petition is filed by or against Lessee for relief under Title 11 of the United States 
Code, as amended (the "Bankruptcy Code"), and Lessee (including for purposes of this Section 
Lessee's successor in bankruptcy, whether a trustee or Lessee as debtor-in-possession) assumes 
and proposes to assign, or proposes to assume and assign, this Lease pursuant to the provisions 
of the Bankruptcy Code to any person or entity who has made a bona fide offer to accept an 
assigmnent of this Lease, then notice of the proposed assignment setting forth (a) the name and 
address of the proposed assignee, (b) all of the terms and conditions of the offer and proposed 
assignment, and (c) the adequate assurance to be furnished by the proposed assignee of its future 
performance under the Lease, shall be given to Lessor by Lessee no later than twenty (20) days 
(or such other period of time as the court may allow) after Lessee has made or received such 
offer, but in no event later than thirty (30) days (or such other period of time as the court may 
allow) prior to the date on which Lessee applies to a court of competent jurisdiction for authority 
and approval to enter into the proposed assignment. If this Lease is assigned pursuant to the 
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, Lessor may request from the assignee a guarantee similar to 
that requested of Lessee under Article 27. Any person or entity to which this Lease is assigned 
pursuant to the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code shall be deemed, without further act or 
documentation, to have assumed all of Lessee's obligations arising under this Lease on and after 
the date of such assignment. Any such assignee shall, upon demand, execute and deliver to 
Lessor an instrument confirming such assumption. No provision of this Lease shall be deemed a 
waiver of Lessor's rights or remedies under the Bankruptcy Code to oppose any assumption 
and/or assignment of this Lease, to require a timely performance of Lessee's obligations under 
this Lease, or to regain possession of the Premises if this Lease has neither been assumed nor 
rejected within sixty (60) days after the date of the order for relief or within such additional time 
as a court of competent jurisdiction may have fixed. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to 
the contrary, all amounts payable by Lessee to or on behalf of Lessor under this Lease, whether 
or not expressly denominated as rent, shall constitute rent for the purposes of Section 502(b)(6) 
of the Bankruptcy Code. 

END OF ARTICLE 19.  



ARTICLE 20. 

[RESERVED] 

END OF ARTICLE 20.  



ARTICLE 21. 

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

21.1. Lessor, on or before twenty (20) days following receipt of a written request from Lessee, 
and Lessee, on or before twenty (20) days following receipt of a written request from Lessor, 
shall deliver to the party making such request a statement in writing certifying that this Lease is 
unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there shall have been modifications that the same is 
in full force and effect as modified and stating the modifications) and the date to which the rent 
and any other deposits or charges have been paid and stating whether or not, to the best 
knowledge of the party executing such certificate (based on reasonable investigation), the party 
requesting such statement is in default in the performance of any covenant, agreement or 
condition contained in this Lease and, if so, specifying each such default of which the executing 
party may have knowledge. 

21.2. Lessee, on or before twenty (20) days following receipt of a written request from Lessor, 
shall deliver to Lessor its annual audited financial statements of Lessee and any parent, 
subsidiary, or affiliated entities as requested by Lessor 

END OF ARTICLE 21.  



ARTICLE 22. 

INVALIDITY OF PARTICULAR PROVISIONS  

If any term or provision of this Lease, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the 
application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it 
is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of 
this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

END OF ARTICLE 22. 



ARTICLE 23. 

NOTICES 

Whenever Lessor or Lessee shall desire to give or serve upon the other any notice, 
demand, request or other communication with respect to this Lease or with respect to the Leased 
Premises each such notice, demand, request or other communication shall be in writing and shall 
not be effective for any purpose unless same shall be given or served by personal delivery to the 
party or parties to whom such notice, demand, request or other communication is directed or by 
mailing the same, in duplicate, to such party or parties by certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

If to Lessor: 
	

Pease Development Authority 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Attention: Executive Director 

If to Lessee: 
Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC 
549 Route 1 Bypass 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Attention: 

or at such other address or addresses as Lessor or Lessee may from time to time designate by 
notice given by certified mail. 

Every notice, demand, request or communication hereunder sent by mail shall be deemed 
to have been given or served as of the second business day following the date of such mailing. 

END OF ARTICLE 23.  



ARTICLE 24. 

QUIET ENJOYMENT 

Lessor covenants and agrees that Lessee, upon paying the rent and all other charges 
herein provided for and observing and keeping all covenants, agreements, and conditions of this 
Lease on its part to be observed and kept, shall quietly have and enjoy the Leased Premises 
during the term of this Lease without hindrance or molestation by anyone claiming by or through 
Lessor, subject, however, to the exceptions, reservations and conditions of this Lease including, 
but not limited to the provisions of Article 25, Environmental Protection. 

END OF ARTICLE 24. 



ARTICLE 25. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

25.1. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall comply with all federal, state, and 
local laws, regulations, and standards that are or may become applicable to Lessee's or 
sublessee's or assignee's activities at the Leased Premises, including but not limited to, the 
applicable environmental laws and regulations identified in Exhibit "D", as amended from time 
to time. 

25.2. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall be solely responsible for obtaining 
at their cost and expense any environmental permits required for their operations under this 
Lease or any Lease or assignment, independent of any existing Airport permits. 

25.3. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor and the Air Force against and 
from all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses 
(including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or 
restriction on the use of the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, 
consultants' fees and experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, 
releases, storage, or disposal of any Hazardous Substances, or any other action by the Lessee, or 
any sublessee or assignee of the Lessee, giving rise to Lessor or Air Force liability, civil or 
criminal, or responsibility under federal, state or local environmental laws. 

This indemnification of Lessor and Air Force by Lessee includes, without limitation, any 
and all claims, judgment, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses 
incurred by Lessor or Air Force in connection with any investigation of site conditions, or any 
remedial or removal action or other site restoration work required by any federal, state or local 
governmental unit or other person for or pertaining to any discharges, emissions, spills, releases, 
storage or disposal of Hazardous Substances arising or resulting from any act or omission of the 
Lessee or any sublessee or assignee of the Lessee at the Leased Premises after the Occupancy 
Date. "Occupancy Date" as used herein shall mean the earlier of the first day of Lessee's 
occupancy or use of the Leased Premises or the date of execution of this Lease. "Occupancy" or 
"Use" shall mean any activity or presence including preparation and construction in or upon the 
Leased Premises. 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Lease, and 
the Lessee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the Lessor or the Air Force incurs costs 
or liabilities for the Lessee's actions of the types described in this Article. 

25.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee and its sublessees and 
assignees do not assume any liability or responsibility for environmental impacts and damage 
caused by the use by the Air Force of Hazardous Substances on any portion of the Airport, 
including the Leased Premises. The Lessee and its sublessees and assignees have no obligation 
to undertake the defense, remediation and cleanup, including the liability and responsibility for 
the costs of damages, penalties, legal and investigative services solely arising out of any claim or 
action in existence now, or which may be brought in the future by any person, including 
governmental units against the Air Force, because of any use of, or release from, any portion of 

-39- 



the Airport (including the Leased Premises) of any Hazardous Substances prior to the Occupancy 
Date. Furthermore, the parties recognize and acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force to 
indemnify the Lessor and Lessee to the extent required by the provisions of Public Law No. 101-
511, Section 8056. 

In addition, Lessor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessee against and from 
any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and 
losses (including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or 
restriction on the use of the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, 
consultants' fees and experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, 
releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous Substances, or any other action by Lessor giving rise 
to Lessee liability or responsibility under federal, state or local environmental laws. This 
provision shall survive the expiration or termination of the Lease, and the Lessor's obligations 
hereunder shall apply whenever the Lessee incurs costs or liabilities for the Lessor's actions of 
the types described in this Article. 

25.5.  As used in this Lease, the term "Hazardous Substances" means any hazardous or toxic 
substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, which is or becomes regulated by any 
local governmental authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government. The 
term "Hazardous Substances" includes, without limitation, any material or substance which is (i) 
defined as a "hazardous waste," under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a 
"hazardous substance" under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other 
petroleum product, (iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous substance pursuant to 
Parts Env-Wm 110, 211-216, 351-353, 400-100 ("Hazardous Waste Rules") of the New 
Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, (vi) designated as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to 
Section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1317, (vii) defined as a 
"hazardous waste" pursuant to Section 1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903), or (viii) defined as a "hazardous substance" 
pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601) and (ix) so defined in the regulations 
adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, or as such laws or 
regulations may be further amended, modified or supplemented (collectively "Hazardous 
Substance Laws"). 

As used in this Lease, the terms "release" and "storage" shall have the meanings provided 
in RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided in RSA 
147-A:2. 

25.6. Lessor's rights under this Lease specifically include the right for Lessor to inspect the 
Leased Premises and any buildings or other facilities thereon for compliance with environmental, 
safety, and occupational health laws and regulations, whether or not the Lessor is responsible for 
enforcing them. Such inspections are without prejudice to the right of duly constituted 
enforcement officials to make such inspections. 

25.7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessor is not responsible for any 
removal or containment of asbestos. If Lessee and any sublessee or assignee intend to make any 
improvements or repairs that require the removal of asbestos, an appropriate asbestos disposal 

-40- 



plan must be incorporated in the plans and specifications. The asbestos disposal plan shall 
identify the proposed disposal site for the asbestos. In addition, non-friable asbestos which 
becomes friable through or as a consequence of the activities of Lessee will be abated by Lessee 
at its sole cost and expense. 

25.8.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that the Airport has been identified as a National Priority 
List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability 
Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has provided it with a 
copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement ("FFA") entered into by EPA, and the Air Force 
on April 24, 1991, and Modification No. I thereto, effective March 18, 1993, agrees that it will 
comply with the terms of the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the Leased 
Premises and that should any conflict arise between the terms of the FFA and the provisions of 
this Lease, the terms of the FFA will take precedence. The Lessee further agrees that the Lessor 
assumes no liability to the Lessee or any Lessee or assignee of Lessee should implementation of 
the FFA interfere with their use of the Leased Premises. The Lessee and its sublessee(s) and 
assignee(s) shall have no claim on account of any such interference against the Lessor or any 
officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof, other than for abatement of rent. 

25.9.  The Air Force, EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees, contractors, and 
subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to the Lessee and any sublessee or 
assignee, to enter upon the Leased Premises for the purposes enumerated in this subparagraph 
and for such other purposes consistent with the FFA: 

(1) to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary, drilling, 
testpitting, borings and other activities related to the Pease Installation Restoration Program 
("IRP") or the FFA; 

(2) to inspect field activities of the Air Force and its contractors and subcontractors in 
implementing the IRP or the FFA; 

(3) to conduct any test or survey required by the EPA or NHDES relating to the 
implementation of the FFA or environmental conditions at the Leased Premises or to verify any 
data submitted to the EPA or NHDES by the Air Force relating to such conditions; 

(4) to construct, operate, maintain or undertake any other response or remedial action 
as required or necessary under the IRP or the FFA, including, but not limited to monitoring wells, 
pumping wells and treatment facilities. 

25.10.  Lessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of any health 
or safety plan in effect under the IRP or the FFA during the course of any of the above described 
response or remedial actions. Any inspection, survey, investigation, or other response or 
remedial action will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with representatives designated by 
the Lessee and any sublessee or assignee. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee shall have no 
claim on account of such entries against the State as defined in FFA or any officer, agent, 
employee, contractor, or subcontractor thereof. 



25.11.  Lessee further agrees that in the event of any authorized Lease or assignment of the 
Leased Premises, it shall provide to the Air Force, EPA and NHDES by certified mail a copy of 
the agreement of Lease or assignment of the Leased Premises within fourteen (14) days after the 
effective date of such transaction. Lessee may delete the financial terms and any other 
proprietary information from any Lease or assignment submitted to the above mentioned entities. 

25.12.  The Airport air emissions offsets and Air Force accumulation points for hazardous and 
other wastes will not be made available to Lessee. Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining 
from some other source(s) any air pollution credits that may be required to offset emissions 
resulting from its activities under the Lease. 

25.13.  Any permit required under Hazardous Substance Laws for the management of Hazardous 
Substances stored or generated by Lessee or any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall be obtained 
by Lessee or its sublessees or assignee and shall be limited to generation and transportation. Any 
violation of this requirement shall be deemed a material breach of this Lease. Lessee shall provide 
at its own expense such hazardous waste storage facilities, complying with all laws and 
regulations, as it needs for management of its hazardous waste. 

25.14.  Lessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee whose operations utilize Hazardous 
Substances, shall have a completed and approved plan for responding to Hazardous Substances 
spills prior to commencement of operations on the Leased Premises. Such plan shall be 
independent of, but not inconsistent with, any plan or other standard of Lessor applicable to the 
Airport and except for initial fire response and/or spill containment, shall not rely on use of the 
Airport or Lessor personnel or equipment. Should the Lessor provide any personnel or 
equipment, whether for initial fire response and/or spill containment or otherwise, on request of 
the Lessee, or because the Lessee was not, in the opinion of Lessor, conducting timely cleanup 
actions, the Lessee agrees to reimburse the Lessor for its costs. 

25.15.  Lessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee, must maintain and make available to 
Lessor, the Air Force, EPA and NHDES all records, inspection logs, and manifests that track the 
generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as all other 
records required by applicable laws and requirements. The Lessor and the Air Force reserve the 
right to inspect the Leased Premises and Lessee's, its sublessee's or assignee's records for 
compliance with Federal, State, local laws, regulations, and other requirements relating to the 
generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as the discharge 
or release of hazardous substances. Violations may be reported by Lessor and the Air Force to 
appropriate regulatory agencies, as required by applicable law. The Lessee, its sublessees or 
assignees shall be liable for the payment of any fines and penalties which may accrue as a result 
of the actions of Lessee, its sublessees or assignees, respectively. 

25.16.  Lessee, its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of any Wetlands 
Management Plan in effect at Pease. Lessee, its sublessees and assignees will minimize the 
destruction, loss or degradation of wetlands on the Leased Premises. Lessee, its sublessees and 
assignees will obtain prior written approval from Lessor and the Air Force before conducting any 
new construction in wetland areas. Lessee, its sublessees and assignees will obtain all necessary 
permits or waivers under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and the New Hampshire Fill and 
Dredge in Wetlands Act. 

-42- 



25.17. Prior to the development of any portion of the Leased Premises on which a wetland has 
been identified in the Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement dated August 1995 
("SEIS"), the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees, as applicable, shall, if one has not previously 
been completed, perform a wetland delineation. 

25.18. Prior to the storage, mixing, or application of any pesticide, as that term is defined under 
the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees 
shall prepare a plan for storage, mixing and application of pesticides ("Pesticide Management 
Plan"). The Pesticide Management Plan shall be sufficient to meet all applicable Federal, State 
and local pesticide requirements. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees shall store, mix and 
apply all pesticides within the Leased Premises only in strict compliance with the Pesticide 
Management Plan. The pesticides will only be applied by a licensed applicator. 

25.19. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees must notify the Lessor and the Site Manager of its 
intent to possess, store, or use any licensed or licensable source or byproduct materials, as those 
terms are defined under the Atomic Energy Act and its implementing regulations; of Lessee's, its 
sublessees and assignees intent to possess, use, or store radium; and of Lessee's, its sublessees and 
assignees intent to possess or use any equipment producing ionizing radiation and subject to 
specific licensing requirements or other individual regulations; at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
entry of such materials or equipment upon the Airport. Upon notification, the Lessor and the Site 
Manager may impose such requirements, including prohibition of possession, use, or storage, as 
deemed necessary to adequately protect health and human environment. Thereafter, the Lessee 
must notify the Lessor and the Site Manager of the presence of all licensed or licensable source or 
other byproduct materials, of the presence of all radium, and of the presence of all equipment 
producing ionizing radiation and subject to specific licensing requirements or other individual 
regulation; provided, however, that the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees need not make either 
of the above notifications to the Lessor and the Site Manager with respect to source and byproduct 
material which is exempt from regulation under the Atomic Energy Act. The Lessee shall not, 
under any circumstances, use, own, possess or allow the presence of special nuclear material on 
the Leased Premises..  

25.20. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees acknowledge that lead-based paint may be present 
in and on facilities within the Leased Premises. Prior to beginning any Alterations, other 
construction or construction related work, (to include paint stripping or sanding, excavating, 
demolition, or restoration), the Lessee, any sublessee or assignee must test any paint which would 
be disturbed unless a conclusive determination has been made that lead-based paint is not present. 
If paint is lead-based, the Lessee, any sublessee or assignee is required to handle it in accordance 
with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. Section 4852(d) 
and all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations at its own expense. The Lessee is 
required to ensure that any lead-based paint is maintained in good condition. 

END OF ARTICLE 25.  



ARTICLE 26. 

MISCELLANEOUS  

26.1. All rent or fees and all other sums which may from time to time become due and payable 
by Lessee to Lessor under any of the provisions of this Lease shall be made payable to the 
"Pease Development Authority" and forwarded by the Lessee direct to Lessor's Executive 
Director at the address specified in Article 23. All such rent and other sums if not paid on the 
due date shall bear interest from and after the due date thereof at the higher of the then current 
rate applied to legal judgments by the courts of the State of New Hampshire or the rate of 
eighteen percent (18%) per annum; provided, however, that such interest shall in no event exceed 
the maximum rate permitted by law. 

26.2. In all cases the language in all parts of this Lease shall be construed simply, according to 
its fair meaning and not strictly for or against Lessor or Lessee. 

26.3. The word titles underlying the Article designations contained herein are inserted solely for 
convenience and under no circumstances are they or any of them to be treated or construed as any 
part of this instrument. 

26.4. In any action or proceeding which either Party may take to enforce such Party's rights 
hereunder, whether prior to or after breach or termination, or to which such Party may be made a 
party because of any matters arising or growing out of this Lease, and due to the act or default of 
the other, the Party whose act or default caused the other Party, without fault to become involved 
in such litigation, or who shall be defeated in such litigation, agrees to pay all costs incurred by 
the winning or other party therein, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

26.5. If Lessee should remain in possession of the Leased Premises after the expiration of the 
term of this Lease and without executing a new lease, then such holding over shall be construed 
as a tenancy from month to month, subject to all the conditions, provisions and obligations of 
this Lease insofar as the same are applicable to a month to month tenancy. 

26.6. The individual executing this Lease on behalf of Lessee represents and warrants that he 
or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of said entity, and that this 
Lease is binding upon said entity in accordance with its terms. A Certificate of Corporate Good 
Standing issued by the New Hampshire Secretary of State is attached to this Lease as Exhibit E. 

26.7. This Lease covers in full each and every agreement of every kind or nature whatsoever 
between the Parties hereto concerning the Leased Premises and all preliminary negotiations and 
agreements of every kind or nature whatsoever with respect to the Leased Premises; and no other 
person, firm or corporation has at any time had any authority from Lessor to make any 
representations or promises on behalf of Lessor, and Lessee expressly agrees that if any such 
representations or promises have been made by Lessor or others, Lessee hereby waives all right 
to rely thereon. No verbal agreement or implied covenant shall be held to vary the provisions 
hereof, any statute, law, or custom to the contrary notwithstanding. No provision of this Lease 
may be amended or added to except by an agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto or 
their respective successors in interest. Lessee acknowledges that it has read this Section and 
understands it to be a waiver of any right to rely on any representations or agreements not 
expressly set forth in this Lease. 



26.8. Subject to the provisions hereof, this Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 
benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and wherever a 
reference in this Lease is made to either of the Parties hereto such reference shall be deemed to 
include, wherever applicable, also a reference to the successors and assigns of such party, as if in 
every case so expressed. 

26.9. Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or construed by the Parties hereto or by 
any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint 
venture or of any association between Lessor and Lessee, and neither the method of computation 
of rent nor any other provision contained in this Lease nor any acts of the Parties hereto shall be 
deemed to create any relationship between Lessor and Lessee other than the relationship of 
landlord and tenant. 

26.10. Lessee hereby acknowledges that late payment by Lessee to Lessor of rent and other 
sums due under this Lease will cause Lessor to incur additional costs not contemplated by this 
Lease, the exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Such additional costs 
include, without limitation, processing and accounting charges, and late charges which may be 
imposed upon Lessor by the terms of the mortgage or deed of trust covering the Premises. 
Therefore, if any installment of rent, fee or any other sum due from Lessee shall not be received 
on the date that such amount shall be due, Lessee agrees to pay, and shall pay, to Lessor a late 
charge equal to ten percent (10%) of the overdue amount. The Parties hereby agree that such late 
charge represents a fair and reasonable estimate of the costs Lessor will incur by reason of late 
payment by Lessee. Acceptance of such late charge by Lessor shall in no event constitute a 
waiver of Lessee's default with respect to such overdue amount or prevent Lessor from 
exercising any or all of the other rights and remedies granted under this Lease. 

26.11. Each party hereto warrants to the other that it has no dealings with any real estate broker 
or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Lease. 

26.12. This Lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
New Hampshire. 

26.13. Any actions or proceedings with respect to any matters arising under or growing out of 
this Lease shall be instituted and prosecuted only in courts located in the State of New 
Hampshire. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, no provision of this Lease shall 
be deemed to constitute or effect a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State of New 
Hampshire and no provision of this Lease, other than the provisions of Article 25 in which 
Lessor agrees to indemnify Lessee, shall be deemed to constitute or effect a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of Lessor as a body politic and corporate of the State of New Hampshire. 
The sovereign immunity of the State of New Hampshire is reserved to the State of New 
Hampshire to the fullest extent allowed under law and the sovereign immunity of Lessor is 
reserved to Lessor to the fullest extent allowed under law with the sole exception of Lessor's 
indemnification obligations to Lessee under Article 25, provided, however, that Lessor agrees to 
waive immunity for contractual claims under this Lease to the extent permitted by New 
Hampshire RSA Ch. 491:8, as the same may be amended. 



26.14. This instrument may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

26.15. Lessee shall faithfully observe and comply with such rules and regulations as Lessor may 
adopt for the operation of the Airport, which rules and regulations are reasonable and 
nondiscriminatory as well as all modifications thereof and additions thereto. Lessor shall not be 
responsible to Lessee for the violation or nonperformance by any other tenant of Lessor of any of 
such Rules and Regulations. 

26.16. Lessee agrees to conform to such additional provisions required, from time to time, by 
the FAA ("FAA Requirements") or its successor with respect to the operation of the Airport, or a 
portion thereof. The current FAA Requirements are attached hereto as Exhibit "F" and 
incorporated herein by reference. 

26.17. This Lease is subject and subordinate to any agreements heretofore or hereafter made 
between Lessor and the United States or the Air Force, the execution of which is required to 
enable or permit transfer of rights or property to Lessor for airport purposes or expenditure of 
federal grant funds for airport improvement, maintenance or development, including, without 
limitation, the Application and Acceptance, Master Lease and FFA. Lessee shall abide by 
requirements of any agreement between. Lessor and the United States or the Air Force applicable 
to the Leased Premises or Lessee's activities at the Airport and shall consent to amendments and 
modifications of this Lease if required by such agreements or as a condition of Lessor's entry 
into such agreements. 

26.18. Lessor, in its sole discretion, shall determine and may from time to time change the 
routes of surface ingress and egress connecting the Leased Premises. Lessor also reserves the 
right to further develop the Airport, or such portion of the Airport as is owned or controlled by 
Lessor, as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or views of Lessee and without interference or 
hindrance. 

26.19. The Lessee herein covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and 
assigns, and all persons claiming under or through it, that this Lease is made and accepted upon 
and subject to the following conditions: 

That there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of 
persons, on account of race, color, creed, national origin, or ancestry, in the leasing, subleasing, 
transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the Premises herein leased nor shall the 
Lessee, or any person claiming under or through it, establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use, 
or occupancy, of tenants, lessees, Lessees, subtenants, or vendees in the Leased Premises herein 
leased. 

26.20. All obligations of Lessee to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor and to make any 
monetary payment to Lessor, shall survive the termination or expiration of this Lease. 

END OF ARTICLE 26.  



EXECUTION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Lease effective as of 
the 	day of 	 , 2019 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By: 	  
David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

DEAL RENT-A-CAR, LLC 

By: 	  
Print Name: 	  
Print Title: 



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 

On this 	day of 	 , 2019, before me, 	 , a Notary 
Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared David R. Mullen, personally known 
to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Executive Director of the 
Pease Development Authority and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this 
instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set 
forth herein. 

Notary Public 
Printed Name: 	  
My commission expires: 	  

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 

On this 	day of 	 , 2019, before me, 	 , a Notary 
Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared 	  
personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the 
	 of Deal Rent-A-Car, LLC, and on oath stated that he was authorized to 
execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and 
purposes set forth herein. 

Notary Public 
Printed Name: 	  
My commission expires: 	  



EXHIBIT A 

FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
(See Exhibit F to Quitclaim Deed dated October 15, 2003) 



0E14149 am IOW 	 oat!: 0/13 	 WALE SKV.I .  Exhibit B - Service Area for Key Rent-A-Car in PSM Terminal 

53 INILIMATIONAL 01NT. PORTS*0.1. MH 03101 141*--  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

EXHIBIT "B" 

PLANS DESIGNATING THE LEASED PREMISES 



DESIGNED 3?: MRM 	DATE: 615115 	SCALE 1 =120•:- 

55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE. PORTSMOUTH, NN 03501 

Exhibit B-1 - Location of Key Rent-A-Car Dedicated Parking & Key Drop 

► 	PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1611111111111111r /WA r►  

EXHIBIT "B-1" 

PARKING AREAS 

-51- 





EXHIBIT "C" 

EXAMPLE OF A 10% CONCESSION RECOVERY FEE (CRF) 

(Concession Fee included in Gross Revenues) 

The Concession Recovery Fee is outlined below: 

The Lessee owes the Lessor 10% of its revenue. However, Lessee collects that amount from its 
customers by way of the Concession Recovery Fee of 11.11%. Lessee uses 11.11% because 
once it pays the Lessor 10% of that collected amount, Lessee is left with only the original 
amount charged the customer. The Lessor receives the additional 1.11%, which is the 10% of 
the Concession Recovery Fee. This is the standard Concession Recovery Fee handled in this 
market at other major airports. 

Example of a 10% Concession Recover Fee (CRF), with the Concession Fee being included 
in Gross Revenues: 

On a $100 rental the Lessee owes the Lessor 10%, which is $10 for the concession fee. Lessee 
collects that $10 from the customer. Since Lessor would like that $10 included in Gross 
Revenue, Lessee owes the Lessor 10% of that (or $1), so Lessee collects and additional $1 from 
the customer. Lessee repeats this again until Lessee eventually gets to the 11.11% that Lessee 
collects from the customer (based on a 10% Concession Fee and the CRF included the definition 
of Gross Revenues). So, on a $100 rental, Lessee collects an additional $11.10 from the 
customer for a total of $111.10. When Lessee makes payment to Lessor 10% of that amount 
($11.11) Lessee is left with the original $100 rental fee. 



EXHIBIT "D" 

LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Air Quality: 	(a) 	Clean Air Act & Amendments, 42 U.S.C. 7401-7642 
(b) 40 CFR Parts 50-52, 61, 62, 65-67, 81 
(c) RSA ch. 125-C, Air Pollution Control, and rules adopted thereunder 
(d) RSA ch. 125-H, Air Toxic Control Act, and rules adopted thereunder 

	

Hazardous Materials: (a) 	Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 1801-1813, and 
Department of Transportation Regulations thereunder 

(b) Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 
11001-11050 

(c) 49 CFR Parts 100-179 
(d) 40 CFR Part 302 
(e) RSA ch. 277-A, Toxic Substances in the Workplace, and rules adopted 

thereunder 

Hazardous Waste: 	(a) 	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and RCRA 
Amendments of 1984, 42 U.S.C. 6901-6991i 

(b) Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability 
Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 9601-9675 

(c) 40 CFR Parts 260-271, 300, 302 
(d) RSA ch. 147-A, Hazardous Waste Management and rules adopted 

thereunder 

Water Quality: 	(a) 	Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean Water Act) and 
Amendments, 33 U.S.C. 1251-1387 

(b) Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 300f-300j-26 
(c) 40 CFR Title 100-143, 401 and 403 
(d) RSA ch. 146-A, Oil Spillage in Public Waters, and rules adopted 

thereunder 
(e) RSA ch. 485, New Hampshire Safe Drinking Water Act, and rules 

adopted thereunder 
(f) RSA ch. 485-A, Pollution and Waste Disposal, and rules adopted 

thereunder 



EXHIBIT "E" 

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING 



EXHIBIT "F" 

SUMMARY OF LEASE PROVISIONS REQUIRED 
BY THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

1. Lessee, for himself, his heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, 
as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby agree that in the event facilities are constructed, 
maintained, or otherwise operated on the Leased Premises, for a purpose for which a United States 
Department of Transportation ("DOT") program or activity is extended or for another purpose 
involving the provision of similar services or benefits, Lessee shall maintain and operate such 
facilities and services in compliance with all other requirements imposed pursuant to Title 49, 
Code of Federal Regulations, DOT, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination 
in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation Effectuation of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended. (Ref Deed Paragraph 
VII.B.16) 

2. Lessee, for himself, his personal representative, successors in interest, and assigns, as a 
part of the consideration hereof, does hereby agree that: (i) no person on the grounds of race, color, 
or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities; (ii) that in the construction of any 
improvements on, over, or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on 
the grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the 
benefits of, or otherwise be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subject to discrimination; and (iii) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with all 
other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department 
of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, and as said Regulation may be amended. (Ref Deed Paragraphs VII.B.16 and VII. G) 

3. That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Lessor shall 
have the right to terminate the Lease, and to reenter and repossess said land and the facilities 
thereon, and hold the same as if said Lease, had never been made or issued. This provision does 
not become effective until the procedures of 49 CFR Part 21 are allowed and completed including 
expiration of appeal rights. 

4. Lessee shall furnish its accommodations and/or services on a fair, equal and not unjustly 
discriminatory basis to all users thereof and it shall charge fair, reasonable and not unjustly 
discriminatory prices for each unit or service; PROVIDED THAT the Lessee may be allowed to 
make reasonable and nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other similar type of price reductions 
to volume purchasers. 

5. Non-compliance with Provision 4 above shall constitute a material breach thereof and in 
the event of such noncompliance Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Lease, and the 
estate hereby created without liability therefore or at the election of the Lessor or the United 
States either or both of Lessor or the United States shall have the right to judicially enforce 
provisions. 



6. Lessee agrees that it shall insert the above five provisions in any Lease agreement, by which 
said Lessee grants a right or privilege to any person, firm or corporation to render accommodations 
and/or services to the public on the Leased Premises. 

7. Lessee assures that it will undertake an affirmative action program as required by 14 CFR 
Part 152, Subpart E, to insure that no person shall on the grounds of race, creed, color, national 
origin, or sex be excluded from participating in any employment activities covered in 14 CFR Part 
152, Subpart E. Lessee assures that no person shall be excluded on these grounds from 
participating in or receiving the services or benefits of any program or activity covered by this 
subpart. Lessee assures that it will require that its covered suborganizations provide assurance to 
the Lessor, that they similarly will undertake affirmative action programs and that they will require 
assurances from their suborganizations, as required by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same 
effect. 

8. Lessor reserves the right to further develop or improve the landing area of the airport as it 
sees fit, regardless of the desires or view of the Lessee and without interference or hindrance. 

9. Lessor reserves the right, but shall not be obligated to the Lessee to maintain and keep in 
repair the landing area of the airport and all publicly-owned facilities of the airport, together with 
the right to direct and control all activities of the Lessee in this regard. 

10. This Lease shall be subordinate to the provisions and requirements of any existing or future 
agreement between the Lessor and the United States, relative to the development, operation or 
maintenance of the airport including, but not limited to, Federal Airport Improvement Project 
Grant Assurances as the same are deemed applicable to this Lease Agreement. 

11. There is hereby reserved to Lessor, its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit of 
the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the Leased 
Premises. This public right Of flight shall include the right to cause in said airspace any noise 
inherent in the operation of any aircraft used for navigation or flight through the said airspace or 
landing at, taking off from or operation on the airport. 

12. Lessee agrees to comply with the notification and review requirements covered in Part 77 
of the Federal Aviation Regulations (14 C.F.R. Part 77) in the event future construction of building 
is planned for the Leased Premises, or in the event of any planned modification or alteration of 
any present or future building or structure situated on Leased Premises. 

13. Lessee, by accepting this Lease expressly agrees for itself, its successors and assigns that 
it shall not erect nor permit the erection or alteration of any structure or object nor permit the 
growth of any tree on the land Leased hereunder above the mean sea level elevation of [INSERT] 
feet. In the event the aforesaid covenants are breached, Lessor reserves the right to enter upon the 
Premises and to remove the offending structure or object and cut the offending tree, all of which 
shall be at the expense of the Lessee. (Ref Deed Paragraph VII.B.4) 

14. Lessee, by accepting this Lease, agrees for itself, its successors and assigns that it will not 
make use of the Leased Premises in any manner which might interfere with the landing and taking 
off of aircraft from the airport or otherwise constitute a hazard. In the event the aforesaid covenant 

-57- 



is breached, Lessor reserves the right to enter upon the Leased Premises, and cause the abatement 
of such interference at the expense of the Lessee. 

15. It is understood and agreed that nothing herein contained shall be construed to grant or 
authorize the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958 
(49 U.S.C. 40103(E), by an person or persons to the exclusion of others in the same class. (Ref 
Deed, Paragraphs VII.B.2 and VII.B.3) 

16. This Lease and all the provisions hereof shall be subject to whatever right the United States 
Government now has or in the future may have or acquire, affecting the control, operation, 
regulation and taking over of said airport or the exclusive or non-exclusive use of the airport by 
the United States during the time of war or national emergency. (Ref Deed, Paragraph VII.B.7) 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

RE: 	Contract Reports 

DATE: 	June 10, 2019 
*** *************** *************** *************** *************** *************** 

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following: 

1. 	Project Name: 	Dell 
PDA Obligation: 	$6,004.36 
Board Authority: 	Peter Loughlin 
Summary: 	Purchase of Computer Replacement Equipment from Dell 

N:\RESOLVES\2019\contract  rpt re-replacement computers.docx 



Raeline O'Neil 

From: 	 Peter Loughlin <peter.loughlin@pjllaw.com > 
Sent: 	 Wednesday, May 22, 2019 11:30 AM 
To: 	 Raeline O'Neil 
Subject: 	 Re: Consent 

Sounds good to me. I just started using two large-side by side-monitors and find it very helpful. 

On Wed, May 22, 2019 at 11:17 AM Raeline O'Neil <R.O'Neilapeasedev.ora> wrote: 

Peter, 

I have been asked to reach out to you for your consent to purchase replacement computer(s) with the attached 
PO. This information will be placed on the upcoming Board agenda. 

Please advise 

Raeline A. O'Neil, Legal Executive Assistant 

Pease Development Authority 

55 International Drive 

Portsmouth, NH 03801 

(603) 766-9291 

Peter J. Loughlin, Esquire 
Leonard Cotton House - Strawbery Banke 
144 Washington Street, PO Box 1111 
Portsmouth, NH 03802-1111 
Phone: (603)431-6466; Fax: (603)436-4079 
Email: Deter.louthlinanillaw.com  

The information contained in this electronic communication may be confidential and is intended only for receipt and use by the 
named recipient. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender by REPLY communication and 
immediately delete the message and remove it from your computer. Thank you. 



P.O. Number: PDA2019-03  

If no P.O. number is specified, the date on 
the P.O. will we used as the P.O. number. 

Customer Agreement Number: -8001863 
P.O. Date: 05/22/2019 
	

Payment Terms 
*Net 30 

Bill to: 
Pease Development Authority 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

 

Ship To: 
Pease Development Authority 
55 International Drive 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Phone #: 603-433-6088 or 603-766-9290 
Fax #: 603-433-6317 

 

Phone #: 603-433-6088 or 603-766-9290 
Fax #: 	603-433-6317 

• Customer agrees to purchase the products(s) itemized on the quotation number(s) indicated below at the price(s) indicated, plus applicable taxes 
and shipping & handling charges, subject to the applicable Dell terms and conditions of sale located at 
http://www.dell.coin/us/en/aen/misc/nolicv  009 nolicv.htm. 

• *Net 30 Payment Terms are applicable to this purchase order and are subject to Credit Approval. Additional financial information in the form 
of financial statements from previous years may be required. 

• Please attach tax exempt letter/certificate if applicable. 
• This Purchase Order may only be used for purchases within the Continental United States. 

QTY 
QUOTE # 

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

4 3000038615987.1 OptiPlex 7050 SFF 992.03 3,968.12 

5 Dell 22" Monitor 145.35 581.40 

1 3000038657516.1 Dell Latitude 5400 1,454.84 1,454.84 

**ALL pages of the referenced quotation(s) MUST accompany this Purchase Order 	 SUBTOTAL 

SALES TAX (IF APPLICABLE) 

SHIPPING & HANDLING 

TOTAL 

6,004.36 

$6,004.36 

Signature (Authorized Buyer): 

 

	Date: 	Pg-11 

 

Print Name (Authorized Buyer): David R. Mullen 	 Executive Director 
Name 
	

Title 



A quote for your consideration! 
Based on your business needs, we put the following quote together to help with your 

purchase decision. Below is a detailed summary of the quote we've created to help you with 
your purchase decision. 

To proceed with this quote, you may respond to this email, order online through your 
Premier page, or, if you do not have Premier, use this Quote to Order. 

Quote No. 	 300003881987,1 	 Sales Rep 	Jay Hass 
Total 	 $4,549.52 	 Phone 	(800) 456-3355, 5138752 
Customer # 	 6959932 	 Email 	Joseph_Hass@Dell.com  
Quoted On 	 May. 20, 2019 	 Billing To 	JESSICA PATTERSON 
Expires by 	 Sep. 17, 2019 	 PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIT 
Deal ID 	 17588151 	 Y 

55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801-2882 

Message from your Sales Rep 

Please contact your Dell sales representative if you have any questions or when you're ready to place an order. 
Thank you for shopping with Dell! 

Regards, 
Jay Hass 

Shipping Group 

Shipping To 	 Shipping Method 

JESSICA PATTERSON 	 Standard Delivery 
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 
(603) 766-9290 

Product 
	

Unit Price 	Qty 	Subtotal 

OptiPlex 7050 SFF 
	

$992.03 	4 	$3,968.12 

Dell 22 Monitor - P2217H 
	

$145.35 	 $581.40 



Subtotal: $4,549.52 
Shipping: $0.00 

Non-Taxable Amount: $4,549,52 
Taxable Amount: $0.00 

Estimated Tax: $0.00 

Total: $4,549.52 

Special lease pricing may be available for qualified customers and offers. Please contact your DFS Sales 
Representative for details. 

Pane 2 



Shipping Group Details 

Shipping To 	 Shipping Method 

JESSICA PATTERSON 	 Standard Delivery 
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 
(603) 766-9290 

Qty Subtotal 
OptiPlex 7050 SFF $992.03 4 $3,968.12 
Estimated delivery if purchased today: 
Jun. 03, 2019 
Contract # 70137 
Customer Agreement # Dell Std Terms 

Description SKU Unit Price Qty Subtotal 

OptiPlex 7050 Small Form Factor XCTO 210-AKOK 4 

Intel Core i7-6700 (QC/8MB/8T/3.4GHz/65W); supports Windows 
7/8.1/10/Linux 

338-BHUH 4 

Win 10 Pro 64 English, French, Spanish 619-AHKN 4 

No AutoPilot 340-CKSZ 4 

Microsoft(R) Office 30 Days Trial 658-BCSB 4 

16GB 2x8GB DDR4 2400MHz Memory 370-ADJS 4 

No Additional Hard Drive 401-AANH 4 

Intel Integrated Graphics. Dell OptiPlex 490-BBFG 4 

M.2 256GB PCIe NVMe Class 40 Self Encrypting OPAL 2.0 Solid State 400-AOZH 4 
Drive 

Thermal Pad 412-AAIL 4 

OptiPlex 7050 SFF with 180W up to 85% efficient Power Supply 
329-BDHJ 4 

(80Plus Bronze) 

Intel vPro Technology Enabled 631-ABGK 4 

Intel Ready Mode Technology 631-ABGL 4 

NO RAID 817-BBBN 4 

DVD+/-RW Bezel, Small Form Factor 325-BBRJ 4 

Tray load DVD Drive (Reads and Writes to DVD/CD) 429-AAJV 4 

CMS Essentials DVD no Media 658-BBTV 4 

No Scorn required 555-BBKH 4 

No Wireless LAN Card 555-BBFO 4 

No Media Card Reader 385-BBCR 4 

Black Dell KB216 Wired Multi-Media Keyboard English 580-ADJC 

Black Dell MS116 Wired Mouse 275-BBBW 4 

No FGA 817-BBBB 4 

No Hard Drive Bracket for Small Form Factor, Dell OptiPlex 575-BBKX 4 

System Power Cord (Philipineff H/US) 450-AAOJ 

No Diagnostic/Recovery CD media 340-ABJI 4 

E2nrtel '2 



SupportAssist 525-BBCL - 4 

Dell(TM) Digital Delivery Cirrus Client 640-BBLW 4 

Dell Client System Update (Updates latest Dell Recommended BIOS, 
658-BBMR 4 

Drivers, Firmware and Apps) 

Waves Maxx Audio 658-BBRB 4 

Dell Developed Recovery Environment 658-BCUV 4 

Safety/Environment and Regulatory Guide (English/French Multi- 
language) 

340 AGIK 4 

US Order 332-1286 4 

No Quick Reference Guide 340-ABKW 4 

No CompuTrace 461-AABF 4 

TPM Enabled 329-BBJL - 4 

No Integrated Stand option 575-BBBI 4 

NO ADAPTER 470-AAJL 4 

Energy Star 387-BBLW 4 

OS-Windows Media Not Included 620-AALW 4 

Ship Material for Opti 5050 SFF 340-BKFK 4 

Shipping Label for DAO 389-BBUU 4 

No Accessories 461-AABV 4 

MOD,LBL,REG,SFF,MEX,EPA.7050 389-BRPU 4 

No UPC Label 389-BCGW 4 

No Wireless LAN Card 555-BBFO 4 

Intel Core i7 vPro Processor Label 389-BHJV 4 

Not selected in this configuration 817-BBBC 4 

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 812-3886 4 

Onsite/In-Home Service After Remote Diagnosis 3 Years 812-3887 4 - 
Oty Subtotal 

Deli 22 Monitor .. P22171-I $145.35 4 $581.40 
Estimated delivery if purchased today: 
May. 28, 2019 
Contract # 70137 
Customer Agreement # Dell Std Terms 

Description SKU Unit Price Qty Subtotal 

Dell 22 Monitor - P2217H 210-AIIF 4 

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 814-9381 4 

Advanced Exchange Service, 3 Years 814-9382 4 

	

Subtotal: 	$4,549.52 

	

Shipping: 	$0.00 

	

Estimated Tax: 	$0.00 

	

Total: 	$4,549.52 

Paae 4 



iimportant Notes 

Terms of Sale 

Unless you have a separate written agreement that specifically applies to this order, your order will be subject to and governed by the following 
agreements, each of which are incorporated herein by reference and available in hardcopy from Dell at your request: Dell's Terms of Sale , 
which include a binding consumer arbitration provision and incorporate Dell's U.S. Return Policy and Warranty (for Consumer warranties; for 
Commercial warranties). 

If this purchase includes software: in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the software is subject to the license terms 
accompanying the software, and in the absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-branded application software is subject to the Dell End 
User License Agreement - Type A and use of the Dell-branded system software is subject to the Dell End User License Agreement - Type S. 

If your purchase is for Mozy, in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the Mozy service is subject to the terms and conditions 
located at https://mozy.com/about/legal/terms.  

If your purchase is for Boomi services or support, your use of the Boomi Services (and related professional service) is subject to the terms and 
conditions located at https://boomi.com/insa.  

If your purchase is for Secureworks services or support. your use of the Secureworks services (and related professional service) is subject to 
the terms and conditions located at https://www.secureworks.com/eula/eula-us.  

If this purchase is for (a) a storage product identified in the DELL EMC Satisfaction Guarantee Terms and Conditions located at ("Satisfaction 
Guarantee") and (ii) three (3) years of a ProSupport Service for such storage product, in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, such 
storage product is subject to the Satisfaction Guarantee. 

You acknowledge having read and agree to be bound by the foregoing applicable terms in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set forth in 
your purchase order or any other correspondence that are in addition to, inconsistent or in conflict with ;  the foregoing applicable online terms 
will be of no force or effect unless specifically agreed to in a writing signed by Dell that expressly references such terms. 

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information 
All product, pricing, and other information is valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses only, and is based on the latest information available 
and may be subject to change. Dell reserves the right to cancel quotes and orders arising from pricing or other errors. Please indicate any tax-
exempt status on your P0, and fax your exemption certificate, including your Customer Number, to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023. 
Please ensure that your tax-exemption certificate reflects the correct Dell entity name: Dell Marketing 

Note: All tax quoted above is an estimate: final taxes will he listed on the invoice. 

If you have any questions regarding tax please send an e-mail to Tax_Departrnent@dell.com . 

For certain products shipped to end-users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to your invoice. Dell encourages customers 
to dispose of electronic equipment properly. 





A quote for your consideration! 
Based on your business needs, we put the following quote together to help with your 

purchase decision. Below is a detailed summary of the quote we've created to help you with 
your purchase decision. 

To proceed with this quote, you may respond to this email, order online through your 
Preraiiiier page, or, if you do not have Premier, use this Quote 	Order. 

Quote No. 	 3000038657516.1 	 Sales Rep 	Jay Hass 
Total 	 $1,•54.84 	 Phone 	(800) 456-3355, 5138752 
Customer # 	 6959932 	 Email 	Joseph_Hass@Dell.com  
Quoted On 	 May. 20, 2019 	 Billing To 	JESSICA PATTERSON 
Expires by 	 Sep. 17, 2019 	 PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORIT 

55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801-2882 

Message from your Sales Rep 

Please contact your Dell sales representative if you have any questions or when you're ready to place an order. 
Thank you for shopping with Dell! 

Regards, 
Jay Hass 

Shipping Group 

Shipping To 	 Shipping Method 

JESSICA PATTERSON 	 Standard Delivery 
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 
(603) 766-9290 

Product 
	

Unit Price 	Oty 	Subtotal 

Dell Latitude 5400 
	

$1,454.84 	1 	$1,454.84 

Paric. I 



Subtotal: $1,454.84 
Shipping: $0.00 

Non-Taxable Amount: $1,454.84 
Taxable Amount: $0.00 

Estimated Tax: $0.00 

Total: $1,454.84 

Special lease pricing may be available for qualified customers and offers. Please contact your DFS Sales 
Representative for details. 



Shipping Group Detaiis 

Shipping To 	 Shipping Method 

JESSICA PATTERSON 	 Standard Delivery 
PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
55 INTL DR 
PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 
(603) 766-9290 

Qty Subtotal 
Dell Latitude 5400 $1,454.84 1 $1,454.84 
Estimated delivery if purchased today: 
May. 31, 2019 
Contract # 70137 
Customer Agreement # Dell Std Terms 

Description SKU Unit Price City Subtotal 

Latitude 5400 XCTO Base 210-ASJJ 1 

8th Generation Intel Core i7-8665U Processor (4 Core,8MB 
Cache,1.9GHz,15W, vPro-Capable) 

379-BOLE 1 

Win 10 Pro 64 English, French, Spanish 619-AHKNI 1 

Microsoft(R) Office 30 Days Trial 658-BCSB 1 

Dell Data Protection Encryption Personal Edition Digital Delivery 421-9984 - 1 

Dell ProSupport for Software, Dell Data Protection Encryption Personal 
954-3455 1 

Edition, 1 Year 

Intel Core i7-8665U Processor with Integrated Intel UHD 620 Graphics 338-BRMH 1 

Intel vPro Technology Enabled 631-ACBI - 1 

16GB, 1x16GB, DDR4 Non-ECC 370-AECT 1 

M.2 256GB SATA Class 20 Solid State Drive 400-BDXJ 1 

No AutoPilot 340-CKSZ 1 

No FGA 817-BBBB - 1 

No Mouse 570-AADK 1 

SupportAssist 525-BBCL 1 

Dell(TM) Digital Delivery Cirrus Client 640-BBLVV 1 

Dell Client System Update (Updates latest Dell Recommended BIOS, 
658-BBMR 1 

Drivers, Firmware and Apps) 

Waves Maxx Audio 658-BBRB - 1 

Dell Developed Recovery Environment 658-BCUV -I 

Dell Power Manager 658-BDVK 1 

Dell Latitude 5400 SRV 658-BEGG 1 

Regulatory Label, FCC 389-DPGZ 1 

Direct ship Info Mod 340-AAPP 1 

MIX SHIP Config (DAO/BCC) 340-CMDV 1 

3 Cell 42Whr ExpressCharge Capable Battery 451-BCIR 1 

Single Pointing Non-Backlit US English Keyboard 583-BFMK 

Intel® Dual Band Wireless AC 9560 (802.11 ac) 2x2 + Bluetooth 5.0 555-BEDV 1 

Pric 



Driver for Intel® Dual Band Wireless AC 9560 (802.11ac) 2x2 + 
555-BEUN 

Bluetooth 5.0 

No Mobile Broadband Card 	 556-BBCD 	 1 

No Anti-Virus Software 	 650-AAAM 	 1 

No Removable CD/DVD Drive 	 429-AATO 	 - 	1 

No Resource DVD / USB 	 430-XXYG 	 - 	1 

OS-Windows Media Not Included 	 620-AALW 	 1 

8th Gen Intel Core i7 vPro processor label 	 389-CGJM 	 1 

No Option Included 	 340-ACQQ 	 1 

No Energy Star 	 387-BBCE 	 1 

Latitude 5400 Quick Start Guide 	 340-CLYF 

US Power Cord 	 450-AAEJ 	 1 

65W AC Adapter, 7.4mm Barrel 	 492-BBXF 	 1 

BTO Standard Shipment (VS) 	 800-BBQK 	 1 

Single Pointing, No Fingerprint and No SmartCard Reader, Displayport 	
346-BFJT 	 1 

over Type-C 

Latitude 5400 bottom door 	 321-BEKW 	 1 

No UPC Label 	 389-BCGW 	 1 

US Order 	 332-1286 	 1 

14" HD (1366 x 768) Anti-Glare Non-Touch, Camera & Mic, WLAN 	
391-BEIP 	 1 

Capable, Privacy Shutter 

Safety/Environment and Regulatory Guide (English/French Multi- 

	

340-AGIK 	 1 
language) 

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 	 975-3461 	 1 

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 	 997-8317 	 1 

Onsite/In-Home Service After Remote Diagnosis, 1 Year 	 997-8328 	 1 

Onsite/In-Home Service After Remote Diagnosis, 2 Year Extended 	997-8332 	 1 

	

Subtotai: 	$1,454.84 

	

Shipping: 	 $0.00 

	

Estimated Tax: 	 $0.00 

Total: 	$1,454.84 



Important Notes 

Terms of Saie 

Unless you have a separate written agreement that specifically applies to this order, your order will be subject to and governed by the following 
agreements, each of which are incorporated herein by reference and available in hardcopy from Dell at your request: Dell's Terms of Sale , 
which include a binding consumer arbitration provision and incorporate Dell's U.S. Return Policy and Warranty (for Consumer warranties; for 
Commercial warranties). 

If this purchase includes software: in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the software is subject to the license terms 
accompanying the software, and in the absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-branded application software is subject to the Dell End 
User License Agreement - Type A and use of the Dell-branded system software is subject to the Dell End User License Agreement - Type S. 

If your purchase is for Mazy, in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the Mozy service is subject to the terms and conditions 
located at https://mozy.corniaboutilegal/terms.  

If your purchase is for Boomi services or support, your use of the Boomi Services (and related professional service) is subject to the terms and 
conditions located at https://boomi.cornimsa . 

If your purchase is for Secureworks services or support, your use of the Secureworks services (and related professional service) is subject to 
the terms and conditions located at https://www.secureworks.comleula/eula-us.  

If this purchase is for (a) a storage product identified in the DELL EMC Satisfaction Guarantee Terms and Conditions located at ("Satisfaction 
Guarantee") and (ii) three (3) years of a ProSupport Service for such storage product, in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, such 
storage product is subject to the Satisfaction Guarantee. 

You acknowledge having read and agree to be bound by the foregoing applicable terms in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set forth in 
your purchase order or any other correspondence that are in addition to, inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing applicable online terms 
will be of no force or effect unless specifically agreed to in a writing signed by Dell that expressly references such terms. 

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information 
All product, pricing, and other information is valid for U.S. customers and U.S. addresses only, and is based on the latest information available 
and may be subject to change. Dell reserves the right to cancel quotes and orders arising from pricing or other errors. Please indicate any tax-
exempt status on your P0, and fax your exemption certificate, including your Customer Number, to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-9023. 
Please ensure that your tax-exemption certificate reflects the correct Dell entity name: Dell Marketing L.P. 

Note: All tax quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will be listed on the invoice. 

If you have any questions regarding tax please send an e-mail to Tax_Department@dell.com . 

For certain products shipped to end-users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to your invoice. Dell encourages customers 
to dispose of electronic equipment properly. 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

RE: 	Contract Reports 

DATE: 	June 13, 2019 
****************************************************************************** 

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following: 

1. 	Project Name: 	Global Turf Equipment 
PDA Obligation: 	$7,500.00 
Board Authority: 	Robert Allard 
Summary: 	PDA purchased a Used Greens Roller from Global Turf 

Equipment, LLC of San Antonio, FL. The unit will replace a 2006 
Greens Roller which had been purchased used, is in need of a new 
transmission and has over 900 hours of use. Funding for the Used 
Greens Roller will come from the FY2019 golf course capital 
budget. 

NAR ESOLVES '120 I %contract rpt re-used greens rot ler.docx 



9497 	 Toro GreensPro 1240 
Sold in 2015 Built in 2015 

	
S/N: 44912-315000393 

Hours 93 

Includes: Honda0 GX200 6.5 hp, 

1 
	

7,200.00 
	

7,200.00 

Quotation 
Doc No Date 

23444 6/5/2019 

  

Terms  [ 	 I Customer PO 

Prepay in Full 

Your sales rep is 	Steve Wilson 
(603) 661-2516 

swilson©globalturfequipment.com  

JLl 

11644 Uradco P1 
San Antonio, FL 33576 

Office: 352-588-3092 
Fax: 352-588-3692 
info@globalturfequipment.com  

       

  

Customer 

  

Ship To 

 

 

Pease Golf Course 
200 Grafton Drive 

Portsmouth 
	

NH 	 03801 

  

Pease Golf Course 

200 Grafton Drive 

Portsmouth 	 NH 	 03801 

 

 

attn: EJ Chea 
ejcheagcs@yahoo.com  

    

       

  

'Item 
	

I Description 
	

I Dtvl 
	

Price Pert 	Total Price! 

Shipping 	Shipping on semi trailer without ramps. Customer is 	1 	 300.00 	 300.00 

responsible for unloading. Rental of unloading 
equipment may be required depending on customer's 
situation. 

Special Instructions: 
	

Total 	7,500.00 

Fully Operational with 90-day warranty: All machines are quoted/sold in Fully Operational & Serviced 
condition, including all new fluids, filters, and spark plugs, reels backlapped; all new bedknives and 
rotary blades; minimum 50% reel life and 60% tire life In addition, all parts and systems throughout 
each machine will be inspected and repaired/replaced as needed to ensure that machines are fully 
functional and ready to use upon delivery. 90-day major parts warranty on engines, transmissions, 
hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, spray pumps. 

Sales tax will be added to final invoice, if applicable. Receiving a quote does not hold equipment - please contact your sales rep to reserve 
equipment. Quote is valid for 10 days. 



OP-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 5 Interi a tonal Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Memorandum 
To: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 

From: Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel ik 

Re: 	Builder's Risk Insurance Coverage — Terminal Improvement Project 

Date: June 13, 2019 

In 2017, the PDA Board selected USI New England, Inc. ("USI") to be the broker of 
record for seeking and binding property insurance coverage for the PDA. In 2018, the Board 
approved obtaining property coverage through USI for the renewal policy period of 12/31/18 
through 12/31/19. 

The Terminal Improvement Project is slated to break ground in mid-June. This 
construction project necessitates obtaining builder's risk coverage, a form of property insurance 
that protects the PDA's insurable interest in the materials, fixtures and/or equipment being used 
in the construction of the terminal building should those items sustain physical loss or damage 
from a covered cause. 

Per the attached sheet, USI obtained quotes from various insurance providers to add 
builder's risk coverage for the Terminal Improvement Project to the PDA property coverage 
through USI. The builder's risk policy period would run from 6/17/19 through 12/17/20. Aspen 
Insurance submitted the lowest bid for the coverage period in the amount of $14,641.00 and was 
recommended by USI. 

Based on the foregoing, I request you direct USI to bind the builder's risk coverage 
through Aspen Insurance for the stated policy period and report the expenditure to the PDA 
Board of Directors at its next regular meeting. 

INSLIRAICE\20 I 9;, Builder's Rist< Memo dv.cx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

w w 3e, a s 	ev org 





PEASE 
AIRPORT 
	

f e 	Ports ,T 	NH 03801 

MANAGEMENT 
	

603 433.6536 

Memorandum 

To: 	Paul Brean, Airport Directo 

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison 

Date: 6/13/2019 

Subj: Noise Report for May 2019 

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received a total of nine (9) noise inquiries in 
May, 2019. Five (5) inquiries were for rotor-wing aircraft, two (2) inquiries were for fixed wing 
aircraft and two (2) inquiries were informational in nature. 

All five (5) of the rotor-wing inquiries were from a single resident of Portsmouth concerning 
Seacoast Helicopters flying over his home. 

One (1) fixed wing inquiry, also from a resident of Portsmouth, was concerning the departure of 
16 F-16's being deployed. The second inquiry was from a resident of Ayer, MA concerning 
aircraft flying over her home. 

Two (2) additional inquiries we informational in nature. A resident of Freemont, NH who 
believes that an aircraft had dumped lavatory waste over her home on several occasions. She 
was provided with the number to the FAA to follow up as a safety concern. The last 
informational inquiry originated from a City official of Durham, inquiring information from our 
noise maps which he obtained from the PDA website. He was following up for a resident of 
Durham. 

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are 
researched and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have 
indicated that call backs are unnecessary. 

L)000 TAKING YOU THERE 



Ow- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

  

Director Allard: 

Effective July 1, 2019 the Pease Development Authority Board of 

Directors hereby adopts the following modifications to the PDA Employee 

Handbook, and authorizes the Executive Director to implement the same 

as follows: 

1 	Change Annual Leave Policy to indicate: 

a. 	any employee currently accruing more than twenty-four 

(24) days per year will retain their current annual accrual 

rate, but will not receive any additional days for additional 

service years; and 

b 	all other benefitted employees, and any new benefitted 

employee, shall accrue annual leave to a maximum 

annual rate of twenty-four (24) days; 

2. 	Change Maximum Annual Leave Policy to indicate any employee 

who reaches their maximum annual leave accrual during the 

calendar year will continue to accrue their pro-rated accrual 

each pay period through December 31st of such year and may 

use such time subject to general policies of coordination. In 

each instance the first payroll of the following calendar year will 

reflect only the maximum permitted accrual to be carried over; 

3 	Change Merit and COLA Adjustments Policy to indicate salary 

increases to be based on merit and funding, and shall not 

exceed two percent (2%) per year without the advance approval 

1 
TAKING YOU THERE 



of the Executive Director. In addition, PDA will adopt an annual 

COLA adjustment to provide on July 1st of each year, full time 

benefitted PDA employees shall receive a COLA based on the 

U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Employment Cost Index for 

wages and salaries for state and local government workers not 

to exceed 1.5%; 

4. 	Change Holiday Leave Policy to indicate that PDA Employees will 

receive eleven (11) paid holidays and two (2) floating holidays 

for a total of thirteen (13) holiday leave days. The floating 

holidays do not accrue and must be used in whole day 

increments during the fiscal year of July 1 to June 30; and 

5 	Adopt and implement a new policy regarding Payment for 

Declining Medical Coverage for PDA to pay, subject to review of 

implications for retiree health benefits and a statutory authority 

determination by the NHDOJ, to allow eligible employees who 

decline PDA medical benefits upon employment or at any open 

enrollment period and obtain such benefits from another 

provider said employee ten percent (10%) of the annual 

premium for the qualifying plan available (single, two person or 

family plan). 

Items 1 through 4 to become effective July 1, 2019, all in accordance with 

the memorandum of Lynn Marie Hinchee, Deputy Director and General 

Counsel, dated June 13, 2019 attached hereto. Item 5 to become effective 

following consultation with the NH Retirement System and NHDOJ as to 

authority. 

N RFSOIVFS \ 201 9\(_eave , .nnual & Holiday) :  Merit, COLA, and Declining Medical.clocx 

2 



OP-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 55 int., 	 Por sm outh, NI1-1 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 	June 13, 2019 

TO: 	PDA Board of Directors 

FROM: 	Lynn Marie Hinchee, Deputy Director and General Counsel 

RE: 
	

Recommendations for Modifications to Leave (Accrual, Annual and Holiday), 
Merit and COLA Adjustments; and Implementation of Policy concerning 
Employee Declining of Medical Coverage 

CC: 	David R. Mullen, Executive Director 
Irving E. Canner, Finance Director 

After review of the Pease Development Authority Employee Handbook and a recent 
review of benefits to State employees and local contract Municipal employees, outlined below 
are PDA staff recommendations for consideration by the Board of Directors. 

1. 	ANNUAL LEAVE:  PDA presently provides that a new employee begin 
employment with fifteen (15) days of annual leave and may earn one (1) additional day of annual 
leave for each year in excess of five (5) years of employment, up to a maximum of fifty (50) 
days. PDA does not believe this was intended language but rather the result of confusion 
between days earned each year and maximum accrual permitted to be carried over from year to 
year until separation. At the present time, fourteen (14) PDA employees are earning more than 
twenty-four (24) days per year (the State maximum for employees with 21+ years of service) up 
to a current maximum of 30 days. 

RECOMMENDATION: In an effort to provide clarity to PDA's Annual Leave Policy, 
effective July 1, 2019, the Board adopt and authorizes the modification below which is 
consistent with the benefit received by state classified employees: 

Any employee currently accruing more than twenty-four (24) days per year will retain 
their current annual accrual rate, but will not receive any additional days for additional 
service years; and all other benefitted employees, and any new benefitted employee, shall 
accrue annual leave to a maximum annual rate of twenty-four (24) days. 

1 	 
0 C.) 0 0 TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.or Ls 



2. MAXIMUM ANNUAL LEAVE ACCRUAL:  PDA presently provides regular 
full time employees to accrue annual leave up to a maximum of fifty (50) days or four hundred 
(400) hours in accordance with the schedule listed below: 

Year 0-5 	30 days 
	

Year 16 - 20 45 days 
Year 6-10 	35 days 
	

Year 21-F- 	50 days 
Year 11-15 	40 days 

At the present time, twenty-four (24) PDA employees (including all of the fourteen (14) 
discussed above) are within eighty (80) hours of the maximum accrual or are presently losing 
9.24 hours of annual leave per pay period. It has been PDA's policy to cease annual leave 
accrual as soon as an employee reaches their maximum accrual. 

Alternatives to the recommendation proposed but determined to have a potential impact 
on the budget included leave buy-back, a previous policy of PDA's for approximately 8 years; a 
direct payment of excess accrual up to ten (10) additional days at year end; a contribution of 
some portion of excess accrual directly to deferred compensation at years end and prior to 
forfeiture; and/or contribution of 50% of accrued leave to deferred compensation up to maximum 
contribution during last two years prior to separation by retirement. 

RECOMMENDATION:  In an effort to provide clarity to PDA's Maximum Annual 
Leave Accrual Policy, effective July 1, 2019, the Board adopt and authorize the 
modification below to the permit flexibility in the scheduling of annual leave: 

Any employee who reaches their maximum annual leave accrual during the calendar year 
will continue to accrue their pro-rated accrual each pay period through December 31' of 
such year and may use such time subject to general policies of coordination. In each 
instance the first payroll of the following calendar year will reflect only the maximum 
permitted accrual to be carried over. 

3. MERIT AND COLA ADJUSTMENTS:  For approximately six years, full time 
benefitted PDA employees who remain in their job title have been eligible for a maximum 
annual merit adjustment of 2% (effected by Executive Director Dick Green) and no COLA 
adjustment. During this same period, state classified employees receive regular step adjustments 
(approximately 4% per step) and at least two COLA adjustments of 1.5% each in 2018 and 2019. 
Prior to this policy adopted by Executive Director Green, in each instance where state classified 
employees have received COLA adjustments, the PDA Board has taken an independent vote as 
to whether or not to similarly adjust PDA employee pay. This policy, and the reality of current 
cost indexing, has resulted in almost all employees receiving an automatic 2% adjustment 
without reference to merit. Even with this adjustment, the current competitiveness of the job 
market has had an impact on hiring and retaining new employees. [Important to note is the fact 
that PDA employees do not receive regular step adjustments nor are PDA employees classified 

2 



by a specific grading system, as is used in the state classified system.] With reference to the 
recommendation below, note that the applicable COLA, the Index change from March 2018 to 
March 2019 for all workers was 2.5% and the public administration adjustment was 2.7%. PDA 
employees would receive a 1.5% COLA adjustment. 

RECOMMENDATION: In an effort to provide clarity to PDA's Merit and COLA 
Adjustment Policy, effective July 1, 2019, the Board adopt and authorize the 
modification outlined below with respect to pay adjustments to indicate: 

Salary increases to be based on merit and funding, and shall not exceed two percent (2%) 
per year without the advance approval of the Executive Director. On July of each year, 
full time benefitted PDA employees shall receive a COLA based on the U.S. Bureau of 
Labor Statistics Employment Cost Index for wages and salaries for state and local 
government workers not to . exceed 1.5%. 

4. 	HOLIDAY LEAVE. PDA employees currently received eleven (11) paid 
holidays and one (1) floating holiday for a total of twelve (12) days. This is consistent with the 
prior state policy of ten (10) paid holidays and two (2) floating holidays. The state does not 
recognize Columbus Day as a fixed holiday. Beginning in October 2018, state classified 
employees received an additional floating holiday for a total of three (3) floating holidays and an 
overall total of thirteen (13) days. 

RECOMMENDATION: In an effort to provide clarity to PDA's Holiday Leave Policy, 
effective July 1, 2019, the Board adopt and authorize the modification outlined below to 
indicate: 

PDA Employees will receive eleven (11) paid holidays and two (2) floating holidays for a 
total of thirteen (13) holiday leave days. The floating holidays do not accrue or carry 
over and must be used in whole day increments during the fiscal year July 1 to June 30. 

5. PAYMENT FOR DECLINING MEDICAL COVERAGE: This would be a new 
benefit provided to eligible employees who may decline PDA medical benefits upon 
employment or any applicable open enrollment period and obtain such benefits from another 
provider. This option would be an overall cost savings to PDA, with the payment annually to the 
employee of ten percent (10%) of the annual premium cost. Currently PDA pays monthly 
estimated employee premiums as follows: 

a. Employee only coverage ranging between $883 - $961, 
b. Two person coverage ranging between $1,760 — $1,921; and 
c. Family coverage ranging between $2,828 — $3,074. 

3 



Prior to implementation, this proposed policy would be subject to review of implications for 
retiree health benefits and a statutory authority determination by the NHDOJ. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Effective July 1, 2019, the Board authorize the adoption of and 
implementation, when possible, of a new policy regarding Payment for Declining Medical 
Coverage, subject to review of implications for retiree health benefits and a statutory 
authority determination by the NHDOJ, to indicate: 

Allow eligible employees who decline PDA medical benefits upon employment or at any 
open enrollment period obtain such benefits from another provider to receive an annual 
payment equal to ten percent (10%) of the annual premium for the qualifying plan available 
(single, two person or family plan). 

PABOARDMTG\2019\Memo to Board regardig Leave 06-20-19.dotx 

4 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the 

Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of $29,870.50 for legal 

services rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Sheehan, Phinney, 

Bass & Green. 

N\RESOLVES\2019\Legal Services 06-20.docx 

TAKING Y 0 U THERE 

e ti 3 (;: 	 g 



Pease Development Authority 	 May 22, 2019 	PAGE 6 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Permit Implementation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	$13,659.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $4,846.25 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	$18,505.25 

BALANCE DUE: 	$18,505.25 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 



Pease Development Authority 
	

May 22, 2019 	PAGE 4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Wentworth - Douglas Ground Lease 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19809 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $7,047.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	 $7,047.00 

BALANCE DUE: 	 $7,047.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 



Pease Development Authority May 21, 2019 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Trade Port - General Representation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 	14713-10167 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Robert 	P Cheney 
Invoice Number: 	336462 

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $3,857.00 

TOTAL EXPENSES: $461.25 

TOTAL THIS BILL: $4,318.25 

PREVIOUS BALANCE: $6,351.00 

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: $10,669.25 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 



Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council 
555 Market St. 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Tel 603-436-8500 
Fax 603-436-2780 

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2019 

PRESENT: 	Roger Groux, Chairman 
Jeff Gilbert 
Erik Anderson 
Chris Snow 
Ned Raynolds 
Geno Marconi, Secretary, Director, DPH 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Groux called the meeting to order at 6:37 pm following an update on the Portsmouth 
Fire Department rescue boat. 

2. APPROVE MINUTES 

Jeff G. made a motion to accept the March 13, 2018 minutes, Erik 2nd no further discussion, 
the council voted and the motion carried. 

3. FINANCE REPORT  

Jeff commented the operating income is considerably higher than the budget. Geno attributed 
that to the road salt operations. Geno let the council know there are a couple of projects coming 
up at the Port, one is a heavy lift ship with windmill components and the other is for a buoy 
assembly project that Riverside & Pickering is doing. Geno explained the details of both 
projects and we will keep the council updated on arrival dates. Further discussion ensued 
regarding off-shore wind energy. Geno explained that Granite State Minerals should be done 
hauling road salt by the end of the month. 

4. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Director reported on the following items from the March 14, 2019 PDA board meeting: 
• ROE's Cornell University/Shoals Marine Lab, Star Island, and Isles of Shoals 
• Pda 500 rules, initial proposal 
• Approval to enter into the memo of agreement and to seek funding for the 

Hampton/Seabrook dredging project 
• Main wharf berth inspection 
• Hampton floating dock repair report 

Roger asked Geno about the continuing resolution of the budget and how that would affect the 
Port. Geno said the only thing that could happen would be in October when they go to do the 
dredging in Hampton, it would tie us up on the removal and replacement of the moorings, in 
which case the Port would have to go back to CBOC for additional funding. 



5. 	COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Fisheries- Erik reminded the council of the lobster bait storage situation due to allocation issues 
on herring. Geno added that they hope to have 4 fishing vessels coming in to the main pier this 
summer to unload menhaden (aka pogies) as this is one of the only facilities that can handle 
the volume and NH needs to get the landings to continue receiving allocations. Since the Right 
Whales are protected by the Endangered Species Act new proposed regulations are being 
watched closely by the lobster and gillnet fishing industry as they could bring about very 
onerous changes with how the fisheries operate. Erik spoke about BOEM (Bureau of Ocean 
Energy Management) who recently set up a task force to study offshore wind power. Erik 
thanked the Division for its support in the commercial Trap Cleanup Day. 

Government-Ned reported that the City of Portsmouth adopted the Capital Improvement Plan, 
which includes the Market St. extension. Geno added that the Port received a Homeland 
Security Grant for new fencing along Market St. and the Port is waiting to see what is 
happening with the City so the projects can be coordinated. Ned commented that the parking 
agreement at the Shoals lot is appreciated by the City. Erik asked Ned if he would continue to 
talk to the City Council about the maritime industry here in Portsmouth, including the Port and 
Fisheries. Geno asked Ned to let the City know about the heavy lift ship that is coming and if 
anyone is interested the Port would be happy to show them around. Roger added that if offshore 
wind gets developed this pier could be a key element in developing that program. 

Moorings- Chris spoke on 3 items that were on the PDA board agenda in March, 1) The board 
adopted the new mooring and waitlist fees, which will become effective April 1, 2019, 2) report 
on the commercial mooring transfers, and 3) report on the DMV commercial fisherman day. 
Geno explained in more detail what is going on with the Pda 500 rules and the mooring fees, 
which became effective April 1st. The fees will only affect new applicants this year and then 
current permit holders that renew in January 2020. Geno also mentioned that he is still 
reviewing the pier use, slip, and berthing fees. The pier use fee will be going up as per 
regulation they must be comparable to the mooring fees. Chris presented and the Council 
discussed the annual mooring permit report which summarizes the mooring permit re-
application numbers for the past few years. 

Dredging- No report on dredging 

Recreational Piers- No report on rec piers 

PDA liaison-Roger reported that there was a Port Committee meeting on April 4th 2019. It 
was a brief meeting, one of the items that was impressive to the committee is the increase in 
traffic here at the Port. Geno explained that increases are up over-all on the Piscataqua River. 

Maritime/Public Affairs- Don was not in attendance but did send an email to share with the 
council. The email included updates on the Eagle visit, August 1-5; an award for supporting 
Sail Training in Maine that PMC received from Tall Ships America; and Naval Sea Cadets will 
embark on the Sea Challenge, which is scheduled for Aug 4 to Aug 10, 2019, there will be 24 
teens and 2 counselors. 

On behalf of the Recreational Piers, Geno reported the floats are going in at Rye Harbor and 
Hampton will be done as soon as possible after the replacement float is ready. Erik asked about 
the Rye repairs and Geno explained the options that are being looked at. 

Page 2 of 3 



6. NEW BUSINESS  

The Sarah Long Bridge temporary deviation dates for the drawbridge operation have been 
approved for May 8 and May 9 th  from 7:30 am to 12:30 pm each day. The river will be closed 
to navigation for vessels that cannot pass under the bridge while it's in the closed (road) 
position. 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

Erik asked if the Port will be involved in the Rt. 95 bridge project. Geno said he has not been 
contacted by anyone as of yet. 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
As a follow up from last month's meeting, Peter looked further into the propane and said he 
has learned that propane is in fact being discharged and not loaded. 

9. PRESS QUESTIONS  
There were no members of the press present. 

10. ADJOURNMENT  
Erik made a motion to adjourn, Ned seconded, and all were in favor. Meeting was adjourned 
at 7:25 PM. 

Page 3 of 3 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 555 Markel Sireat, S(.1;t 	Porismoul:h :  NH 03301 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

Date: 	June 12, 2019 

To: 	 David Mullen, Executive Direc or 

From: 	Geno Marconi, Director 

Subject: 	Charter Boat Right of Entry — Eastman's Party Fishing 

The Division of Ports and Harbors received a request from Les Eastman, of Eastman's Party Fishing 

to exercise the first and only option to renew its Charter Boat Right of Entry ("ROE") at the 

Hampton Harbor Marine Facility for one additional year. In accordance with the terms of the ROE 

the exercise of the renewal option is subject to the approval of the Executive Director. As such, 

the Division of Ports and Harbors is requesting your approval of the option to renew the ROE for: 

Owner: 	Les Eastman 

Company: 	Eastman's Fishing Fleet, LLC dba Eastman's Party Fishing ("Eastman's") 

Location: 	Hampton Harbor Marine Facility ("Hampton") 

Term: 	Commencing July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 

Although dredging is scheduled for this upcoming winter, the continually deteriorating conditions 

of Hampton and Seabrook Harbor are still causing problems for the users of the Harbor, at times 

making it impossible for boats to return to their moorings or docks in Seabrook during low tide. 

As a result, Eastman's occasionally finds it necessary to discharge passengers at the Hampton 

Harbor Marine Facility and bus them back to Seabrook. Therefore, Eastman's is seeking to renew 

the ROE for another year. The ROE will be used on an as needed basis for the discharging of 

passengers only. Eastman's has met the following required conditions of the ROE: 

1. Applied for and secured a Pier Use Permit; 
2. Obtained the minimum insurance required by the Pease Development Authority 

("PDA") and provided proof of insurance to the PDA; 

3. Provided documentation that Eastman's is registered and in "Good Standing" with 

the Secretary of State to conduct business in New Hampshire; and 

4. Will provide a bus to shuttle the passengers back to the Seabrook location. 

This approval will be reported to the Board at its next meeting. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

4 3 8-2 78 0 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 555 Mai•k.. -,!:: 	 53 J.1 	e 1 	o 	outh, 	I-1 0 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

June 4, 2019 

Andrew Widen 
1677 Ocean Blvd 
Rye, NH 03870 

RE: Request to Transfer Commercial Moorings 
Commercial Mooring No. 950, Rye Harbor, New Hampshire 

Dear Mr. Widen: 

Please be advised that Pease Development Authority - Division of Ports and Harbors has 
approved of your request to transfer the above referenced commercial mooring to Adam Baker of 
Vintage Fish Company 1870 Ocean Blvd Rye, NH in connection with the sale of your commercial 
business. 

You and Adam Baker have represented that Adam Baker intends to use the mooring for 
commercial purposes. Please be advised that the approval to transfer the mooring is subject to the 
condition that Adam Baker will continue to use the mooring for commercial purposes. 

In accordance with the administrative rules which govern the transfer of commercial 
moorings; "If the holder of a commercial use mooring permit ceases operation of the commercial 
entity for which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse." See enclosed copy of Pda 508.01(d). 
By copy of this letter Henry Lothrop is being put on notice of this provision. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

ce ely, 

David R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Enclosure 

cc: 	Geno Marconi, Director PDA-DPEI 
Adam Baker 
PDA Legal Dept. 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
535 iVia.ckei: Sireat, Suite 1 Porl . smoul:u, 	0:3301 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	David Mullen, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPEI 

DATE: 	June 3, 2019 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #950, from Andrew Widen to Vintage 
Fish Company. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

r) TAKING YOU THERE 
ph . 	0 - 4 3 6 8 50 0 	.?2 , 	03 -4 3 6-2 ' ,V nt.x r P n 	; o, , 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	June 3, 2019 

Andrew Widen of Ray's Seafood is requesting the transfer of a Mooring Permit 
(#950) in the Rye Harbor mooring field to Adam Baker of Vintage Fish Company. 
Attached is documentation of Adam Baker's commercial activity in the form of his NH 
Commercial Fishing License, Captain's License, advertising and Certificate of Good 
Standing from the Secretary of State. Also attached is commercial documentation for 
Andrew Widen. Attached is a transfer request from Andrew Widen with the assertion 
that he sold mooring equipment, fishing business and equipment to Adam Baker, who has 
asserted that he understands that the mooring must remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #950 be transferred to: 

Vintage Fish Company 
1870 Ocean Blvd 
Rye, NH 



\ ■11-  G t.. 

Nr. 

FISH COMPANY 
r• It s 	T 

Adam J. Baker 
P.O. Box 86 

Rye, NH 03870 
Adam@vintagefishcompany.com  

603.686.6606 

Chief Tracy Shattuck 
Chief Harbormaster, NH Port Authority 
555 Market Street 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Chief Shattuck, 

May 13, 2019 

I have made an agreement with Andrew Widen to purchase his commercial mooring permit, 
number 950, located in Rye Harbor. 

Included in the agreement for "value received" are the mooring block, chain and associated 
gear, as well as assets of Andy Widen's commercial fishing operation doing business as Ray's 
Seafood. 

I intend to use the mooring in conjunction with my current right of entry as Vintage Fish 
Company offering fishing charters departing from Rye Harbor. 

Please consider my request for this transfer and find attached my completed mooring 
application. Feel free to contact me if you require any further information from me. 

Sincerely, 

Adam J. Baker 
Vintage Fish Company 



EASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

June 4, 2019 

Norman Pike 
44 River St 
Seabrook, NH 03874 

RE: Request to Transfer Commercial Moorings 
Commercial Mooring No. 6933, Seabrook Harbor, New Hampshire 

Dear Mr. Pike: 

Please be advised that Pease Development Authority - Division of Ports and Harbors has 
approved of your request to transfer the above referenced commercial mooring to Alexander 
Gonzalez 11 Farmer Rd Windham, NH in connection with the sale of your commercial business. 

You and Alexander Gonzalez have represented that Alexander Gonzalez intends to use the 
mooring for commercial purposes. Please be advised that the approval to transfer the mooring is 
subject to the condition that Alexander Gonzalez will continue to use the mooring for commercial 
purposes. 

In accordance with the administrative rules which govern the transfer of commercial 
moorings; "If the holder of a commercial use mooring permit ceases operation of the commercial 
entity for which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse." See enclosed copy of Pda 508.01(d). 
By copy of this letter Alexander Gonzalez is being put on notice of this provision. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

ely, 

avid R. Mullen 
Executive Director 

Enclosure 

cc: 	Geno Marconi, Director PDA-DPI-I 
Alexander Gonzalez 
PDA Legal Dept. 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PE SE 
INTERNATIONAL  555 Mar1••.ei::3ireet Sic 1 Portfsmouit, 	033C1 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	David Mullen, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH 

DATE: 	June 3, 2019 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #6933, from Norman Pike to Alexander 
Gonzalez 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

,CD TAKING YOU THERE 

h 6.1 - 4 	3 5 0 0 a • 503- 43 - 2730 	till w 	it  ease ri i? 	n r 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief HIM Tracy R. Shattuck 172--  

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	June 3, 2019 

Norman Pike is requesting the transfer of a Mooring Permit (#6933) in the 
Seabrook Harbor mooring field to Alexander Gonzalez. Attached is documentation of 
Alexander Gonzalez' commercial activity in the form of his NH Commercial Fishing 
License. Also attached is commercial documentation for Norman Pike. Attached is a 
transfer request from Norman Pike with the assertion that he sold mooring equipment, 
fishing business and equipment to Alexander Gonzalez, who has asserted that he 
understands that the mooring must remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #6933 be transferred to: 

Alexander Gonzalez 
11 Farmer Road 
Windham, NH 


